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£l 4 Focus on
— = the future

REla ER AR

Slowdown, adjustment and transformation seem to be the Wi AR EALT EEF2015F B L ER
keynotes of China’s economy in 2015. According to the data from A RIBBIR G5t BEUER - 20155 GDPE R &
the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s GDP growth rate was 6.9% ° KE AR - N LR TR B B i EE I 1
6.9% in 2015. Economic downturn, stock market fluctuation, REE RBEDEERTS DELEKRERHE
decelerating real estate investment growth and continuing anti- NEHBEBEERBEE - ERTEEXMEU LR
corruption rendered enterprises’ operation and investments plus RIENENREEAE BB TRENEARREE
personal consumption more prudent and rational. Faced with the W BRZEOEBRETEENFARENEA -
aforementioned macro-economic pressure and confronted by

e-commerce, traditional retail business experienced waves of store

closures. Many enterprises were proactively making corresponding

adjustments or transformation.

Property
Investment
and Holding

Sports Financial
Branding Services
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Affected by China’s economy, Hong Kong's economy also
experienced decline and adjustment. Both its stock and real estate
market entered into a period of adjustment and down cycle. Apart
from the foresaid pressure, traditional retail business also faced
various negative news leading to the gradual decrease of free
independent travellers.

Nonetheless, the Group has gradually built a solid foundation
after its transformation in 2014. In 2015 we continued to make
use of the travel retail and sports brand opportunities brought
forward by the retail industry, and the need for diversified financial
services also provided business possibilities to financial investment.
Combining the above with our strengths, by proactively improving
our business and manpower structure, we boosted our operational
efficiency so as to better support the development of our various
business segments while striving for the maximum benefits for the
Group.

REVIEW

A) TRAVEL RETAIL

By utilizing the unique features of outlet malls as well as
duty free business and leveraging on the results achieved
so far, the Group proceeds with the economy and living
standard and put forward an enhanced concept, we believe
the merger will expand the business development potential of
both sectors simultaneously.

1) Outlet malls

With globalization and the improvement in the quality
of life, tourism becomes more common, various
domestic and international brands are more widely
known. The development of outlet mall business will
benefit from brand quality recognition and rational
consumption approach.
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Through many conducive discussions throughout
2015, the Group launched the CITS Anyang City
Project with China International Travel Service Group
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “CITS”) to build
and operate in Anyang, Henan Province the Anyang
City Park Outlet. It is intended that Anyang City Park
Outlet will soft open by end 2016. Anyang City Park
Outlet will adopt a new business model “shopping +
tourism” through high quality and steeply discounted
genuine international brand merchandise, professional
and comprehensive supporting services as its focus,
providing consumers and tourists in Anyang and
its neighboring region an all-in-one comprehensive
experience combining leisure, tourism, shopping,
entertainment and culture.

At the same time, after three years’ of market nurture,
strengthening of management, improvement of
efficiency, the business in Shenyang Park Outlet is
improving and maturing. During the past year, Tianjin
Park Outlets continued to improve its operation,
upgrade its manpower structure, resulting in rising
operational efficiency, thereby establish a management
model.

Duty free business

After a year of operation and exploration, the business
of the duty free shop Golden Palaris in Kinmen is
steadily progressing as planned. At the same time,
the Group strengthened its cooperation with China
Duty Free Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
“China Duty Free Group”), a company under CITS,
and actively scrutinized various strategic plans and
collaboration proposals to jointly promote the business
development of duty free business in Kinmen.
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B) SPORTS BRANDING

1)

2)

Speedo

We continued to optimize the online and offline sales
channels and self-run retail points of sale. At the
same time, in order to accurately grasp the sports
waves around the world created by the 2016 Olympic
Games in Brazil and the business potential of the
sports industry in the Mainland, the Group is in active
and positive discussion with Speedo headquarters
and Asian companies for alliance opportunity and
business plan for the purpose of capturing the brand
development potential made possible by this mega
event and thereby maximizing the brand benefits.

PONY

Apart from disposing of the use of trademark rights
in USA, Canada and Mexico to ICONIX, the Group
continued to explore further partnership prospects. The
Group is proactively expanding its brand business to
South America, Europe and Asia.
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FINANCIAL INVESTMENT

1)  Financial Services

With increasingly diversified demand for financial
services, the business of China Rise Finance is
gradually stabilizing and the size of its customer base
is enlarging day by day. In particular, it achieved
comparatively good development results in its
moneylending and listing business.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Our properties like the outlet mall in Shenyang, Junefield
Plaza in Beijing and Island Place in Hong Kong continued to
generate increasing rental income and appreciation potential
to the Group.

The Group continues with its business structure strategy of

2014 and is pleased to observe that, through timely adjustment

and betterment in 2015, each business segment made positive

progress independently while supporting the overall business

development of the Group, the synergistic effect amongst different

business segments are fully recognized.

FUTURE

1)

2)

The Group will continue to uphold the elements of travel-
retail. For outlet malls, the Company will relentlessly push for
the development of Anyang City Project in Henan Province
and reinforce the strategic alliance with CITS. At the same
time, the Company will also actively consider accelerating
the number of outlet malls in other parts of China. At the
moment, the Company is negotiating the related plans with a
renowned enterprise.

For duty free business, the Company will heighten its efforts
to establish long-term strategic cooperative partnership with
China Duty Free Group (CDF ) and look into more feasible
collaboration in other countries and regions.
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3) For Speedo, by relying on the current China structure,
operation and client network, the Company will actively
consider expanding the cooperation with the parent company
of Speedo and seek collaboration with other related brands.

4)  For PONY brand, apart from the existing markets in northern
Asia, South America and Europe, the Company will continue
to actively expand its business in other regions such as
Southern Asia, Middle East and Africa thereby continuing to
intensify the brand’s market exposure.

5)  For financial services, the Company will look for strategic
partners in a proactive manner, seize and leverage on
the growing and upsurging financial market, realizing the
synergistic effect of allying with influential market players.

In concluding the above, the upgrading and integration of outlet
malls and duty free business through the travel-retail concept, the
expansion and optimization of its own channel network in sports
branding and leveraging on outlet malls, the positive expansion
of financial services by taking advantage of industry’s rising
trend, together with the support for and the facilitation of the
industry’s development, the multi-dimensional linkage and mutual
collaboration of which will help to create an optimum business
ecosystem with maximum benefits.

APPRECIATION

| would take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors, our staff
and stakeholders for their continuous support and contributions to
the Group. As Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony had retired from Managing
Director last year, | would like to thank Mr. Sze, on behalf of the
Board, for his contribution to the Company during his term of
office. | hope that in face of a difficult market of 2016, all my
colleagues will continue to make concerted efforts to contribute to
the business and effectiveness of the Group.
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Turnover of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
increased 33.10% from HKD263.8 million to HKD351.1 million.
The substantial growth was attributable mainly to the organic
growth of our Speedo retailing and sourcing business, Shenyang
outlet mall and duty free shop in Kinmen, and the contribution
from the newly acquired financial services group and Beijing
properties in 2014.

Gross profit margin rises from 59.57% last year to 75.57% this
year resulting from the income generated from financial services
business and also the rental income received from the Beijing
properties.

The Group also recognized gain of HKD222.5 million from
the disposal of intangible assets representing Pony trademark
and intellectual property rights in Canada, US and Mexico in
February this year. Details of which are included in the Company
announcement dated 3 February 2015.

As a result, profit attributable to the owners of the Company also
rises 847% from HKD19.1 million to HKD180.8 million.

The value of intangible assets fell from HKD210.6 million last year
to HKD146.4 million this year as a consequence of the disposal of
the PONY trademark and intellectual property rights in the United

States of America, Mexico and Canada.
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Current assets value upsurged from HKD954.8 million to
HKD1,457.9 million amongst which advances to customers in
margin financing increased from HKD50.3 million to HKD126.1
million due to expanding business in financial services. Under the
same token, loans receivable also rose from HKD143.0 million
to HKD629.2 million. Bank borrowings also increased from
HKD465.3 million to HKD737.3 million to cope with the business
development needs of the Group.

As stated in the Annual Report of 2014 and the Interim Report
of 2015, out of the HKD291.7 million proceeds raised from the
placing of the ordinary shares of the Company in October 2013,
(i) HKD59.0 million had been utilised for existing outlet mall
operations; (i) HKD21.7 million had been utilised for general
working capital of the Group; while (iii) HKD150.0 million had been
used for the repayment of bank loans of the Group. The remaining
balance of HKD61.0 million which was originally set aside for outlet
mall extension has been utilised as general working capital for our
newly acquired financial services business.

MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the People’s Republic of China, Hong

Kong, Taiwan and other Asian countries comprised 99.53% (2014
94.17%) of the total sales with the remaining 0.47% (2014-:
5.83%) shared between United States of America, South America
and other European countries.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank balances and cash
of HKD470,025,000 (2014: HKD562,362,000). The Group was
offered banking facilities amounting to HKD737,251,000 (2014:
HKD620,448,000). As at 31 December 2015, the Group obtained
bank borrowings in the amount of HKD737,251,000 (2014:
HKD465,336,000). The Group has variable interest rate bank loans
which carry interest ranging from 1.84% to 2.47% per annum.
The weighted average effective interest rate of the Group’s bank
loans is 2.16% (2014: 1.81%). Debt to total assets ratio stood at
19.78% (2014: 13.34%), based on total bank borrowings over
total assets. The shareholders’ equity was impacted by exchange
difference arising on translation of foreign operations amounting
to HKD101,239,000 attributable to the devaluation of Renminbi
for the year. The banking facilities are secured by corporate
guarantees from the Company and certain of its subsidiaries. Bank
loans are secured by certain land and buildings and investment
properties of the Group.

SYNEHON
| S—
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of employees
of the Group was 392. Employee costs (excluding directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD72,651,000 (2014
HKD67,056,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, double pay and
employee share options are awarded to eligible staff of the Group
based on their performance and individual merits.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company have approved
and adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing eligible participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company. The Scheme aims
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of both the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. All directors of the Company
(“Directors”), full-time employees and any other persons who,
at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the
Scheme.
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Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on
the date of adoption. The Company may renew this 10% limit with
shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of shares in the Company in issue as at the date of
the shareholders’ meeting.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised options) under the Scheme or
any other share option schemes adopted by the Company in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of the grant. This period must
expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.
At the time of the grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date on which the letter containing the
offer is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on
acceptance of an option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued
upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant. The
subscription price will be approved by the Board at the time the
option is offered to the participants.
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No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the

tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.

On 4 December 2015, a total of 11,000,000 share options were
granted to eligible persons.

Details of the movements of the share options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:
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Number of share options

BREYE
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2015 the year the year the year 2015
120155 20155
BRTEER 1A18 12A318
2EAT R¥BH (id] (#7) HATHE REARE RERTE  RERXY ied K AT
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
Ex 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) = =
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 10,800,000 - (3,900,000) (6,900,000) =
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
4/12/2015 4/12/2015 - 3/12/2016 0.760 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
E& 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 2,320,000 - (2,320,000 = =
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - (7,800,000) (4,200,000) =
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 540,000 - (540,000) = =
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - (4,120,000) - 350,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - (2,550,000) (960,000) 960,000
4/12/2015 1/7/2016 - 31/12/2016 0.760 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
47,600,000 11,000,000 (28,230,000) (12,060,000) 18,310,000
Weighted average exercise price 0.423 0.760 0.405 0.406 0.666

MEFATRE
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Details of the movements of the share options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

REE2014F12A31 R IEFER - RIBZABIR
HA BB RN T

Number of share options

B
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2014 the year the year the year 2014
1R20145F 120146
BRITEE 1A1R 12A318
28AL KTEH 1T () MAE  RERRL RERTE RERER EALTE
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 11,200,000 - (11,200,000) = =
B 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 = (3,800,000) (1,500,000) 7,000,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 = = (1,500,000) 10,800,000
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 2,000,000 = (2,000,000) = =
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 1,500,000 = = (1,500,000) =
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 1,500,000 = = (1,500,000) =
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 13,600,000 - (13,600,000) = =
&8 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 = (9,680,000) - 2,320,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 5,410,000 = (4,290,000) (580,000) 540,000
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000
92,750,000 6,000,000  (44,570,000) (6,580,000) 47,600,000
Weighted average exercise price 0.405 0. 550 0.405 0.404 0423

MEFATTHEE

The number and weighted average exercise price of the share
options exercisable at the end of reporting period are 8,310,000
shares and HKD0.552 (2014: 20,330,000 shares and HKDO.448),
respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share
options outstanding at the end of the reporting period is 1.13 years
(2014: 1.80 years). The weighted average share price at the date
of exercise of options exercised during the year was HKDO0.83
(2014: HKDO.63).

The total number of shares available for issue under the share
option scheme as at 31 December 2015 was 809,323,074
shares (including options for 18,310,000 shares that have been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised) (2014: 749,704,074
shares (including options for 47,600,000 shares that have been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised) which represented 29.3%
(2014: 28.1%) of the issued share capital of the Company at 31
December 2015.
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The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible persons
on 9 September 2013 was HKDO.1184 per option. The fair value
was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree
method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.406
Expected volatility 43.526%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.693%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible persons
on 9 October 2013 was HKDO0.1204 per option. The fair value
was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree
method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.402
Expected volatility 44.015%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.545%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible persons
on 17 June 2014 was HKDO.1921 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree
method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO0.550
Exercise price HKDO0.550
Expected volatility 51.087%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.771%
Expected dividend yield 0%
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Operation Review
ESE1E)

The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible persons
on 4 December 2015 were HKDO0.1699 and HKDO0.1707 per
option respectively. The fair values were calculated using the
Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.760
Exercise price HKDO.760
Expected volatility 56.772%/54.938%

1/1.08 years
Risk-free rate 0.09%/0.1077 %
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected life

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of
daily share prices over the last three years.

The share options granted on 9 September 2013 are subject to the

R2015F12 4R B A ERA TR KB RER
st R FEER 5 RS ) B #E0.16997% T &
0.170778 7T » R FEE T fE A = XEHE R A 1
R—ATRHTENG B - R A NE AN T

inEsqunl=R-ti s 0.7607% 7T
IEE 0.7607% 7T
T8 HA R 18 56.772%/54.938%
TE R 4F 5 1/1.084

[0 g 1) == 0.09%/0.1077%
TEHARR B K 0%
BRIE T I E R R IZ LR =T 2R IBRE TR

BRE=ZFEARENRABBEONMAES -

R2013F9 AR R LM BREATIA T RB R

following vesting schedule: TR

Maximum
number of
share options
exercisable
RZ O {T{#
Vesting schedule SEBFRER fEIRESE
From 9 September 2013 to 8 September 2014 20139 H9H £2014F9 A8H 40%
From 9 September 2014 to 8 September 2015 2014F9H9H £2015F9 A8H 70%
From 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2016 201599 A9H £201659 A8H 100%
The share options granted on 9 October 2013 are subject to the R2013F10A9H IR LM EIRE AR AT R Bk

following vesting schedule: FRRAMR
Maximum
number of

share options

exercisable
RS {T{E
Vesting schedule B E R R HERE
From 9 October 2013 to 8 October 2014 2013 10H9H £2014F10A8H 40%
From 9 October 2014 to 8 October 2015 2014 10H9H £2015%10H8H 70%
From 9 October 2015 to 8 October 2016 2015%F10H9H £2016410A8H 100%
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The share options granted to employees on 4 December 2015 are
subject to the following vesting schedule:

FEEEBRAE 206FERS

Operation Review
ES1E)

R2015F12 A4 TRENBREAZIATE
B B R SR AR PR

Maximum
number of
share options

exercisable
RZT{T{#
Vesting schedule REREER BEIXiEEH
From 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016 2016F7H1HZE20165F 12 A31H 100%

No vesting conditions are set for the share options granted to
Directors on 17 June 2014 and 4 December 2015.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve within equity over the relevant vesting periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately HKD1,666,000
(2014: HKD5,483,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

MR2014F6 A178 K2015F12 A48 R FEER
BRELIERERBRERS -

ERNBRENATFEENEREEERA M
RIAEE R B R A e P MO BE AR A R Un AE FE 1
fne

B E2015F12A31B It F B AEBE AR A

Z R BB AR SR B 2 1,666,000/ 7T (20144 :
5,483,000/ 7T ) °
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1. Mr. Cheng Tun Nei BB[& B3t 4
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer =/ X EEHITE
2. Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary Pz Fl5c 4
Executive Director #11T7&= =
3. Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie ZEREET4E
Independent Non-executive Director %37 3EE1TE &=
4. Mr. Shum Pui Kay Jbig & 54
Independent Non-executive Director 3 JEH TS =
5. Mr. Hong Kim Cheong 75 $8#E5E &
Non-executive Director FJE#1TE =

6. Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander FEF{£5%4E
Independent Non-executive Director ¥ . FEH {TE =
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, aged 52, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (appointed on 15 December 2014 and elected as the
Chairman on 23 December 2014)

Mr. Cheng was further appointed Chief Executive Officer on 30
September 2015.

He is an experienced investor in securities and also a seasoned
businessman engaging in securities and financing, consultancy,
hotel investment, real estate investment and development, import
and export of cigarettes, perfume and cosmetic products business
over many years. He is also a director of GoldSilk Capital Limited
(“GoldSilk”). GoldSilk is a substantial shareholder of the Company
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary, aged 60 (appointed on 2 January 2014)

Mr. Chan was further appointed Chief Operating Officer on 1
November 2014 overseeing all business units for the Group.

He possesses over 35 years of professional experience in
marketing, sales, distribution and management in fast moving
consumer goods with multi-national corporations such as LVMH,
British American Tobacco and Imperial Tobacco Group.

Mr. Chan holds an EMBA degree awarded jointly by the HKUST
Business School and the Kellogg School of Management of
Northwestern University. He has also attended management
courses at Harvard Business School, The Wharton School,
Stanford-National University of Singapore, INSEAD/CEDEP and
IMD.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hong Kim Cheong, aged 51 (appointed on 18 September
2015)

Mr. Hong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
Geography from The University of Wilfred Laurier Ontario Canada.
He possesses over 25 years of retailing experience gathered from
fast moving consumer products to tobacco products. Mr. Hong
currently serves both as the managing director and executive board
committee member of Italmenu, a joint venture between COOP
[talia (the largest supermarket chain in Italy) and a group of private
investors for the Asia market.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Shum Pui Kay, aged 67 (appointed on 27 November 2013)

He possesses over 30 years of experience in the retailing and
distribution of luxurious goods. He was instrumental in the
establishment and expansion of the renowned French leather good
brand Longchamp in the Asia Pacific region and has served as the
Chairman of the Asia Pacific region of the brand Longchamp since
1978.

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie, aged 49 (appointed on 27 November
2013)

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1990 and
was qualified as a solicitor in 1992. Up until 1997, Mr. Wah was
a partner of a Hong Kong law firm. He is currently an executive
director of G-Resources Group Limited (HKSE: 1051), the shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander, aged 69 (appointed on 15
December 2014)

Mr. Chow is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He possesses over 35
years of experience in commercial, financial and investment
management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. He is currently
also an independent non-executive director of Top Form
International Limited (HKSE: 333), Playmates Toys Limited (HKSE:
869) and China Strategic Holdings Limited (HKSE: 235), all three
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Furthermore, he has
also been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Aquis Entertainment Limited (formerly known as Discovery
Resources Limited) (Australian Stock Code: ASX: AQS), a company
listed on Australian Securities Exchange, on 7 September 2015.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 52, has been working with the Group
since October 2014.

He is the chief executive officer who oversees the compliance
and business operation of the financial services unit acquired by
the Group in 2014. He also currently serves as the chief financial
officer of the Group.

With over 25 years of experience in the financial industry, he
currently serves as the non-executive director of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (HKSE: 8242), and the independent
non-executive director of Pak Tak International Limited (HKSE:
2668) and Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (HKSE:
1808), all three companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. At the same time, he is an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and admitted
as an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of the United Kingdom. He is also a full member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planners and an associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu was awarded a Diploma of Business Administration from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, aged 52, has been working with the
Group since June 2004.

She is the named company secretary of the Group.

Ms. Chow is a solicitor admitted in the Supreme Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and possesses over 15 years
experience in legal and regulatory compliance. Her legal practice
used to focus on the capital markets covering IPO, bank financing,
securities and regulatory compliance, joint venture documentation
and private equity investments.

Ms. Chow graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of arts degree.
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Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 44, joined the Group in September
2014.

He is currently the Head of Real Estate division of the Group.

Mr. Lee accumulated over 14 years of experience in hotel and real
estate development cum investment in Mainland China. He used
to serve as the director of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited
(HKSE: 8242), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee is currently pursuing his EMBA studies at Xiamen
University. He holds a graduate certificate in Business
Administration from Beijing Economy Management College.

He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Chairman of the
Company.

Mr. Wong Keong Yiew, aged 46, joined the Group in June 2015
and currently heads the Pony operation.

He has over 15 years of experience in general management, sales
& marketing across different product categories particularly in the
FMCG, perfume and cosmetics industries. He used to work for one
of the largest tobacco group, British American Tobacco.

Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
the National University of Singapore. He is an ASEAN scholar and a
Singapore Aerospace scholar.

Mr. Mok Henry, aged 54, joined the Group in April 2004.

Mr. Mok was appointed Vice President in November 2012, and is
currently overseeing the Group’s outlet mall operations in China.

He is a retail industry veteran with over 20 years of experience in
the general consumer, as well as tourism, retailing business. His
past working experience included DFS Hong Kong Ltd., a LVMH
company and Victoria Mall, a CKH Shopping Mall, Reebok China
and JFT Holdings Ltd.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Architecture from North

East London Polytechnic (Current name: University of East London)
in the United Kingdom.
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Mr. Ng Yat Man Daniel, aged 58, joined the Group in December,
2011.

Mr. Ng was appointed the Head of leasing of outlet mall division on
1 March 2015. In his new appointment, he is responsible for high-
end brand recruitment for the Group’s outlet malls.

He is a seasoned retailer with over 30 years of experience
accumulated from working with Foxtown, Golden Eagle Shopping
Centre and Sogo (HK).

Mr. Ng attended management courses at Foxtown Outlets, Lugano,
Switzerland.

Mr. So Yat Ming Dick, aged 60, appointed in October 2014.

Mr. So is currently the General Manager of Shenyang Park Outlets
operation.

An accomplished retailer, he brings with him more than 30 years
of expertise in retailing, mall management, international brands
distribution (including S. Farragamo, Hugo Boss, Coach, Bally,
Balenciaga and Reebok) in PRC. Mr. So used to work for Duty Free
Shoppers HK, ImagineX Group, Maison Mode Shopping Mall in
Shenyang and Urumgi.

He obtained his Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
the University of Management and Technology in the United States
of America.

Ms. Li Hua, aged 50, joined the company in 2009.

Ms. Li has been focusing on brand marketing and leading the
Speedo China operation from 1st March 2016 onwards.

She has worked with Henkel, Reckitt Benckiser and Wacoal during
her 22 years in sales and marketing in FMCG and sports/fashion
industries.

Ms. Li graduated from Jilin Normal University with a bachelor
degree in English Literature.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Symphony Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The address of the registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and
the principal place of business of the Company is located on the
10th Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are retailing and sourcing,
outlet malls, duty free, branding, financial services, property
investment and holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group including the challenges/
uncertainties and ways to tackles them together with a discussion
on the Group'’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
are included in the Operation Review. A description of the risks are
found in Note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 51 to 52 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HKDO.02 per ordinary share (2014:
Nil) to the shareholders of the Company.
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The Board also proposes a bonus issue of warrants to the
shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every five existing
issued shares of the Company on the record date. The warrants will
entitle the holders to subscribe for new shares of the Company at
an initial subscription price of HKD1.00 per share in cash, subject
to adjustments. The warrants will be exercisable at any time during
a period of three years commencing from the date of the first issue
of the warrants up to the date immediately preceding the third
anniversary of the date of first issue of the warrants.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings and freehold land were
revalued at 31 December 2015. The revaluation resulted in a
surplus of approximately HKD11,196,000 which was credited
directly to the properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2015 were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
base on comparable sales available in the market. The net increase
in fair value of approximately HKD3,443,000 was credited directly
to profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2015 were as follows:

AAT S EC e

R2015F12 A31H * KA A A DB F AR AR
RIfERE T

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

FH&T FABT

Share premium EErabiay =] 936,965 924,998
Contributed surplus BEHA 586,774 586,774
Retained profits B 15 m 246,771 262,566
1,770,510 1,774,338

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus and share premium if:

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the Company would

thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2015)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Managing Director)
(retired on 30 September 2015)

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (retired on 28 February 2015)

Ms. Chen Fang Mei (resigned on 1 June 2015)

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Hong Kim Cheong (appointed on 18 September 2015)
Mr. Liu George Hong-chih (resigned on 1 June 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (resigned on 18 September 2015)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Shum Pui Kay and Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie will retire as Directors
by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not terminable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
10 June 2011 (the “Scheme”) are set out in Note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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On 9 September 2013 and 9 October 2013, a total of 100,900,000
share options were granted to eligible persons. On 17 June 2014,
6,000,000 share options were granted to Mr. Chan Kar Lee, Gary,
a Director of the Company. On 4 December 2015, 1,000,000 share
options were granted to Mr. Hong Kim Cheong, a Director of the
Company, 10,000,000 share options were granted to other eligible
persons. Details of the movements of the share options granted
under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives and their associates of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Code”), were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in the Company: base on total
shares as at 31 December 2015

7201359 H9H k20134 10H9H - & BB AT+
& T & $£100,900,00017 i A& - 102014576 A
178 - AR R ERRRZ M AR T 6,000,000
DIEIHE - R2015F 12 4R ARBRIS—&F/H
SRAF 5T A HER T 1,000,000 BB iRAE T & T & B 1%
A T T $£10,000,00017 & A # - 10 8 22015
F12A3181ER2014F12A31BFEA - iRIEZ
AtEIR B REE ST BN AR E BB R
RMIFE30 -

ESNETETHASHER RN G
HERARGES

RIEFZ L ER ZRPIEIGRERTFHE
REMATE RIBEM A LT AR ESETRES
RpEESs A ([FESFR]) BAARQE KB
R R20156F12A31H  ARAREE R E BT
BA B REE@EA TR ARRSHEEE QA
B DD - ARBER D R B A R BOR B KBS AN
NE

RE
AR RFREEO. 107 T i & B ()

Number of ordinary shares held by

FiBcRTEERNE

Percentage

Spouse Total of the

and/or number of issued share

children Controlled ordinary capital of

Director Notes  Beneficial owner under 18 corporation shares the Company
ERAT

EBR EB1T

EE it ZHA  18RUTFX BEtE TEAREYE BAER
Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”) B3/ETE ([E5E4]) 1 - - 801,830,000 801,830,000 29.72%
Shum Pui Kay (“Mr. Shum”) b3 ([EE£]) 2 = = 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.37%
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Notes:

1 Mr. Cheng owned the entire issued share capital of GoldSilk Capital Limited
(“GoldSilk™). As at 31 December 2015, GoldSilk was directly interested in
801,830,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng was thus deemed to be
interested in 801,830,000 shares of the Company.

2. Tung Fai Holdings Company Limited (“Tung Fai”) was directly interested in
10,000,000 shares of the Company. Tung Fai was wholly-owned by Asian
League Limited, which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Shum. Thus Mr. Shum
was deemed to be interested in 10,000,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option
Schemes”, none of the directors, chief executives nor their
associates had any interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2015.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE OR REDEEM
SHARES

Save as disclosed under “Share Option Schemes” above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. In
addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the margin financing arrangement as disclosed under the
heading of “Continuing Connected Transactions” from page 45 to
page 46 of the annual report, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting
during or at the end of the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2015, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of their relevant interests and short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company:

(1) LONG POSITIONS
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company

FERRE

RIFEF R E R 5 150 £336/6 R E AR FH
FHEBRBRRECMAE 2 REERRRN2015
FI2A31BHAARRAIE BTN Z AR R

RBITE

1) R\

R B AR0.1078 T A AR A7

Number of issued ordinary shares held

ERTRHEE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity interests interests interests Company
B AT
w5 BT
&% o &R EEED RAEEL s [iZ.N=1)174
Mr. Cheng 1 Interest of controlled corporation - 801,830,000 801,830,000 29.72%
R4 RERE
Ms. Li Wa Hei (“Madam Li") 1 Spouse - 801,830,000 801,830,000 29.72%
FERLL ([Zrt]) it B
GoldSilk 1 Beneficial owner 801,830,000 - 801,830,000 29.72%
EEA
Or Ching Fai (“Mr. Or") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse 350,000,000 120,000,000 470,000,000 17.42%
BB & ([FR%E]) EmARER
Wong Lai Ning (“Madam Wong") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse - 470,000,000 470,000,000 17.42%
HEEELL ([Ext)) ARG
Notes: Bt & -
il Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of GoldSilk. As at 31 1. B 5 A 45 8 GoldSilk 2 50 B 31T AR AN © 1A20154F

December 2015, GoldSilk was directly interested in 801,830,000
shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng was thus deemed to be interested
in 801,830,000 shares of the Company. Madam Li is the wife of Mr.
Cheng and she was also deemed to be interested in 801,830,000
shares of the Company.

2. As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Or was directly interested in
350,000,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Or also held 120,000,000
shares of the Company jointly with his spouse, Madam Wong.
Therefore, Mr. Or and Madam Wong were deemed to be interested in
470,000,000 shares of the Company.
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(2) SHORT POSITIONS
The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors independent.

MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Taiwan and other Asian countries comprised 99.53%
(2014: 94.17%) of the total sales and the remaining 0.47% (2014
5.83%) was mainly shared between United States of America,
other European countries and South America.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HKD5,000 (2014: HKD82,000).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s employee emolument policy is set up by the Board on
the basis of the merit, qualification and competence of the Group’s
employees.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and decided by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, having regard to the operating results of the Company,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was set up in December 2005,
advising the Board on the emoluments of the directors and senior
management. The Company has adopted share option schemes
as incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
schemes are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to 48 of
this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAIRMAN
Cheng Tun Nei

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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The Company firmly believes in the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance through
transparency, as well as effective risk cum internal control. With the
merger and acquisition of new business segments, the corporate
governance system is prudently reviewed and meticulously
re-assessed, by the Board to ensure that shareholders’ and
stakeholders’ interests are safeguarded. The Company has adopted
and complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“CG Code”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015, except for the deviation from
code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 of CG Code.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices and makes necessary changes
at appropriate times. Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles
of the Chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Cheng Tun Nei currently serves as both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. In view of the evolving business
environment in which our Group operates, the Board is of the view
that currently vesting the roles of both the chairman and chief
executive on Mr. Cheng Tun Nei will provide the Group with strong
and consistent leadership while permitting more effective and
timely business planning and decision-making process.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors (“Non-
executive Directors”) should be appointed for a specific term and
are subject to re-election. Directors of the Company (including
Non-executive Directors) were not appointed for specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of
the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes leadership and control by providing overall
strategic direction. As at 31 December 2015, the Board consisted
of 6 Directors (including the Chairman of the Board), amongst
which 2 are executive Directors and remaining are Non-executive
Directors. Out of the 4 Non-executive Directors, 3 are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board diversity is achieved through a composition of members
coming from a variety of background, experience and skillsets.
The newly appointed director, namely Mr. Hong Kim Cheong,
further enhanced the spectrum of the Board. Board appointments
have been and will be based on individual merit aiming at
complementing the existing skills and experience in totally,
taking into account gender, age, professional experience and
qualifications and education background.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive director (INEDs), an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all INEDs independent.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-today
administration and operations of the Group’s business to the Chief
Operating Officer and the senior management. While allowing
management with substantial autonomy to run and develop the
business, the Board is proactive in reviewing the results of the
delegated functions and work tasks.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company provides continuous professional development
(“CPD") training and relevant materials to Directors to help ensure
that they are kept abreast of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. In addition,
attendance at external forums of briefing session also counts
toward CPD training.
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Type of

CPD programme* Attending
Name EamiEill seminars
5 HREER" LHMRAE
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei Y v v/
Sze Sun Sun Tony! ik Ak i v/ v
Chan Ting Chuen?2 bR EE) 12 4 =
Chen Fang Mei? BR s =<3 v 4
Chan Kar Lee Gary Bk 5= 7 4 4
Non-executive Directors FBITES
Liu George Hong-chih® 2= 4 v
Hong Kim Cheong* paliok== v -
Independent Non-executive Directors BILERITES
Ho Shing Chak® a] X 2 v 4
Shum Pui Kay P v/ v/
Wah Wang Kei Jackie ERE v v
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BAFE v v/
1 Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony retired as an Executive Director of the Company on 30 1 201569 A30R « EFH L £ RKRWRER QR BT

September 2015.

2 Mr. Chan Ting Chuen retired as an Executive Director of the Company on 28
February 2015.

3 Ms. Chen Fang Mei and Mr. Liu George Hong-chin resigned as Executive
Director and Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 June 2015.

4 Mr. Hong Kim Cheong was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 18 September 2015.

5 Mr. Ho Shing Chak resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 18 September 2015.

including: briefings from business units, regular information updates, reading
materials relating to regulatory updates, business visits
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and

advice from company secretary of the Company.

During the year, the Board conducted 5 meetings, attendance of

the Directors at the board meetings and general meetings is set out

EFE (&)

FHR 2w IR REERARFHAQF

WERS B R 2% o

RALEFE EFehAMRER EFRE
FERBRAFARENEZLFLBWTR:

as follows:—
Number of meetings attended/
eligible to attend
HE  SERHEERZAH

Annual

General
Name Board Meeting
S EEE RREFXE
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei HERE 4/5 1/1
Sze Sun Sun Tony! kAR Ak 5/5 1/1
Chan Ting Chuen? FREE)II2 0/2 N/A 73 A
Chen Fang Mei? feR 75 553 2/3 N/A 36 FB
Chan Kar Lee Gary R 5= 71 3/5 1/1
Non-executive Directors FBITES
Liu George Hong-chih® Elpins 2/3 N/A 7~ F
Hong Kim Cheong* pakiok=a N/A 73 A N/A 73 A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFERITES
Ho Shing Chak® fa] B &S 1/4 /1
Shum Pui Kay A 5/5 1/1
Wah Wang Kei Jackie =R 3/5 1/1
Chow Yu Chun Alexander AFE 4/5 11
1 Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony retired as an Executive Director of the Company on 201569 A308 @ EFTHT L £ R R R AR R RHIT

30 September 2015. 5 Board meetings were held during the period of his

appointments.

2 Mr. Chan Ting Chuen retired as an Executive Director of the Company on
28 February 2015. 2 Board meetings were held during the period of his

appointments.

3 Ms. Chen Fang Mei and Mr. Liu George Hong-chin resigned as Executive
Director and Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 June 2015. 3 Board
meetings were held during the period of his appointments.

40

EERG NREEHBETTORERTESH -

R20155F2 828R « [REE)I| 58 AR REAR A BI#AAT
EERG NRECHBETT2REZEEH -

M20155F6 A 1R » R XX L RBMBESL LD RIFHER
RAMTEERFMTES RS NMREEEDHES

TTIREEE G-



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

4 Mr. Hong Kim Cheong was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 18 September 2015. No Board meetings has been held from his
appointment until 31st December 2015.

5 Mr. Ho Shing Chak resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 18 September 2015. 4 Board meetings were held during the
period of his appointments.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, the company secretary of the Company, is
a full time employee of the Group. She reports to the Chairman of
the Company. She has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her
biographical details are set out on page 25 of the annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration policy and other remuneration
related matters for all Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee assessed the performance and
recommended the remuneration package of the Directors.

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package includes salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options. During the year under
review, the Remuneration Committee met and considered the
packages of the executive Directors. They recommended to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors were fair and reasonable, taking into account business
performance, market practices and competitive market conditions.
Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
was established with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures. The revised terms of
reference was adopted on 31 Dec 2015 in compliance with the
Listing Rules.

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the external auditor and senior management the
annual results of the Group as well as the accounting principles
and practices being adopted and financial reporting matters.

Our Chief Financial Officer, senior management and the external
auditor attended the meetings to respond to any queries raised by
the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”), consisting of 3 members, out of which 2 are
independent Non-executive Directors, was established with specific
written terms of reference. It offers guidance to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning,
in particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive.

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie
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BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND
MINUTES

During the year under review, management provided appropriate
and sufficient information to the Directors and Board members in
a timely manner to keep them abreast of the latest developments
of the Company to discharge their responsibilities. The attendance
of individual members of the Board and other Board Committees
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out in the table below:
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee
= BZEEE FMESE REEEE
Non-executive Director FPHITES
Liu George Hong-chih 2= 171 N/A 738 N/A 738 A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFEHITES
Ho Shing Chak Al X 2 2/2 1/1 1/1
Shum Pui Kay Shig A 3/3 3/3 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN 3/3 3/3 11
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BF& 171 2/2 N/A “1~3E A

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings
have been recorded in sufficient detail. Draft and final versions of
minutes of the Board and other Board Committees were sent to
all Directors or Committees members for comments and records
within a reasonable time after the meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

A Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and is
chaired by Chairman and consists of 2 independent non-executive
directors. Matters relating to the structure, size and composition
of the Board was considered. Appointments, resignations and
removals of Directors and the succession plan are subject to the
approval of the Board.

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at each
annual general meeting. Mr. Shum Pui Kay (“Mr. Shum”) and Mr.
Wah Wang Kei Jackie (“Mr. Wah”) will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details of the
biographies of Mr. Shum and Mr. Wah are set out in the circular to
be sent to the shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, INTERNAL
CONTROL, GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility of the Group’s system of
internal control, corporate governance compliance and assessment
and management of risks. Procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that might adversely impact the Group’s business
operations. Through the establishment of policies and internal
guidelines such as the approval of detailed operational and
financial reports, budgets and plans provided by the management
of the business operations; inhouse code for the approval and
control of expenditures; periodic review of actual results against
budget or forecast; annual review by the Audit Committee of the
ongoing work of the Group's internal audit and risk management
functions, the effectiveness of the internal control systems is
ensured.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those with
significant impact on the Group. As far as the Company is aware
of, the Group has complied, in material respect, with the relevant
rules and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies
to which the Group operates its business in and holds the relevant
required licences for provision of certain licensed activities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Company is currently in force throughout the year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, for audit services and non-audit services
for the financial years ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:
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Audit services BT RS 1,710
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SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015. Relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and confirm that the financial statements contained herein give a
true and fair view of the results and state of affairs of the Group for
the period under review. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the statutory
requirements and the applicable accounting standards.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance can be
found in the Operation Review section of this annual report. Further
explanation as to how the Company generates or preserves value
over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company’s
objectives is found in the Chairman’s Statement from page 4 to
page 9.

To maintain and promote better and effective control within the
Group, the Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy
and application of accounting, financial and other controls of the
Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into
the following connected transactions with its connected persons:

FACILITIES A

(i)  margin financing agreement with Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, a
director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, for
a facility of HKD10,000,000, subsequently reduced below
HKD3,000,000 on 13 March 2015;

(i) margin financing agreement with Goldsilk Capital Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, ultimately controlled
by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, for a facility that was increased
from HKD1,000,000 to HKD5,000,000 on 7 January 2015,
subsequently reduced below HKD3,000,000 on 13 March
2015;
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

FACILITIES A (CONTINUED)

(iii) margin financing agreements with Mr. Lee Cheung Ming,
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, for a
facility of HKD8,000,000, subsequently reduced below
HKD3,000,000 on 13 March 2015; and

(iv) margin financing agreements with Mr. Wat Hin Pong, a
director of a subsidiary of the Company, for a facility that
was increased from HKD2,500,000 to HKD5,000,000 on 23
January 2015, subsequently reduced below HKD3,000,000
on 13 March 2015.

FACILITIES B

(i) under a margin financing agreement collectively signed
by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, Goldsilk Capital Limited and
the subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2015,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000; and

(i) margin financing agreement with Ms. Fung Kim Wan
Ewim, the director of a subsidiary of the Company, was
subsequently increased to HKD10,000,000 on 31 December
2015.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
believe that the above (Facilities A and B) continuing transactions
are in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group.
Terms of the continuing transactions are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
members of the management meet with research analysts and
institutional investors on an on-going basis providing them with
the latest and comprehensive information about the corporate
developments of the Group. In addition, stakeholders can click into
the Company’s website (www.symphonyholdings.com) to obtain
updated information in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the voting rights at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written request to
the Board or the company’s secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such written request.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group strives for
efficient and effective use of energy and resources in operation and
management level of the Group. Energy conservation is a priority
under environmental protection and energy-saving devices are
utilized to reduce power consumption. Environmental awareness
is enhanced and encouraged through daily participation amongst
staff:—

a) lights and electronic appliances in office premises will be
turned off when not in use;

b)  other than formal documents that require the use of paper
department is encouraged to work electronically. When
the use of paper is required, double-sided printed or use
of recycle paper is recommended and practised where
applicable;
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES (CONTINUED)

c) all paper for printing the Group's interim and annual report
are FSC certified/recycled paper. The Group will continue
to explore opportunities to develop its green purchasing
practices in this area.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Human resources are considered valuable asset of the Group.
Development and retention of human talent are considered vital.

The Group is committed to providing staff with a pleasant, safe and
healthy working environment. Competitive remuneration package
and share option incentive are provided to eligible employees.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse range of life-
style, value-for-money, good quality products with our brand to
our customers. We stay connected with our customers through
maintaining VIP database, ongoing communications, telephone,
emails, marketing materials and social media. Training are also
provided to sales personnel to provide quality and value-added
customer services.

In addition, the Group will continue to widen the customer base by
utilizing and maximizing current network.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS/
DISTRIBUTORS

We have developed long-standing relationships with our vendors
and take great care to ensure that they share our commitment
to quality and ethics. We carefully select and assess our vendors
through track record, experience, reputation, ability to provide
quality products.

We distribute certain products to end customers through third-
party distributors. We work with our distributors like business
partners and ensure that they also share our view for upholding
brand value and customer services, specifically focusing on
attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales growth.
We also monitor the financial position and repayment history of
these distributors and their sales performance.
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IBDO

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{5E : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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Independent Auditor's Report
18 I Tz BN &

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 204, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Hong Kong
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015 and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Shiu Hong NG

Practising Certificate Number: P03752

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incorne

I\\/j—\ =) % @ uy
For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 1231 H L F &
2015 2014
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
= FH#ET FET
Continuing operations HEEEER
Revenue E S 6 351,067 263,831
Cost of sales SHER A (85,779) (106,670)
Gross profit EH 265,288 157,161
Other income and gains H g A Rz 9a) 250,438 74,329
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERY (124,988) (96,509)
Administrative expenses TR (170,771) (178,878)
Finance costs BB A 7 (10,965) (5,599)
Other expenses H AR 9b) (15,635) (7,529)
Increase in fair value of investment properties HEYENTEELEN 3,443 27973
Share of results of joint ventures hEabEHEE (1,757) (1,479)
Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense)/credit BRETEH () /KB A0
5ﬁ7iﬂ/ (F18) 195,053 (30,531)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTies (ZH), /& 8 (38,975) 2,133
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations ~ REFHELL ¥4 2
FEEF/ (FE) 9(c) 156,078 (28,398)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEERS
Profit for the year from discontinued RECKIEEEEB
operations, after tax FERH (BRH#H%) 9(d) - 28,604
Profit for the year FEHEH 156,078 206
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hitt2EHA  BRHE
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TeEMHEEBREMNER
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties MESHAESE 2B 14,149 26,191
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of MESHEEZ
properties ELEHBEEE (9,953) (2,454)
4,196 23,737
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HgBesmoEs
to profit or loss: BmMIER
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale —H#\ﬁ#]’%?‘xéf ~NEEE
investments =,/ (E18) 20,354 (14,749)
Release of investments revaluation reserve B’\ﬁ EAHEERER
to profit or loss upon disposal of OEEEE 2 EE
available-for-sale investments Eh (5,605) -
Translation reserves released to profit or REEHBARIKEREE
loss on disposal of subsidiaries B 25 129 -
Translation reserves released to profit or REESEEXEERS
loss on disposal of joint ventures bi=Eed AR - 1,430
Translation reserves released on obtaining control of ~— AEUS A & 1 247 i ke b
a joint venture [B1# 2 E R G (2,051) -
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBINETEFTE SR
foreign operations EHER (101,239) (38,510)
Share of other comprehensive income of HEELEZEHM
joint ventures ZHKA - (500)
(88,412) (52,329)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ FEHME2EBRA - BFiE (84,216) (28,592)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015412 A31H It F &

2015 2014
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
Bt & FHERT FHET
Total comprehensive income for the year FEPEBALE 71,862 (28,386)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: EEEERF/ (BE):
Owners of the Company RRBER A
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFELCEER
continuing operations FEEF (BE) 180,822 (9,509)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations REDKIEEEEB
FRE A - 28,604
Profit for the year attributable to owners ERARHEBAEIEFERER
of the Company 180,822 19,095
Non-controlling interests JEIE R R o
Loss for the year from continuing operations RARFELEER L
FEER (24,744) (18,889)
Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling FEERERELEEBE
interests (24,744) (18,889)
156,078 206
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FEE2EBABEE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE =N 115,854 (3,731)
Non-controlling interests R (43,992) (24,655)
71,862 (28,386)
Earnings/(loss) per share SR&EF (B8B) 2
Basic (HK cents) EAR (L)
From continuing and discontinued operations REARFELERBERIE
REEB 6.74 0.81
From continuing operations RERELEER 6.74 (0.40)
Diluted (HK cents) cg (B IL)
From continuing and discontinued operations REFELERBRIE
REES 6.72 0.81
From continuing operations REFEEEED 6.72 (0.40)
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AR BT RS AR 2R

As at 31 December 2015 722015412 A31H

2015 2014
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
= FH#ET FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BB M AR 13 611,898 530,599
Investment properties KREMZE 14 1,190,423 1,305,717
Prepaid lease payments FEM A E R TE 15 254,248 277,346
Intangible assets BILEE 16 146,417 210,545
Interests in joint venture BEPE I ER 17 - 24,662
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 18 - 44,888
Goodwill EES 19 35,590 35,590
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBEEE 27 22,486 45699
Tax recoverable JERTHIR = 52,314
Club debentures SES 1,876 2326
Restricted bank deposit ZRRHISRITER 25(a) 3,538 3,743
Statutory deposits for financial services business B RUAR TS TSR ETE R 200 200
2,266,676 2,533,629
Current assets mENE E
Inventories & 20 58,862 41,785
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H A I BR X 21 115,842 116,579
Advances to customers in margin financing REFRESBRER
F2Z#R 22 126,050 50,344
Loans receivable U E R 23 629,196 143,006
Prepaid lease payments TR E A 15 7,159 7,420
Trading securities BEEFXS 24 16,420 9,545
Restricted bank deposit TR FIRITIER 25(a) 9,889 1,573
Bank balances and cash — held on behalf of RITHEB NS
customers —-REFES 25(b) 24,494 22,173
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR NS 25(c) 470,025 562,362
1,457,937 954,787
Current liabilities mE A&
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b FE AT BR 5K 26 265,611 295,638
Amount due to a joint venture JEST & & EFRIA 17 3 26,427
Bank borrowings RITER 28 173,002 465,336
Tax payable IR 12,853 47,192
451,466 834,643
Net current assets mEEEFE 1,006,471 120,144
Total assets less current liabilities LBEBERREAR 3,273,147 2.653,773
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As at 31 December 2015 72015412 831H

2015 2014
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
B st Fi#x FHET
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Bank borrowings IRITER 28 564,249 =
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEEREZER 43 153,254 153,254
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIAAE 27 85,930 88,776
803,433 242,030
2,469,714 2,411,743
Equity g
Share capital A& A< 29 269,775 266,952
Reserves s 31 2,049,360 1,921,275
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KARER A
E{EHEaR 2,319,135 2,188,227
Non-controlling interests e AR HE 2 150,579 223516
2,469,714 2,411,743

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 204 were
approved and authorised for issue by the directors on 18 March

2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheng Tun Nei
BER
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Chan es in Eqmty

IROEmBENR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 1231 H L F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

YL N
Properties  Investments Share Non-
Share  Contributed Share  revaluation  revaluation options  Translation Statutory Retained controlling
capital surplus premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEER RAER Bk Fihk
kx RARS ROER L1 i i EREE  EERE  gFRA @t i @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FiEL FiET FiET TEL ThL ThL FhL T Fr FET FET FiET
(Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31)
(H&31)  (WiaE31)  (M&81)  (W&31)  (WRRsl)  (MEsD) (&3 (RHR31)
At 1 January 2014 W2014%51A1R 210,369 523213 578,665 121,707 - 5421 67,324 - 282,150 1783849 272693 2,061,542
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - - - - 19,09 19,095 (18,889) 206
Surplus arising on revaluation of $BfHMELL
properties Rt = - - 23121 - - - - - 23121 3,070 26,191
Deferred tax liability arising on NEBRMELL
revaluation of properties ELERBEE - - - (2,454) - - - - - (2,454) - (2,454)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale ARHERENTEESR
investments - - = = (14,749) = = = - (14,749) = (14,749)
Exchange differences arising on BINEBFEEN
translation of foreign operations ERFEEE - - - - - - (29,674) - - (29,674) (8,836) (38,510)
Share of other comprehensive income~ [EA £ H
of joint ventures 2EHA - - - - - - (500) - - (500) - (500)
Reserve released upon disposal of HERBA R
joint ventures BRREE - - - - - - 1430 - - 1430 - 1430
Other comprehensive income FEARZERA
for the year - - - 20,667 (14,749) = (28,744) = = (22,826) (5,766) (28,592)
Total comprehensive income FEXENNEE
for the year - - - 20,667 (14,749) = (28,744) = 19,09 (3,731) (24,655) (28,386)
Share-based payments DR - - - - - 5483 - - - 5,483 - 5483
Share issue expenses RIARIAX - - (455) - - - - - - (455) = (455)
Exercise of share options (Note 30) TR BB IRAE (F3E30) 4457 - 18,903 - - (5,290) - - B 18,070 - 18,070
Lapse of share options BRERM - - - - - (64) - - 644 - - -
Issue of shares as consideration for BRAfEAKE
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 29) HBARAZRE
(H329) 52,126 - 38 - - - - - - 380011 - 380011
Acquisition of non-controlling interests MBS B - = - - - - - - - - (30931) (30931)
Disposal of non-controlling interests HEFERER - - - - - - - - B - 6,409 6,409
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 266,952 523,213 924,998 142374 (14,749) 4970 38,580 = 301,889 2188227 223516 2,411,743
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015412 A31H It F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATREAEE
Properties  Investments Share Non-
Share  Contributed Share  revaluation  revaluation options  Translation Statutory Retained controlling
capital surplus premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEER RAER B FER
kx RARS ROER L1 L1} i EREE  EERE  gFRA @t [ 321 @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FL FAT FiET TET TEL TEL FhL Fhx T FHL FEL FiET
(Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31)
(W&31)  (W&31)  (M&SL)  (W&31)  (WERsl)  (MsD)  (W&s) (RiRs1)
Profit for the year FEEF = - - - - - - - 180,822 180,822 (24,744) 156,078
Surplus arising on revaluation of NEBHFEEL
properties B = = = 11,196 - - - - - 11,19% 2,953 14,149
Deferred tax liabilty arising on NEEHFEEL
revaluation of properties BEREAE - - - (9,953) - - - - - (9.953) - (9.953)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale UHHERE
investments ATEEGSE - - - - 20,354 - - - - 20,354 - 20,354
Release to profit or loss upon disposal R ET#EEREE
of available-for-sale investments Y - - - - (5,605) - - - - (5,605) - (5,608)
Exchange differences arising on BINE A 80
translation of foreign operations EXfEZE - - - - - - (79,038) - - (79,038) (22201)  (101,239)
Reserve released to profitand losson - REVE—A & EEH/ER
obtaining control of a joint venture ApzEREE - - - - - - (2,051) - - (2,051) - (2,061)
Reserve released upon disposal of HERERER
subsidiaries ERRER - - - - - - 129 - - 129 - 129
Other comprehensive income FEERZERA
for the year - - - 1,243 14,749 - (80,960) = = (64,968) (19,248) (84,216)
Total comprehensive income FEXENNGEE
for the year - - - 1,243 14,749 - (80,960) = 180,822 115,854 (43992) 71,862
Transfer to statutory reserve BEATHE - - - - - - - 2,406 (2,406) - - -
Share-based payments MR - - - - - 1,666 - - - 1,666 - 1,666
Exercise of share options (Note 30) fTHRER MR (P E30) 2823 - 11,967 - - (3357) . - - 11433 - 11433
Lapse of share options il £300 - - - - - (1,430) - - 1,430 = = =
Acquisition of non-controlling interests YU SR IER - - - - - - 17 - 1,938 1,955 (29,806) (27,851)
Disposal of non-controlling interests HEFERES
(Note 43) (PzH43) = = - - - - - - - - 81 81
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12A318 269,775 523213 936,965 143617 - 1,849 (42,363) 2,406 483673 2319135 150579 2,469,714
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Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flows
FOIREMEER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 1231 H L F &

2015 2014
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FEEY
Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense)/credit: ﬁfﬁﬁﬂ@(%ﬁj )/ BRETZ
iy 518 )
From continuing operations RERBEBECEER 195,053 (30,531)
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEED - 28,604
Adjustments for: A
Interest income from bank deposits RITHFREEZFE
WA (6,719) (14,359)
Finance costs MEKAK 10,965 5,599
Share of results of joint ventures HEELEXE 1,757 1,479
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BB KR ETE 40,396 36,190
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments a7 & BB 5H 7,349 7,490
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERRE
equipment (Mas) /E59E (2 25
Write off of property, plant and equipment EN YR 4,731 3,024
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—&&E D E K - (17,300)
Reserve released to profit and loss on obtaining REG— 5 &b 21T 51
control of a joint venture BOI=HBe% 2 [ (2,051) -
Reserve released on disposal of joint ventures Hj%é\ S ERERRH |40
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 6 BT 2 Al Es 4,470) _
Bargain purchase gain arising on business EBEHELECEERE
combination g - (3,209)
Fair value loss/(gain) on re-measurement of BEFE—AERELR
equity interests in a joint venture Bz AT EEEBR/
(Maa) 20 (10,051)
Fair value loss/(gain) on trading securities BEZEH A TEESE
/ (Wez) 114 (345)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HE ISR E M (5,605) _
Increase in fair value of investment properties BEWE AT EELN (3,443) (27,973)
Bad debts written off B H R R 3,048 =
(Reversal)/provision of inventories, net FE (BREE) |fEEF
| (9,998) 8,418
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEVEENR (222,497) -
Provision/(reversal) of allowance for bad and RS %/
doubtful debts (214 ) 6,000 (111)
Share-based payments VAR A7 A+ 1,666 5,483
Operating cash flows before movements in working &8 & & AT
capital B[ E T 16,314 (6,137)
Increase in inventories FEEM (7,079) (17,069)
Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures fEl & &R ERIBR D = 4128
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & E A FEMER SR (#540)
e vs (16,445) 13,780
Increase in advances to customers in margin financing 2t T RESREETF 2
HFRIL AN (75,706) (29,090)
Increase in loans receivable e & FRIE (486,190) (73,006)
Increase in bank balances and cash — held on behalf — §8 77 45 & & 38 £ 32 /i
of customers —REPHE (2,321) (8,632)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 I H 1 BR 5B (16,016) (28,359)
Increase in trading securities BEEEAHE (6,989) (9,200)
Cash used in operations AREeEBENE e (594,432) (153,585)
Overseas tax paid B RBINEIE (13,818) (2,827)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBNEH (1,961) (1,547)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES AREEEHHREFHE (610,211) (157,959)
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2015 2014
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
Bt F#T FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEEHB AT 52
e 44 10,154 (29,540)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling interests S U B8 JE eG4 25 (27,851) -
Purchase of club debentures BEEHES (674) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BEKRE (72,112) (35,746)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEIHEERE - (59,637)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale & AT S E 1R A e
investments 65,242 -
Increase in restricted bank deposit PR &IER1T RO (8,111) 58
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposit BIKIRRITER (M),
S - 57,641
Interest received from bank deposit RERITEFHEWFE 5,703 13,343
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE BB KR ER
equipment Wz 540 6
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HE—ALEhERE = 26,220
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HE &R & EWE 286,843 =
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HEMBAR FILEZ
& FE 43 (6,920) =
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES JRE,/ (FI1?) % &5 &
H&RiE 252,814 (27,655)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REES
Proceeds from issue of new shares under share option #5158 i # 51 £ 2175 A& {0
scheme W 11,433 18,070
Share issue expenses R BEITRS - (455)
New bank loans obtained EEMRITER 275,000 485,591
Repayment of bank loans RITEFER (2,755) (554,420)
Repayment to joint ventures BRTAERSE (6,221) (18,507)
Interest paid BERFE (10,965) (5,599)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2RB, (i} ) st &iEE)
H&F8 266,492 (75,320)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IR& RIS ZEMR L BE (90,905) (260,934)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRERFLEEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 562,362 823,257
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ~ $MEEZEZFHEHIEL R
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HeZEYZRE (1,432) 39
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR, HRIBERFLZEY
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH ENSRITHEMBRRIRE 470,025 562,362
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AR O IS H = MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 1231 H L F &

GENERAL

Symphony Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and the principal place of business of the Company
is located on the 10th Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 King's
Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group remain to be provision
of financial services (including securities brokerage, margin
financing, underwriting and placing, consulting and money
lending), property investment and holding, management and
operation of outlet mall in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"), trademark rights licensing, trading and retailing
as well as duty-free business. The principal activities of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs —
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2015
The Group has adopted the following amendments and
interpretation for the first time for the current year's
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2010-
(Amendments) 2012 Cycle

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2011-
(Amendments) 2013 Cycle

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans:

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Contributions

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments and interpretation has no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

— Rk

FEEEARARNRBEREFMKL AR
HREREREEAR ERONEBHER S
FiBERAR ([HBRAT]) £ o ANAF
##=JE A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda- £ = Z & #1th 25
AEBIAEZBSI05EEAEL0E -

AEENEMTIBXBEBRIRHES R
B(EEEFEL RESRE BHKE
S HARKE) MERBERFEDNE

EENMEERTEARKME ([FE])K
B RRUARETRE BENTER
EHMEB - ETEMBRANTIEXBE
SIAB FE41 -

RMBEVBRERLN ([FE
AR &A1)

(A) RFHETEIETEBMBRE
#A|-72015F1 1B EH
AEBERAFENGEMBHREE
RN T ENER] Re iz o

BRPBREED 20106 E2012FBH

(BFT%) ZFEWE
BERBREED 20115 E2013FEH
(EFTA) ZFENE
BRGER REBAETE:
FIORMETR  EEHEK
(2011%)

BTN XEraR B E AN IRANZ R A
B TSRS E NGRS TR
RERTRERTE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015412 A31H It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

60

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -

EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2015 (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 201 1-
2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” to clarify how the
gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
are treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model. The carrying amount of the asset is restated
to revalued amount. The accumulated depreciation
may be eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount
may be adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and
the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The adoption of the amendments to HKAS 16 has
no impact on these financial statements as the latter
treatment is consistent with the manner in which the
Group has previously dealt with revaluations of its
property, plant and equipment.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) — Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments permit contributions that are
independent of the number of years of service to be
recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered instead of
allocating the contributions to periods of service.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group has no defined
benefit plans.

2. FMBEVBRERA([FE
MEdREEA]) (&)

(A)

RG] S ETEHUER

H#A-R2015F1A18 &3
(48)

2010F FE2012F AR R2011FEE
20135 BHZ EEHE

WEEE 2 BERF B2 ZEEE

¥ %18 B A OB 2 m¢ﬁ¢
B BT HAEEBSHE
AIE 1655 (% BERBE] 2E:]
AUBEEREREHEAEEE
HELKZRAWEZEELIRN - BER
HEDEEHERE TUAES - 25137
EnEHEEAKREME - XE A%
HEREEGEEREAE B2
RETHE MBAFEAARER
ENEIREE R R 2R EEERE
REEZRZZ8E-

RMEBLEGHERFEIHE 2 EFTA
HZEVBHREGELE RARL
BzEETANERRERTEERY
X BEERERBEZEGBZIA B

EEETTEEFE1IFHINETE (2011
F) —REBFE: ESH
ZEER] AT RN R AR TS« BRI A
R RS R R 2 R R EDRAR
TSRS - AL FEAS R D IR E R F
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RO SRR GE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015 12A31H It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN
ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) ~ Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’

Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

RMBEVBREEN ([FE
MRS EA) (&)

(B) EREME R RAEKBHEET EIE

A ERMBREEL
AN BE AR BB IS SRR B REEY
el eI BB BRELANE T
VARR AR - 1B i R A 28 B AN 5% (8] 1 R 3R
AITER AR ©

BREMBRSED  2012FF20145BHH

CoES F R
ESEENZE REIDY
HiETA

B ERRI6R BENEREH
REBGEN  ARIAE
EISFMET A

BT EL BURBHRROERE
EHMETA

EEMBRELER SRIA?

F0%% (2014F)

EEMBRERER REEAHBEA
FIORRBBET AECEZHEN
AR F8% BEHERRN
EHEN

EEUBREED WEAEEBERN
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
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REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 -
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAEEVRREEL ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AR R ZERA]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EiE#{EEKREHBFT E1E

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if the objective of the entity’s business model
is both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.
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REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply all of the
principles of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations when it
acquires an interest in a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in that standard. The principles
of HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation of a
joint operation if an existing business as defined in that
standard is contributed by at least one of the parties.

2.

RMBEVBRERN ([FE
MEdREEA]) (&)

(B)

E AR 1B i R & GBI HiETEE
A EERMBREEL (F)

BB R EERFEUE (2014

¥) —2HMTR(4)
BEMBREEINERERE LS
AHERIEISR AR B BEER D
BRFTERE ERERSRATEER
SINBmZzEmMBERIN ZRER
ERRESHREZATEEES SR

REMEE B mER RIFLEES
BEEAR S AL AIERIGR - tHh

BEVBREENFRFREETES
AHEREISRIVERATREELS
BMEEZRE-

BEMBRERRFI0REEES
ERFE28FEIIETTH — REZHRG
ENTHEEPEZEMEESL EZ

REETRERRAEBEAFNA
%ﬁ%ﬁ%x&Aﬁ% TR

ZWEREBEE - ERZH 1B
% AEBREHMENEE R
2 ERGERTER —BEBHNE
ERlE /,\EytTmEﬁTxé%ﬁAé%fﬁ
F o e N R 2 KRR A
B8 e

EEBYBHHREERF11RAIIETE —
KFEE EX B ) Bl B

ZEEIREEERBRESLEBN
B MxAEXBEKEBYHR
SRANEIRRBAHARE 2 EH
B QIR RZERN AR -
ZEAMREZREXZGRED T
EN RIRBHM RS EREINR R
ARSI A EXBRER-



FEEBEARA R 2015FERE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO SR T M 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015 12A31H It F &
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REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AR R ZEA]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EiE#{ERKREHRBFT E1E

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above Standards and
amendments to existing Standards to the Group.
The Group has so far concluded that the application
of these new pronouncements will have no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

66

€

NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622 regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for
the Company for this financial year. In addition, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) regarding annual accounts have
been amended with reference to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622. Accordingly, the
presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 have been changed
to comply with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(A)

(B)

©

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars, while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”) for the convenience of the users of these
consolidated financial statements, as the Company is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

68

(A)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(A)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted
for in accordance with the transition requirements in
the standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon
first application of the standard. Subsequent revisions
to estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

70

(A)

(B)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

° Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of

the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

° The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

° The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

° Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

(CONTINUED)

(C) JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the net assets of the joint
ventures. When the Group's share of losses of a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that joint venture.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
ventures. The investor's share in the joint ventures’
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
ventures. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in that joint venture. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses in accordance with its contractually
conferred rights and obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. EEEFEE ()

(D) GOODWILL (D) &

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire
over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregation of the fair value of
consideration paid, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss
on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired.
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(D) GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

(E)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset's carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is net of
estimated customer returns, discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfers
of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time
that goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Commission income is recognised when the services
on which the commissions are earned are provided in
accordance with the agreed terms.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements, which is in general on a straight-line basis
over the life of the agreements.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(E)

(F)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, except for contingent rental income which is
recognised when it arises.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised
as income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal
mandate when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The building component of owner-occupied leasehold
properties is stated at valuation less accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the reporting
period. Increases in value arising on revaluation
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of properties
revaluation reserve. Decreases in value arising on
revaluation are first offset against increases on earlier
valuations in respect of the same property and
thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any subsequent
increases are recognised in profit or loss up to the
amount previously charged and thereafter to the
properties revaluation reserve.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained profits.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(F)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The annual depreciation rates of property, plant and

equipment are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of useful lives and
in Hong Kong and the PRC

Buildings Shorter of useful lives and

the remaining lease term

the remaining lease term
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives and

the remaining lease term

Plant and machinery 9% - 45%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 20%
Motor vehicles 16% - 20%
Vessel 10%

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceed and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.
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(G)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation, but not held
for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. These included land held for
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at reporting date and their
fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of property,
plant and equipment because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the investment property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. EEEFEE ()

(H) LEASING (H #E

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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(H) LEASING (CONTINUED)

(n

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment

properties under the fair value model.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN

GOODWILL)

(i)  Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
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4. EEEFEE ()

(CONTINUED)
(1) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN () EREE(BREEN) (8)
GOODWILL) (CONTINUED)
(i)  Acquired intangible assets (Continued) (i) PGB EEEE (£)
Trademarks B1E
The trademarks are the intangible assets with mEeEERFERFHNER
indefinite useful lives that are carried at cost less BEWIERKAR R REEE
any accumulated impairment losses. HI| B o
(ii)  Impairments (i) JE

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(r)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be
increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have
resulted had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately.
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J)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that year,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (translation reserve).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation, of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.
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(K) BORROWING COSTS

(L)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

(i)  Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(M)

INCOME TAX
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
income tax expense” as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affect neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(M)

86

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(M)

(N)

(0)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

CLUB DEBENTURES
Club debentures are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

88

(P)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. The Group’s
financial assets are classified into the categories
of financial assets as fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments, of which
interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

90

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including amounts due from
joint ventures, trade and other receivables,
advances to customers in margin financing,
loans receivable and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of

financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in investments revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

92

Financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade and loans receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade,
loans and other receivables and advances
to customers in margin financing, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade, loan or other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if
an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred, as liabilities measured at
amortised cost. They are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. EEERTEE (§)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (P) &RTH (%)

(iii)  Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(Q) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share options reserve within equity.
Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account
by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(CONTINUED)

(Q) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the Group
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
services. The fair value of goods or services received is
recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share
based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods
or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value
of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until
the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement,
the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with any
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(R)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment under cost model;

° prepaid lease payments;

° investments in subsidiaries and joint venture;
and

° club debentures.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

o8

(R)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL) (CONTINUED)

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash
generating unit (see Note 4(d)), discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating
unit.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(T)

(V)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

RELATED PARTIES
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

100

(U) RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group's parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(U) RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

V)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

° that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

° children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

° dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS (OR DISPOSAL
GROUPS) HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is
highly probable. The non-current assets, except for
certain assets as explained below, or disposal groups,
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs of disposal. Deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries and joint venture)
and investment properties, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in Note 4.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(V) NON-CURRENT ASSETS (OR DISPOSAL
GROUPS) HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographic area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-
tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the
post-tax gain or loss recognised in the measurement
to fair value less costs of disposal, or on the disposal,
of the assets or disposal groups constituting the
discontinued operation.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

102

4. EEESHER (8)

(V) HERENERDHEE (IHE
HARERIEEEETE (F)

ERIEREXRE RA KB EBOARK
*'“ﬁH%%&ﬁﬁmiTﬁ$%
BEMEBBREED CRIEEER
BB T R X R L E XD
wE K —BHEBNEBEBK
REEBWEEE KRBT —
B R—HEREEMREON B

NCIIE

HEB DR ULL %%W'%
AEFERBBER2N —HE—%
B ZoRERCRIEREEBNR
MmN BB R EAFEERE
o B AN R AT R R B R T 18 0 ) 2K
B A hEBRRLEERBENEE
B E AR BB AT RE R MV BR AR 18 M e K
g e

BEEHFIET R AT AR E =
B EEKIR

ERAASEZ @TBRE ERAHEX
fHEMEESMzZEERARZREEE
TTHIER ~ fEFT R R R - fEFF RARBRR IR
BELERIEMBSEMIEATRE -
ERGEREZZ[TER -

EEt RABBERER Ty A B E B o 5
R EsthEtETEX —HE AREET A
st 2 AR A ERIEE]  MIEFT R
SR RARREAR  BIRANAELET R
RIR A AR B BT o



FEEBEARAR 2015FERSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO SRR SE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group has developed criteria which require
judgements to determine whether a property
qualifies as an investment property. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other
assets used and service provided. If an entity
provides ancillary services to the occupants of a
property it holds, an entity treats such a property
as investments property only if the services are
insignificant to the arrangement as a whole.

Included in the Group’s prepaid lease payments
and buildings of approximately HKD261,407,000
and HKD319,634,000 are the land and building
portions, respectively, of an outlet mall in the
PRC. Based on the mode of operation of the
outlet mall, in particular, that income earned is
largely dependent on the performance of the
retail business of the occupants and the Group
has the power to make significant operating and
financing decisions regarding the operation of
the Property, management is of the opinion that
the Property is in the nature of owner-occupied
properties under existing use for accounting
purposes.

(i)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

104

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Income and other taxes

The Group is subject to income and other
taxes in a number of jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Transactions and
calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Trademarks

The trademarks have been granted for periods
ranging between 7 to 15 years by the relevant
government agency with the option of renewal
when expire. The trademarks may be renewed
indefinitely at little or no cost to the Group.
The Group intends to renew the trademarks
indefinitely and evidence support its ability to do
so. As a result, the trademarks are assessed as
having indefinite useful lives.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning

the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year:

(i)

Estimated impairment of interests in joint
ventures

The determination of whether interests in joint
ventures are impaired requires an estimation of
the share of present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the
investees and the proceeds on ultimate disposal
of the investments, and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. Adequate
impairment loss had been recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amounts exceed the
carrying amount of the interests in joint ventures.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
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(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included
in the Group’s financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used
in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

° Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used
that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value measurement (Continued)
The Group measures a number of items at fair
value:

° Revalued land and buildings — Property,
Plant and Equipment (Note 13);

o Investment properties (Note 14);

o Available-for-sale investments (Note 18);

o Trading securities (Note 24); and

° Financial instruments (Note 33).

For more detailed information in relation to the
fair value measurement of the items above,
please refer to the applicable notes.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of
inventories at each reporting date to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of
cost and net realisable value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 4(0).
Management estimates the net realisable value
based on the current market situation and
historical experience on similar inventories. Any
change in the assumptions would increase or
decrease the amount of inventories write-down or
the related reversals of write-down and affect the
Group'’s profit and net asset value.
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5.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)
(iv) Trademarks
Trademarks that are acquired through
business combination are capitalised on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
These trademarks are valued on acquisition
using a discounted cash flow methodology and
we make assumptions and estimates regarding
future revenue growth, prices, marketing
costs and economic factors in valuing them.
These assumptions reflect the directors’ best
estimates but these estimates involve inherent
uncertainties, which may not be controlled by the
directors.

Upon acquisition the directors assess the useful
economic life of the trademarks. In arriving at
the conclusion that a trademark has an indefinite
life, the directors consider the fact that the Group
is expected to hold and support the trademarks
for an indefinite period, through spending on
consumer marketing and promotional support,
which is deducted in arriving at revenue. The
trademarks are established over many years
and continue to provide considerable economic
benefits. The directors also consider factors such
as the Group’s ability to continue to protect the
legal rights that arise from these trademarks
indefinitely or the absence of any regulatory,
economic or competitive factors that could
truncate their lives.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)
(iv) Trademarks (Continued)

(v)

A strategic decision to withdraw marketing
support from trademarks or the weakening
trademarks’ appeal through changes in
customer preferences might result in the
directors concluding that the trademarks’ lives
had become finite. Were intangible assets to
be assigned a definite life, a charge would be
recorded that would reduce reported profit
from operations and reduce the value of the
assets reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances
for trade and other receivables by assessing
the recoverability based on credit history and
prevailing market conditions. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed. The Group reassesses
the impairment allowances at the end of each
reporting period.

5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEAR
BIEZRIE (48)

(B) fhstFAEABIERMEZRE

(&)

(iv) E#E (&)
REERTEHEH RN S
EEXRNEENBEHEER
HMmEISSER SN TS
HEESLBERFHEAEE
2 o W B E R EHEE
FH - RSS2 X AR K ik
B LA B 2 5 M A BE AR
BHMBRARRANRTEE B
o

(v ESRRMEKHERE
AEERBEERERRITH
RS B 5 K H At e YR IR Y
AR EINE - e fbET B 2 KAl
FEWRIRR R E R - EREE
et RHIE - 8 S F BN

FLE 5 N E A FE W R IR A IR A
o WIEHE 5 K H b EUGRIA
FY AT EI K BB R SE AR -
EHEZRReTEES REM
FEUGIRRRE &8 &
a2 E HREARERE - A&
B & s R E R A RE
B
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision-maker,
being the directors of the Company, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment focuses
specifically on the assessment of operating performance
in each operating unit, which is the basis upon which the
Group is organised. Each operating unit is distinguished
based on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group. Financial information on
segment results and segment assets are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker while no information of
segment liabilities is provided.

During the year, the Group identified, among others, a new
business segment of Duty Free business in Taiwan acquired
by the Group in September 2014, resulting in a change
in composition of reportable operating segments and is
separately assessed by the chief operating decision-maker
(the “CODM").

Furthermore, the CODM reassessed that the available-for-
sale investments and trading securities acquired by the
Group in 2014 were directly attributed to financial services
segment, resulting from a change in resource allocation of
reportable operating segments.

S ERE #

AABERALELFERREM2HRTEEL
BRRE (AARARER)NEHZERSE
BEERARRERBRNESEEMLE
RENZ BELEEMNRERIRE
BRI MED EERAKEN
AHEDHE TEERETBRLERRE
P pmEEn - EREXEDHREE
DEHNPBERNEER AT REERRE
R A TBEREDHEF -

FR-AEEEHER (EPEHE)R2014F
9 A AR BI1E 5 B FT UL IS S 11 2675 2 3 56 7%
7 ER - BRI AL ) B AEK IR
FREELERRE ([TBLERKE])
B FHE -

AN EREERREC BN ARA
BELEDMZERIELRES K&
BR2014FIRBZAIHHEERENRER
EHFIDEZRRBNEBIRG & -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Continuing operations:
- Retailing and sourcing — retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and

accessories;

- Branding — development and management of “PONY”
brand;

- Property investment and holding;
- Outlet malls;

- Financial services; and

Duty free.

Corresponding items of segment information as at 31
December 2014, of which five reportable operating segments
were previously presented, have been restated for consistent
presentation with current year's segment information.

SEREF (48)

AEBRBERBUHIRELEFE8E 2 A i

EREEH BT :

BB

- TERRM-RIERE KRS R
RS AR R RIS

~  RIEEE-HERER[PONY] &
X

- PERARBEDE:

—  REES

- SRRE: R

- SBEH

120144128318 - HEE R 2 BRIE B

7
(AP RERHRELLNFEAME 2 E
TEIAEBARBE 2 DBEHZ25]—E -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

6. SEEF (&)

(A) SHEHMEXRFERES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AR Ty IR Al 5 o S TR AN S (B
results by reportable segment: ERERFEEDT:
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE2015¢12A31HIEEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE m R REME BEERE SRR RBER &8
(Note)
(BaE)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FiER FET TR TET FET
REVENUE £
External sales HIMNEE 155,267 24,841 34,042 38,880 92,868 5,169 351,067
Inter-segment sales D E - - 1,872 = = = 1,872
155,267 24,841 35,914 38,880 92,868 5,169 352,939
Segment profit/(loss) PEEF/ (BE) 24,663 193,938 23,506 (63,341) 58,720 (13,592) 223,894
Unallocated income RABKA
~ Interest income —FIEHA 6,719
— Translation reserve —HERERERE
released on disposal of FRIRIE R GA R
joint ventures 2,051
— Gain on disposal of —HERBA R
subsidiaries 155
— Others —Hft 1,011
Central administrative costs RRITHAA (37,020)
Share of results of joint FRBhEEE
ventures (1,757)
Profit before income tax BRETE R R Z AR
eXpenses 195,053
Note: Hist:
The revenue from outlet malls B4 512 BEIMA
segment is analysed as ST :
follows:
Gross revenue from T EHE BRI
concessionaire sales 263,601
Commission income from R EHEMGRE KA

concessionaire sales

38,880
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. FEEHFE (F)

(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (A)
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated)

Property

Retailing investment
and sourcing Branding  and holding
NERER

TERRR N HE RENE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TRT TAT TAT

DTHMEXERES (&)

B ZE2014F12A31R LFE (B &
511)

Financial
Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
RS SRRB RHES &a

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR FAL TAT TR

REVENUE BEH
External sales HINEE 151,552 42,748 15,567 30,419 21,936 1,609 263,831
Inter-segment sales DEEHE - - 716 = = = 716
151,552 42,748 16,283 30,419 21,936 1,609 264,547
Segment (loss)/profit A (F8) /57 10,338 (5,406) 36,969 (58,970) 9,015 (1,199) (9,253)
Unallocated income VAl ON
— Interest income —FIEWA 14,359
— Gain on disposal of —HE-AE RN
a joint venture 17,300
— Fair value gain on —ENifE— A%
re-measurement of rEZREZ
equity in a joint venture AFEERE 10,051
— Bargain purchase gain ~EBARELEL
arising on business HERENE
combination 3,209
— Others —Hft 1,089
Central administrative costs HRITERBY AN (65,807)
Share of results of joint HEELERR
ventures (1,479)
Loss before income tax credit — BRETEHE 2 AIEE (30,531)
Note: st
The revenue from outlet malls — BAFHHT 2 HAIMA
segment is analysed as AT :
follows:
Gross revenue from R HEERA
concessionaire sales 207,990
Commission income from RETEHEMBRSKA
concessionaire sales 30,419
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. FEEH ()
(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (A) SEREHEBEREE(E)
(CONTINUED)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are E SRS FTBUR A S B 25T
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment K- DEHEF (BB IESHH
profit/(loss) represents the profit earned or the loss FEESR AP RITBEA  FEUA
incurred by each segment without allocation of central REEE S D3RO 7 B -
administrative costs, interest income, translation HEMNBRARNS HE—G&hE
reserve released on disposal of joint ventures, gain W BFTE—GECEZREZ
on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on disposal of a joint NEEENZE EHFEHEEZEE
venture, fair value gain on re-measurement of equity BEWRE LA EDEEEMESH
in a joint venture, bargain purchase gain arising on BFSFTEERNESE WHERTE
business combination and share of results of joint TEERRENGTE AUADEER
ventures. This is the measure reported to the chief Nt RE -
operating decision-maker for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.
(B) SEGMENT ASSETS (B) HEMEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by TREVAEBIZAREDHNEE
reportable segment: ST
Segment assets FEEE
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD'000
THT FHE T
(Restated)
(BE7)
Retailing and sourcing T B R 85,781 73,905
Branding n hE T E 159,169 230,095
Property investment and holding MERERFEEYME 1,463,242 1,487,023
Outlet malls S 622,362 673,451
Financial services & B AR 867,921 315,076
Duty free EXEi 18,324 16,187
Total segment assets DEfEEBLE 3,216,799 2,795,737
Unallocated A 507,814 692,679
Consolidated assets REEE 3,724,613 3,488,416
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(B) SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

©

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances

and allocating resources between segments, all assets

are allocated to reportable segments other than

interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets, tax

recoverable, club debentures, restricted bank deposit

and bank balances and cash.

6. SEBEF (&)

(B) SEREE (&)

RURERSERE RN D HBESEE
B BRReEPENER REHE
BE - ERTIE  GES  REIRT
T BEERRITERRIBITEHRR
WMEIN FIBEEGRAIMERD S
paN v

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) HipsmIp&EH
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE2015F12A31HIEEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEHRR SRR REME BSRER SRR RBER &8
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET FET TET TET FET TET TET
Amounts included in the STAGEDET]
measure of segment profit/ (BRI BEE
(loss) or segment assets: A -
Capital expenditure (Note) BERRY (f1:t) 3,904 329 33,042 24,592 2,993 7,252 72,112
Depreciation of property, plant  #91% - BERREHE
and equipment 3,103 386 7,674 25,385 413 3,435 40,396
Amortisation of prepaid lease  TAf F & FRIB 4
payments - - - 7,349 - - 7,349
Increase in fair value of REMERTEEEM
investment properties - - 3,443 - - - 3,443
Provision of allowance for bad ~ RIZFREH A1
and doubtful debts - 6,000 - - - - 6,000
Reversal/(provision) of BEEEED/ (BHE)
allowance for inventories, bl
net 9,990 1,135 - - = (1,127) 9,998
Gain on disposal of intangible & & & E I zE
assets - 222,497 - - - - 222,497
Interest income FISMA - = = - 63,902 = 63,902
Interest expense FERAX - - 10,965 = = = 10,965
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated)

6. SEREAF (&)

(C) HibFEBEFE (4])

B ZE2014F12A31B LFE (B &

31)
Property
Retailing and investment Financial
sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE il HEME RS SRRE EHEH A
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT FHT FHT THT FTHT T THT
Amounts included in the A EABET
profit/(loss) measure of (BR)RAHEE
segment loss or segment HE :
assets:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARZ (A12) 2878 1,054 1,636 23877 79 5,507 35,746
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% - BB R ERE
and equipment 2,474 337 4910 27,383 168 918 36,190
Amortisation of prepaid lease  TAf 8 & FiIB#
payments - - - 7,490 - - 7,490
Increase in fair value of REMEATEBEEM
investment properties - - 27,973 - - - 27,973
Reversal of allowance for bad 5332 B {85 o] ¢
and doubtful debts - 111 - - - - 111
Reversal of allowance for FEEEFERE
inventories, net 8418 - - - - - 8418
Interest income FlSHA = - = = 7,958 = 7,958
Interest expense FERAX - - 5,575 - 24 - 5,599
Note: Capital expenditure includes additions to property, plant and Kiit: BARASZBREREME BERZE-

equipment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(D) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue from external customers by

geographical location of the delivery destinations

and

information about its non-current assets by

geographical location of the assets is detailed below:

6. SEBEF (&)

(D) HEEH
AEEBINBEFHIRSIREXE A
it DB R EIFRBEEEHEE
EMERDENFHIBTOT

Revenue from Non-current assets

external customers located (Note (i)
BiMEpE R EFRBEERES (HF0))
2015 2014 2015 2014
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET AT FET T
(restated)
(BE7)
The People’s Republic of China HEE AR A 220,944 190,067 1,607,197 1,697,936
Taiwan =) 5,169 1,609 8,307 7,565
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) BB (REH) 100,113 29,406 478,101 531,614
United States of America E3E] 905 6,341 - 82,808
South America (Note (i) Bx (Haz0) = 3,331 = =
Other European countries (Note (1) EMBUNER (#722()) - 452 = =
Other Asia countries (Note (i) Hi MR (Frat() 23,189 27,380 = =
Others (Note (i) Bt (Ha0) 747 5,245 147,047 119,376
351,067 263,831 2,240,652 2,439,299
Notes: Hiat -

(1)

(ii)

The geographical information for the revenue attributed to
each country is not available and the cost to capture such
information would be excessive.

Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets, tax
recoverable, club debentures and restricted bank deposit.

0] ENERERERNKARS BE2
51| S B B 2R AR WA R 3 R B

(iy FERBEETBERAELEMNER 7
HHERE EERBEE  BEKIA
BAES REZREIRITER
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(E) INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Revenue from customers of corresponding years

6. SEEF (&)

(E) FEEF&H
KEMEFRIEAEEAZEEEIOR

contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group is A EREPHRALT
as follows:
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FETT
Customer A (Note) BFEA(H1:E) N/A
~ER 29,238

No revenue from transactions with a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Note: Revenue from retailing and sourcing segment

7. FINANCE COSTS

BE20155F12A31H LG E - #fEs
BEMERPHRBBAGAREEE
ERER10%EA £ o

Mt REZERRED BOBA

7. BAEBRE

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FETT

Interest on bank borrowings RITERHE 10,965 5,599

Bank borrowings amounting to HKD173,002,000 (2014:
HKD465,336,000) contain a repayment on demand clause
or are repayable within one year.
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INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

The amount of income tax (expense)/credit relating to
continuing operations in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

FrigH (XH) #H%

FERERBERANEEHELLEXZBHM
B/ () [ EeewEiE:

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHET FHE T
Current tax AHAFIE
Hong Kong BB
— current year —KREE (11,660) (898)
— Over provision in prior years —BAEFEBREEE - 461
Other jurisdictions HA R AR
— Enterprise income tax — current year —EMBH-—AFE (6,818) (2,429)
— Enterprise income tax —EMRBR-—BAEFE
— under provision in prior years BETRE (5,081) =
— Other — current year —Hfth—KREZF (4,869) -
(28,428) (2,866)
Deferred tax (Note 27) BERIR (Mi327)
— current year —REEZ (10,547) 4,999
Income tax (expense)/credit FrS® (2iH) % (38,975) 2,133

HONG KONG TAX
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

In previous years, the Inland Revenue Department
(“IRD") issued a number of multiple protective profits tax
assessments for additional profits tax totaling HKD521 million
to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company relating
to the years of assessment 2001/2002 to 2009/2010 i.e.
for the nine financial years ended 31 December 2010. The
Group had lodged objections against the IRD in respect of all
of these multiple protective profits tax assessments. Based
on the mode of operations and activities of the subsidiaries
and the merit of the Group’s position as assessed by its
tax advisor, the Directors are of the opinion that the group
companies concerned are not subject to any potential
additional Hong Kong profits tax.

EEHIE
E BB TR M (8 FE NG 5T R %
MIRTH R16.5%51 5 o

REEFEE BBER(IRBKR])
2001/2002£2009/20104F [£ ( Bl # £2010
F12A31H IENERBRFE) R B
L& 521,000,000/ RIS AR A
AETE2EMBARZELTZEZERE
HENEHFAT - AKREERMEZEZE
REEFSHIRARERHIRERE R
BRASEETIBARZEBEELY
A8 X Ko gt 2 5= [ AR 00 8 L 5 s TR ) YA
EERREENEERRBEERERMR
EAEERINRIEH
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INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT
(CONTINUED)

HONG KONG TAX (CONTINUED)

As set out in Note 43(a), in September 2015, the Group
disposed of its 100% equity interest of Grand Golden
Enterprises Limited (“Grand Golden”), the holding company
of the wholly-owned subsidiaries referred to above, to an
independent third party purchaser. The purchaser has full
knowledge of the above tax disputes with the IRD and tax
positions of Grand Golden and its subsidiaries and agreed
not to pursue any claims against the Group for any loss
arising from the eventual outcome of the tax disputes.

The Directors are of the view that the Group no longer has
any potential additional profits tax exposure in respect of the
years of assessment 2001/2002 to 2009/2010 following the
disposal of Grand Golden.

PRC TAX

All group companies operating in the PRC are subject to
the applicable tax rate of 25% during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014, except for an acquired subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in property
investment in the PRC, which is subject to the applicable tax
rate of 10% on its gross rental income earned in the PRC,
based on the existing legislation, interpretation and practices
in respect thereof.

Up to the date of these financial statements, the above
acquired subsidiary has not filed the tax returns for corporate
income tax in the PRC in respect of its income derived
from the PRC. The PRC tax authority has the right to levy
penalty for late filing of tax returns. The amount of such
potential penalty cannot be reliably estimated as the range of
which is wide and therefore no provision was made in these
consolidated financial statements. Based on the experience
of the Group’s management, the amount of such penalty, if
any, will not be material to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. In addition, pursuant to the agreement in respect
of acquisition of that subsidiary, the vendor has undertaken
to indemnify the Group for any liability arising from the above
late filing of tax returns prior to the completion date of the
acquisition.

Friesi (ZH) % (48)

EEHIE (8)

A BT FE43(a) BT EL - 2015498 - A
EEM—HBUEF=FERHEER
Grand Golden Enterprises Limited ([ Grand
Golden ] - HE A& Ll 2 &EMB AR ZERA
7)) 2 =Rk - ERE 2 EAME Ll BT
%52 FiiEF % A K Grand Golden 5 £ &
REIMBBER WRETEHE @RS
FRIBEEREEZEMNBERAAEE
REEMRE-

EE=R A AEENHEGrand Goldenfg i
T H 52001/2002Z22009/20104F £ HY F4 75
ST B TR B BB ANF SRR o

FEBIE

# £2015%F k201412 H31H IEF & -
RABRZEENMASEERARARERARE
25% MR - MR RN BB AL
YR BEREYEIRE KB R RRIN
RIBEBRITER BBNEH ZAFA
AERFERNANES WA LRIZBERNR
K10% BN BIIA

BENFWBERR B Dk iEai B
RBEHARER P BEESHRARZHE
EEMGHRMARPARE - Fit - PEB B
[68 78 12 Tt S B B S M A5 R R B B DA B K o
ERBES RS REEBERZ M EER
it Bt WEN U EBM B RER B EH
BE - REAEEEEENER  BHEIIN
() 2 RBUAEENGE B ®RRM
BATERN - WIN RIBEAKBEZIE R
AN B C A BEARER WS
FIRZER B HART A L BAk K 3 A A ER $R
Bmal B ERMEE-
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8. Fife®i(ZH) #H% (&)

Hith

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Income tax (expense)/credit relating to continuing operations
for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before
income tax credit per the consolidated statement of

H i R R PrE £ W IR - Jh kA8 R 7]
ERIHHBITHREGE -

ERAFERBREEBZMER (),
B EFe2HRaERPRRAEHE
SRR, (BB HERMT -

comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHET FHE T
Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense)/credit BRETEEL () /& Al
wHlL (ER) 195,053 (30,531)
Tax (expense)/credit calculated at Hong Kong REBFER (BAX),/
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% HeME16.5%:TE (32,184) 5,038
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax NEMRBMENRSZ 2
purposes M (10,107) (11,950)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax purposes — EZERFREIUW A 2
M & 8,612 5,897
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures hHEEhEEE L
s & (290) (244)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIS BB Z
M - (2,158)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised — #@E R ERHISE B 2
M & 2,011 =
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating 7 £ fth 134 # % 48 & K
in other jurisdictions HEB AR TRFE 72 (1,936) 5,089
(Under)/over provision in respect of prior years BEFE (BETR)
RRE R (5,081) 461
Income tax (expense)/credit FTSH () e (38,975) 2,133

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred
tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s properties has
been charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income (Note 27).

RERSITGEMNSRN FHERAKHE
VEMELEHIACEZ B EbE2mias
fOER ;AT A (HEEE27) o
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

9. FERH A (FHE)

(A) OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (FROM (A) HibW ARz (REFEESE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS) E3))
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHT FHEIT
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—&a&FE ks - 17,300
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A mU S 4,470 =
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment W as 2 =
Bargain purchase gain arising on XBAMHELEZEE
business combination BE W = 3,209
Fair value gain on re-measurement of equity EHFFE—A S ER
interests in a joint venture f&E 2 A FEEKRES = 10,051
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & AR ERE s
investments 5,605 -
Interest income from bank deposit IRTTIERELE ZF B YA 6,719 14,359
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEELEEWZE 222,497 =
Reversal of allowance for bad and RIEBREEEE
doubtful debts - 111
Net gain on trading securities R B HHF W= 161 345
Translation reserves released on obtaining ~ ERS ¥ —A &%
control of a joint venture 7 RE B B R R
bE A 2,051 =
Government grant* AT Bh* 1,695 =
Others Hfth 7,238 28,954
250,438 74,329

*

The Group received grants from the relevant PRC government

authorities in support of the Group’s retail business in the PRC.
There were no unfulfilled conditions to receive the grants.
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
(CONTINUED)

(B) OTHER EXPENSES (FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS)

HEEBAR

A 2015FE RS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=p/=N
wn /o

I ¥ R R By 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

9. FERH A (FHE) (&)

(B) HhX REREEERFE)

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FHE T
Bad debts written off B i sE =R 3,048 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEMF - BRE R
equipment FiEEE - 25
Write off of property, plant and equipment  #13 - R E= M 2% i8R 4,731 3,024
Provision of allowance for bad and RIBREEEE F5
doubtful debts, net
— Trade receivables —Z F IR 6,000 =
Fair value loss on re-measurement of BT E—AEEDN
equity interests in a joint venture It A EEEE 20 -
Translation reserves released on disposal of A HE & &b ¥
joint ventures i R E 5 R = 1,430
Others Ei 1,836 3,050
15,635 7,529
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

124

(CONTINUED)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HAS BEEN

ARRIVED AT AFTER CHARGING:

9. FERH, (FHE) (&)

(C) RBEH
(E518)

BEEEBHERRM
SR TIEIREENR:

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10(a)) EF8e (Mi£10@)) 6,393 8,664
Other employee costs E g B A 65,150 61,737
Retirement benefits schemes contributions, R {RE R 5T 214 5% -
excluding Directors TEEES 7,501 5,319
79,044 75,720
Auditor's remuneration ZERD B & 1,710 1,630
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A E 7,349 7,490
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRARIHFEKAR 85,779 106,670
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % « = MR IETE 40,396 36,190
Exchange losses, net 0E 518 H 5 = 6,547
Write off of property, plant and equipment  #13 - R = M 2% i8R 4,731 3,024
Allowance for inventories, net FEHBR FHEEEG - 8,418
and after crediting: MEETA:
Reversal of allowance for inventories, GFEHREFEED
net (Note) (Hiaz) 9,998 -
Gross rental income from investment KEMEBEES WA RTE
properties 34,042 15,567
Less: direct operating expenses from B EEESWARNIRE
investment properties that generate MERFERERT
rental income (595) (672)
33,447 14,895
Interest income from: FEWA
Bank deposits IRITTFERX 6,719 14,359
Loans receivable and advances to FEUE R R IR FIRAE
customers in margin financing STRERFPZEX 63,902 7,958
Note: Htez

The reversal of allowance for inventories arising from an increase in net
realisable value was caused by the increase in estimated scrap value.

A ERFERMELNFREFHEERED S RAMGE
BB NATEL -
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RO WS IR =T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 9. FEE#RHF (EE) (8)
(CONTINUED)
(D) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (D) BRIEEEEFE

On 28 June 2013, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) with a related party (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed
to dispose of, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed
to purchase, the entire issued share capital of Yi
Ming Investments Limited (“Yi Ming”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the
shareholder’s loan due by Yi Ming and its subsidiaries
(together the “Disposal Group”) for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HKD429,199,000
(collectively referred to as the “Disposal”), subject
to adjustments. The Disposal Group is principally
engaged in footwear manufacturing and was one of
the major components of the Group. The Disposal was
completed on 31 August 2013. Details of the Disposal
were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12
August 2013.

The profit from discontinued operations for the
year ended 31 December 2014 mainly arose from
the adjustments on provisions for retirement and
termination benefits and other payables.

201366280  AEEE — %
EALT(TEFDILBKREEER
& ([HEHZE] B - A2rAK
HRAELE MEABKRGEREES
ARRMEEEZENBAREREE
BERAR (BRI EHEET
BAARERAREKBRR (5B
[HESBEMERNBREER 8
KB #) 5429,199,000/8 7T (#: 78 &
[HEFE]) A FAE - LEEEE
ENEERIEYAAEEEZNHG
2 — - EEHEE R2013F8A31R
TFERK o N E FEMFBER AR T B H
201348 A 12B M B KN E -

B Z2014F12A3IBIEFEREBER
R RE R 2 N £ B RERIK R
AR IEAR R 2 B R B A B 5RIR 2 38
BEmEL-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015612 A31H It F &

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

10. EEHRE R &S M

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S (A) EFRFETBASHM
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments are EFERFETHRASHEME M
disclosed as follows: T~
2015 2015%
Cheng
Chang Tun Nei®  Chow Yu Liu George Sze Sun
Chan Kar  Chan Ting Tsung  Chen Fang  Cheng Kar (Chief Chun,  Ho Shing Hong- Shum Sun, Wah Wang  Hong Kim
Lee, Gary®  Chuen®  Yuan® Mei®  Shing® Executive) ~Alexander”  Chak® Li | Nan® chih®  Pui Kay Tony™" Kei Jackie ~ Cheong®™®  Total
YERO
(XETH
REAO  RENC  REHY REEY BRRO  A8) BAFR”  @AREC  FEFC HWBEO  pEE WA ERR hEER A%
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
THER TET TR  FiEn TET TET TER TFET TET TR  FiEn TET TET TEL  TER
Fees &R 120 - - - - - % 120 - - 9% - 9% - 528
Other emoluments: Hipias:
Salaries and other HERERERN
benefits 1,573 - - - - 1,712 - - - - - 1,710 - - 4,995
Bonus (Note) LA (Hizz) 138 - - - - 150 - - - - - 150 - - 438
Contributions to RIVERE B
retirement benefits
schemes 83 - - - - 89 - - - - - 90 = = 262
Share-based payments MR X - - - - - - - - - - - - - 170 170
Total emoluments okt 1914 - - - - 1,951 9% 120 - - 9% 1,950 9% 170 6,393
2014 2014F
Cheng
Chang Tun Nei®  Chow Yu Liu George Sze Sun
Chan Kar  Chan Ting Tsung Chen Fang  Cheng Kar (Chief Chun,  Ho Shing Hong- Shum Sun, WahWang  Hong Kim
Lee, Gary  Chuen® Yuan® Mei Shing® Executive)  Alexander” Chak®  Lil Nan® chih™  Pui Kay Tony™ Kei Jackie Cheong? Total
BRERo
(FER
REAO  RENC  RERY  BFEY BFR®  A8) BFEDY  mKEe  ZEF9 EBE0 HER HEHEHY  ETE AR A4
HKD'000  HKD'OOO ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'OOO  HKD'0O0  HKD'000 ~ HKD'OOO  HKD'0O0  HKD'000  HKD'O00  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TAT Thn TAL TAT TAR TAL TAT TAT TAL TAL TAT Thn TAL TAT TAT
Fees &R - - - 120 % - - 120 48 32 % - % - 608
Other emoluments: Hipipg
Salaries and other FeRAMEN
benefits 1,692 1,800 - - - - - - - - - 1,800 - - 5,292
Bonus (Note) LA (i) 138 - - - - - - - - - - 150 - - 28
Contributions to RIRET
reirement benefits aHEIES
schemes 79 = = = = = = = = = = 0 = = 169
Share-based payments  BARR{R 1,153 577 - - - - - - - - - 577 - - 2307
Total emoluments k3t 3,062 2371 - 120 % - - 120 48 32 % 2617 % - 8,664
Note: (1), (6), (7), (10) appointed in FY2014 Kt (1), (6), (7), (10)iA20144F B Br S [E £
£
(3), (5), (9) retired/resigned in FY2014 (3), (5), (QR20145F B FERIK B
£
(12) appointed in FY2015 (12)R2015F B &R
(2), (4), (8), (10), (11) retired/resigned in FY2015 (2), (4), (8), (10), (11)/A20154F Bt R EE &
RIKBHE

The bonus is based on the performance of
individuals and the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

There are no payments for loss of office paid to
Directors in connection with the management of affairs
of the Group during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.

No retirement benefit was paid to or receivable by
Directors for management of affairs of the Group
during 31 December 2015 and 2014.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
certain Directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in Note 30 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which was recognised in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amounts included in the
financial statements for both years are included in the
above Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
disclosures.

(A)

10. ESHERESHN (F)

ESERTETHASHN (&)

#H E2015%F 201412 A318 &
B HEsElARGEAEEEIES
1575 B8 O B 745 T 1 =2 5P 308 -

BZ2015% K20144 12 A31H 1E - #E
BEEREAEEEEEHABNE
15 T HE S A S MR IR AR A -

E 220154 F2014412A31 8 [F4
BN ATEFREBEARR 2 ERE
eI EmASEIRME 2 REERE
et - BRAE— LA RHRT B RE
FMt3E30 - BRARERRE 2 R FEE (R
HERHMGE 2 EHRER ZEBENE
R)TREL BRABEERRMEFE
STAMBREZCEIFALXES
REZITHABHMZ BEEAN-

127



Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

405 A\
wi o

871 555 ¥ T B9 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015612 A31H It F &

10.

128

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 10. ESHERIESHM (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (B) {E S #riM
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and #H 22015 NM2014512F31H I &
2014, the five highest paid individuals of the Group B AEEESHHOSEAL B
included the Chief Executive and two Directors whose ESTBRAER2ZEER HENH
emoluments are disclosed in Note 10(a) above. B2 7 £ SCHT5E10(a) 3 B8 - H 8424
The emoluments of the remaining two (2014: two) (20144 : 2% ) ALHIE AN T
individuals are as follows:
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET TET
Salaries and other benefits o REMEF 3,101 3,297
Retirement benefits schemes contributions iR {48 F| 5t 21 4 7% 88 97
3,189 3,394

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HENFHME NIBER

2015 2014
No. of No. of
employees employees
ESAE BB AR
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 L=
2,000,000/% 7T 2 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 10. EEHERESEHWN (8)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (B) {ESHM (&)
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior B ENSREEAENH T
management were within the following bands: T3 EEA :
2015 2014
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE AR EE AE
Nil to HKD1,000,000 07875 21,000,000 7T 4 3
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 &2
1,500,000/ 7T 2 4
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 T &
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
11. DIVIDENDS 11. IR 2
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FHETT

2014 final dividend of Nil (2014: 2013 final B 20145 IR IE 8

dividend of Nil) per ordinary share paid TR RAE
(20144 : 2013F B R
Rk = =
No interim dividend was declared or paid during the years B Z2014% F2015F 12 A31 B L FE &
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. For the year ended 31 R SOR A HR R o R B 20155 12
December 2015, the Board recommends the payment of a BIRIEFE EFERAMARAIRRIK
final dividend of HKDO0.02 (2014: nil) per ordinary share to AR S & B E BAR0.0278 7T (20144

the shareholders of the Company. ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015612 A31H It F &

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

12. 5k &7, (E518)

REREREXRILES

E 35

ARAHEEAREERERANEERF TS
TWTIIBIEE

Basic earnings per share BREXEF
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET T T
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of ~ ZN2A FI#E B A FE(L 4 2% T
the Company 180,822 19,095
2015 2014
Number Number
of shares of shares
Rz EE f&in &k B
('000) ('000)
(TFh%) (F)
Number of shares iant =]
Weighted average number of ordinary shares LAt E &R ERZF K
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 57 A% hn A 15 X 2,681,411 2,367,178
Effect of diluted potential ordinary shares: BEBBETBR 2 FE:
— Options — BRI #EE 9,530 =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FRLAGTE&R#EER TN 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 58 A N 9 B 2,690,941 2,367,178
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRERNER CGENL) 6.74 0.81
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SFREERF (EL) 6.72 0.81
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(CONTINUED)

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
The calculation of the basic earning/(loss) per share from
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Profit/(loss) figures are calculated as follows:

12. 5k &7, (E51E8)

REFEEEER
RAREBABGEREFELEXBNE
BEAREF S (EE) TIIRE T 5 BUgE
g

A (R BB BT

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD'000
T T T
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of ~ ZN2A BB A FE(L 4 2% T
the Company 180,822 19,095
Less: -
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3% B 2 4% | F 4% & % 75 1Y
F S A - 28,604
Profit/(loss) for the purposes of basic earning/ FtatE oK B #5442 58
(loss) per share from continuing operations EREAREEEEN
wmHl, (ER) 180,822 (9,509)

The denominators used for the year end 31 December 2014
are the same as those detailed above for both basic and
diluted earnings/(loss) per share.

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, basic and diluted
earnings per share for the discontinued operations was
1.21 HK cents per share, based on the profit for the year
from the discontinued operations of HKD28,604,000 and
the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share.

The amounts of diluted earnings per share were the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2014 because the dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during that year had an anti-dilution effect on the
loss from continuing operations attributable to the owners of
the Company.

B E2014%612831 B L FEFHRAZH
BE | X HEREARBERT, (F58)
B AL B -

KECERILEZBER
HE2014F12A31IH ILFE BRIEEE
¥EBEHNEBEREARBERNAFTR21
AL BIRE B R IE R E X T R
28,604,000 7T & £t SRR E AR R #E
BRFFHLNSBTESHE -

HZE2014F12A31B LFE SREER
NeBRESEEABMNER REZFA
BRI ECEEELTBREARRES
AEEREFBREEBOBRAERE

5 B2 486
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015612 A31H It F &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 1% B E KRR

Leasehold land ~ Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings  and buildings Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
in Hong Kong in the PRC Buildings p hinery i vehicles Vessel Total
REEH RepEl
HELRR  HAELHER HEmE R
[ 3 i 3 B kB HERES  RERRH RE & B
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET FiEL Fhx TR TET FhEL FhL TR TET
Cost or valuation RAfEE
At 1 January 2014 H2014F1 1R 133,255 - 335,202 68,447 25114 19611 5,628 - 587,251
Exchange realignment EXE| - = (8,702) (1,555) - (247) (83) - (10,587)
Additions AE = = 2,551 26,517 735 5,651 292 - 35,746
Acquired through business combination BEREHANINE
(Note 44) (Kiit4d) - - - 1430 9 1,69 1% - 3334
Surplus arising on revaluation EREENBS 14,007 - - - - - - - 14,027
Write off HiBR = = = (6,996) = (1,563) = = (8,559)
Disposals e = = - (1,345) = (527) = = (1,872)
At 31 December 2014 20144127318 147282 - 329,051 86,498 25,858 24,624 6,033 - 619,346
Comprising: BE:
At cost % = - - 86,498 25,858 24,624 6,033 - 143013
At valuation - 2014 fh{E-2014%5 147282 - 329,051 - - - - - 476,333
147282 - 329,051 86,498 25,858 24,624 6,033 - 619,346
Exchange realignment 5 551 - (1,609) (17,976) (2,603) (23) (1,405) 6 - (23,610)
Additions wE - 28523 8,555 27,629 131 2,645 1,707 2922 72,112
Transfer from investment properties BERENE 62,718 - - - - - - - 62,718
Surplus arising on revaluation EREERNBE - - 4 - - - - - 4
Disposal of subsidiaries (Nofe 43) HEMBAR (H243) - - - (7915) (10,010) (3,765) (675) - (22,365)
Write off i = - - (13,112) (15,154) (1,448) (1,071) = (30,785)
Disposals & - - - - - (18) (1,871) - (1,889)
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12A318 210,000 26914 319,634 90,497 802 20,633 4,129 2922 675,531
Comprising: BE:
At cost KA = = = 90,497 802 20,633 4129 2922 118983
At valuation - 2015 fHE—2015% 210,000 26914 319,634 - - - - - 556,548
210,000 26914 319,634 90,497 802 20,633 4,129 2922 675,531
Depreciation i 4
At 1 January 2014 12014F1A1R - - - 30,248 25,011 14,889 2,826 - 72974
Exchange realignment 5 &5 = - (77 (642) 2 (166) 4 - (879)
Provided for the year FRER 3978 - 8,263 20614 36 2,551 748 - 36,190
Write back on revaluation BfERER (3,978) - (8,186) - - - - - (12,164)
Write off HER = = = (4,182) = (1,353) = = (5,535)
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - - - (1,345) - (494) - - (1,839)
At 31 December 2014 12014F12A318 - - - 44693 25,049 15,427 3578 - 88,747
Exchange realignment X B5 - - (373) (1,066) @) (2,191) (64) - (3,696)
Provided for the year FRER 6,030 244 8244 19,156 145 5463 944 170 40,39
Write back on revaluation i dak (6,030) (244) (7.871) - - - - - (14,145)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 43) HENBAR (H:243) - - - (7,289) (9,578) (3,063) (334) - (20,264)
Write off HER = = = (9,399 (15,154) (699) (802) = (26,054)
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - - - - - (13) (1,333) - (1,351)
At 31 December 2015 12015F12A318 - - - 46,09% 460 14924 1,984 170 63,633
Carrying value IREfE
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12A318 210,000 26914 319,634 44402 342 5,709 2,145 2,752 611,898
At 31 December 2014 R2014512A318 147,282 - 329,051 41,805 809 9,197 2,455 - 530,599
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The buildings of the Group located in Shenyang and
Shanghai, PRC and the leasehold land and buildings
in Hong Kong were valued on 31 December 2015 by
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent
firm of professional property valuers not connected to
the Group. The fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong, Shenyang and Shanghai, PRC
of approximately HKD236,914,000 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: HKD147,282,000) is a level 2 recurring fair
value measurement and the buildings in Shenyang, PRC of
approximately HKD319,634,000 as at 31 December 2015
(2014: HKD329,051,000) is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. There were no transfers into or out of level 3
in both years.

The valuations of leasehold land and buildings in Hong
Kong adopted a direct comparison approach with reference
to market comparable sales evidence available in the
market. The valuations of buildings in the PRC adopted the
depreciated replacement cost approach in the absence of
comparable sales evidence.

13. ¥3 B E KRR E (8)

MR2015F12A31 8  REE R R ERE &
EBNEFERRASNHEE L M RETF
EREASEVEMECBYEEME
HEMTRRET(BBE)BERARETH
H-2015F12A318 - REBNEE L
i K2 18 5 #9236,914,0003% 7T (20144 :
147,282,000 L) M A FEBEDAE =
RSB ENFEEZE  MMR2015F12A8
318 ' R A F 49319,634,0005% 7T
(20144F : 329,051,000/ 7T ) B A F (B {E A
RE-BIEEERNFEEFE-FANE—
MEE— Ko EBREATEETEEE
NEEREYEBAFE =R

HREBEANEE L REFTHBETIRSR
BEREER D2REMS LOmSA L
EHEREMEE MERNFENETH
fREERZ A L EHERIR 21BN T T
MITEEERAEMETE °
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - B R:R1E (8)
(CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 fair value FYIRFREZF AN EBEERERDOT o

balance is provided below.

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHET FHET
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — F 448 (F=AKH1E
NEEE) 329,051 335,202
Additions NE 8,555 2,551
Exchange realignment N &5 (17,603) (8,625)
Depreciation e (8,244) (8,263)
Gain on revaluation of properties held for own 5t A E b 2 E U A B3 1E
use included in other comprehensive income ERNENEG KRS 7,875 8,186
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRER (FZRLH N
N $f§f§) 319,634 329,051
INFORMATION ABOUT FAIR VALUE FREREXAITHEHABRNHA
MEASUREMENTS USING SIGNIFICANT FEEFENNEE
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS
Properties Valuation approach Significant unobservable inputs Range
L/ES fH{ERE EXTOUHEMARE &E
2015 2014
HKD HKD
The PRC Depreciated replacement Construction costs (HKD/sg. meter) 7,431 - 9,200 7,985 - 9,857
cost approach
HE TEEENNE BIERA (BT, R k)
A significant increase/(decrease) in construction costs would BIERAMBERN, ORd) HEEET
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in fair value of the MAFEBERBEEM CRD) -
buildings.
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during FR-GHEFERELIRES-
the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from
their actual use.

Had the land and buildings not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
in the amount of approximately HKD412,917,000 (2014
HKD341,054,000).

Certain property, plant and equipment are pledged to a bank

to secure the bank borrowings and general banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 28).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. ¥3 B E KRR E (8)

RNPEEAEDNEAYMEZES R&E
Rz (EERASRLEER) REE-

Mt REFIESHEE BSUESL
B AFDR R 5T EE - 49412,917,0007% 70
(20144 : 341,054,0007 7T ) 5t A 4R & 81 75
=

ETYE BEERBEEMR T RRITNA
ERETAKENRITERE —RETE
B atA (faE28) -

14. IR EME

Investment
properties Completed
under investment
construction properties Total
ERE e =237
BEYE BEYE EEE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
Group XEEH T T T T
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 January 2014 R2014181H 474,489 254,744 729,233
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 44(c)) Yz &I B A 7]
(Ht&E44(c)) - 565,622 565,622
Increase in fair value recognised RIBEERNATFEE
in profit or loss # 0 = 27,973 27,973
Exchange realignment JE R B (12,312) (4,799) (17,111)
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31H 462,177 843,540 1,305,717
Transfer to property, EEYE BB &R
plant and equipment - (62,718) (62,718)
Increase in fair value recognised R ER
in profit or loss N EE 193 3,250 3,443
Exchange realignment ERES (25,254) (30,765) (56,019)
At 31 December 2015 2015 12A31H 437,116 753,307 1,190,423
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land and buildings held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model.

The fair value of the commercial and industrial properties in Hong
Kong and Beijing, PRC of approximately HKD753,307,000 as at 31
December 2015 (2014: HKD843,540,000) is a level 2 recurring
fair value measurement and the other investment properties in
Shenyang, PRC of approximately HKD437,116,000 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: HKD462,177,000) is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. There were no transfers into or out of level 3 in both
years. A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 fair value

14. &M% (&)

Mii:

(a)

(b)

AEE A EHEFE WA LB E B %
HIFTE 11 RIETFH)HE #m  IBBRURE
RN WAL FEERNGE

R2015F12A31H  REBERF EA RHE
ERTEWEH#753,307,000/% 7T (20144 -
843,540,000/ 7T ) B9 2\ FAE 1B T3 73 5 —RAS =
YR FEEE MR2015E12H31A @ At
A YR ELEE #9437,116,0005% 7T (2014
1F 462,177,000/ 7T ) 923 FIBIERI B E = RAZ
BURFEEE FAEERE TG
FEEAR o FYRFRE=RAFIE B H RN

balance is provided below. e

2015 2014
HKD'000 HKD’000
TFHET FHAT

Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FOER (F=REFMHE
NEEE) 462,177 474,489
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss B iERE MO A FEE 193 -
Exchange realignment R &5 (25,254) (12,312)

FRER (F=REFMHE
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) AFEE) 437,116 462,177

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2015 and 2014 were arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on those dates by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, an
independent firm of professional property valuers not connected to
the Group. The valuations of investment properties were arrived with
reference to market comparable sales evidence available in the market.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

%201 5% R20I4FI2A31H A EFRE Y %
RFEETS R R EF I AERES BT B
%%/éfﬁ% FIEETT (B/8) BIR A Al 7T E S
EiE  REYREZIGET2E TS

1?2 Wtbé‘m BHEREMET °

BEEHEAT I BIRAAH B A FEER

Range
BE
Properties Valuation approach Significant unobservable inputs
L/ES fh{EHE EXT 8 REH N B# 2015 2014
The PRC Direct comparison approach (Discount)/premium on -10% to 4% -10% to 3%
characteristics of the properties
A BHELEE YRR (F7:8) 5B

The valuations take into account the characteristics of the properties
which included the location, size, and time of the comparable
transactions.

BEZEYFERFIL BREATLEIZ 2% #
EREFE]
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(Continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on characteristics of
the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in the premium on
characteristics of the properties would result in a significant (decrease)/
increase in fair value of the investment properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, a large portion of the completed
investment properties were rented out under operating leases. Details
of operating lease arrangements are set out in Note 35.

Certain investment property is pledged to a bank to secure the bank
borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note
28).

The Group has not yet obtained formal title to its interest in a parcel
of land as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 with a carrying amount
of approximately HKD221,542,000 (2014: HKD234,275,000). In the
opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title of this land interest
has not impaired its value to the Group as the Group had paid the
full purchase consideration to the local land bureau and will promptly
apply for the registration of formal title once the Group has fulfilled
the relevant conditions. The Directors regard the probability of being
deprived from the use of the land on the ground of lack of formal title is
remote.

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

14. &M% (18)

Wit ()

(b)

(c)

(@)

(%)

YRIF IR FELZ N R ) Y F 1514
B EHEE ORL)  ENEGHREYERTF

FA - GESE AR T EE) -

RFEEETU LAYRZ BB RREFE
(BB IARZES) 72

R2015%F R2014F12H31H * X565 B 2K 1R
EYFEREEHELH EEHELHF 58
M aE35

ETREYEELIFTRRITUBRRITEN
R TR B —ARIRTTI5 B AE ([15228) °

AEE R ER T — lE R A IE A
BR E 48 (8 R20156F R2014F12 31 H 5 5l #
221,5642,0007% 7T } 234,275,000/ 7T ° Z F 58
7 A LTIHEET 8 BRRZ L B A IE R,
FEMBE  FAEEE G2 L e A L
I AR (T HME - 0 A A5 B E AR B 15
& ST R 5 A T LE US4 B AR 3 IR IR IE
FRBE KL LI E TR AT RE 1R -

15. A ERIE

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET THET

At 1 January R1A1H 284,766 300,208
Amortisation B8N (7,349) (7,490)
Exchange realignment JEHE7 (16,010) (7,952)
At 31 December M12A31H 261,407 284,766
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

Trading rights Trademarks Total
XS HiR FLEE]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Group XEE T FHET T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H - 209,916 209,916
Acquired through business FERERE FFUE
combination (Note 44(a)) (H1it44(a)) 599 . 599
Exchange realignment =gl - 30 30
At 31 December 2014 2014 12A31H 599 209,946 210,545
Disposals ang== = (64,346) (64,346)
Exchange realignment b 5% &5 - 218 218
At 31 December 2015 2015 12A31H 599 145,818 146,417
Accumulated impairment: HetimfE:
At 31 December 2015 and 2014 720154 220144
12A31H - - -
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2015 2015 12A31H 599 145,818 146,417
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31H 599 209,946 210,545

The trademarks are in respect of the “PONY” brand and
the trading rights are those in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (the “Exchange”) which allow the Group
to trade securities on or through the Exchange. They are
considered by management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because they are expected to contribute
net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. They have been
tested for impairment annually and considered to be not
impaired at the end of reporting period.
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ZEREBR S REEFTARAR ([EX
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MR EHENERERARE SIS
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of the impairment test in respect of the
“PONY” brand which had been allocated to the CGU of the
Branding segment, its recoverable amount was determined
based on a value-in-use calculation, covering a detailed 10-
year budget plan plus an extrapolated cash flow projections
by applying a long term growth rate subsequent to this 10-
year plan, with a pre-tax discount rate of 20.0% (2014:
20.0%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 are:

Cash flow beyond the 10-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated 3% (2014: 3%) growth rate.

ii. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 10-year (2014: 10-year) budget
plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market's development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

The Directors concluded that the cash-generating unit
demonstrates sufficient cashflows that justify the carrying
value of the “PONY” brand and hence no impairment of the
“PONY” brand is necessary as at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

EBREE (48)

BREREPEERES 2R EEEM
Z [PONY ] @& ZRERHME - EaJuk[E
SHEDNRBEFEAEETE CREFAMI0
FIEEE M ERZKIOFHEREAR
MR RS 7RG RTEA) B E - FLAIRL
I/ & 520.0% (20144 : 20.0% ) °

B E20144%12 A31F k2015512 A31H |k
FEZHEEFEFANEERRNOT

i HBBIOFE M 2B &R Ty E Bt
3% (201445 :3% ) 2R EHEE o

i. PREELOF (20145 : 10F) EHE
SR MR BERRAKE -

AEBEEEZIERRDBREBERR
KREUTISERTARET  BRIRKR SR
AR - REREAERA RS A R 2 AR -

EERR ReELENRANELRHN
WEMEFER [PONY | mAEEREE - FER
2015%F K&20145F12 A31 8 78 5% [PONY J
om RV HE R E
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17.

140

INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE/ 17
AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE

I8

7. BB LS RS

ZhER

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHIT T
Interests in a joint venture: e ERER:
Cost of unlisted investments in a joint venture  RA&EMEIE FHRED
AR - -
Share of post-acquisition net profits and BB B T
other comprehensive income, net of FREREAMEERA
dividends received HERBE RS - 24,662
- 24,662

The amount due to a joint venture was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interests in

the following joint venture:

R ESRE K BE

UTEZaL0EER

ENEECENFASERR 28 XA

20154 K2014512H31H  AEE#FHF

Form of Proportion of nominal
business Place of Class value of issued capital Principal place
Joint venture structure incorporation of share held by the Group Principal activities of business
AEERANERT
BELE HERE b e Rt &R RAEEESLL TEEY TEEEHE
2015 2014
Smart Shine Industries Limited Incorporated The British Ordinary AER 50% Investment holding HK and the PRC
53 Virgin Islands & 3% (Note) RERR BERS
EBRLEHS (Bist)

Note:

During the year, the Group obtained control of this joint venture by

acquiring the remaining 50% equity interest it did not previously hold,
further details of which are set out in Note 44(e).

Bt

RER REEFEBREZ A SRR T50%H
At (REBEMILARA) ML ZAE

1S 4 -

#E— SR IBEHN M FE44(e)



17. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE/

18.

FEEBEARA R 2015FERE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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17. GE L&D BASERER

AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE I5 (48)
(CONTINUED)
AGGREGATE INFORMATION OF A JOINT VENTURE ERMESLIEERZEELENEE
THAT IS NOT INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL &H
Group
AEE
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHIT T
The Group’s share of loss for the year AEENFEEE N/A A& (408)
The Group’s share of other REESHEMEEBA
comprehensive income N/A 73 (383)
The Group’s share of total AEED(EEER AL
comprehensive income N/A 73 (791)
Aggregate carrying amount of REEREESEDEN
the Group’s interests in this joint venture e )RR E 42 (8 N/A 7 iE 24,662
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. O EHERE
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHIT FHET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, RER LT ZRAES
at fair value BATER - 44,888
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19.

142

GOODWILL

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
recognised a goodwill arising from business combination as
detailed in Note 44(a) of approximately HKD35,590,000, and
was allocated to the cash-generating unit of financial services
for impairment testing.

For the purposes of the goodwill impairment test, its
recoverable amount was determined based on a value-in-
use calculation, covering a detailed 5-year budget plan plus
an extrapolated cash flow projections by applying a long term
growth rate subsequent to this 5-year plan, with a pre-tax
discount rate of 19.5% (2014: 19.5%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 are:

Cash flow beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated zero (2014: zero) growth rate.

i. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 5-year (2014: 5-year) budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market's development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

The Directors concluded that the cash-generating unit
demonstrates sufficient cashflows that justify the carrying
value of the goodwill and hence no impairment of goodwill is
necessary as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

19. &

B E2014F12A31H L FE  NEBEER
BEBEO (FBERMT440) ) EEZEE
#)35,590,000/& 7T * A R B K 7 BL 2 & &R
BzREELBM  AETRERH

HEAEREARATS e S E R E
FREBSTE CREFANSFEE S
MERZSFrE B HARBEREESE
ZBREmIER ) EE  HARE A19.5%
(20144 :19.5% ) °

HZE2014%12A31H k201512 A31H 1k
FEZEEFEFEANEEHRBLOT

. BATEHEZRLRNEMAEE
EERHE (20145 : ) -

i. REBESFEEIHE ENXGHE
R BKF (20145 : 55 ) ©

AEBEREBZIERRDBREBERR
REHM SRR BMET - B R RERD
AR - REREERA RS AR 2 ABRR -

EERR ReELENRANELRHN
RenEFRAMBREE BIR2015%
K2014512 A31 R H/AR B IE L RI(E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
RO WS IR =T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 2015 12A31H It F &

20. INVENTORIES 20. 58
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Finished goods BIRX on 58,862 41,785
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B 5 R H it FEUS AR X
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET TET
Trade receivables B 5 R R
— Other than financial services segment — & &b AR 7% 55 2B Bk S 44,433 54,310
— Financial services segment — & B AR o B 31,264 7,054
Total trade receivables B PR KB 75,697 61,364
Less: allowance for doubtful debts i REREE R
— trade receivables — B SRR (19,790) (13,790)
55,907 47,574
Other receivables, deposits and HE W IE 5 &
prepayments A FIE 64,012 73,082
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE G
— other receivables —H b fE U FRIA (4,077) (4,077)
59,935 69,005
Total trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E M EUWER B EE 115,842 116,579
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM SEGMENTS OTHER
THAN FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from
60 to 90 days to its trade customers. Included in trade and
other receivables are trade receivables, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, of approximately HKD24,643,000 (2014
HKD40,520,000). Before accepting any new customer,
the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and grants a credit limit to the customer. Limits and
score attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year.
Approximately 59% (2014: 55%) of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have no default
payment history. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES

21. B R H R AR (48)

REKRERRBTEHUIMNTEIBHIE S
FEW FRIE
AEEAHEEZRFIRME AR H60R £90
BAREMFEHEES -85 R EMEKER
B A BL#24,643,0005 7T (20144 :
40,520,000/ 7T ) K & 5 I FE U AR 3 ($BR
REEBE) - REMFERER A5 H
S ERERFEERYE  UETZEFH
EERE - BPHNEEERYESTFET
MR & K #9159% (20144F : 55% ) FE#
HASR B B 5 FE IR AR SR 0 48 HE X A 3R
8 REBWERZ S EHRITEEMEIF

REERRTE S BIE 5 RKRIE

SEGMENT
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET FHET
Trade receivables arising from ordinary course ~ R—RBHE & £ 158712
of business of dealing in securities: EXRE S EIGIE :
Cash clients BeRP 239 4212
Clearing house HEET 22,315 -
Trade receivables arising from ordinary course of 2t 714518 — 4% 275 :1812
business of provision of: EXNE S EIEIE :
Money lending wE 8,633 2,756
Insurance brokerage RE g4 77 86
31,264 7,054
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES
SEGMENT (CONTINUED)

Save for the credit period allowed by the Group, the
trade receivables shall be due on the settlement dates
of the respective securities contract transactions. In view
of the fact that such receivables relate to a number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. Overdue receivables from cash clients of
approximately HKD190,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014
HKD3,235,000) bear interest at interest rates with reference
to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate (“Prime Rate”) plus 6%.

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date or transaction date (where
applicable) at the end of the reporting period:

21. B R H bW AR (4

REERRTE S BHE 5 RKRIE
(&)

BRARE A FFRE SR B B RIGIRR
REBRBFENXINEE AR - ERNE
SHEMGIESRETIRERP  MAKEL
BEBESETHNEERR-R2015612H31
B - B NOGR & B P R 3R A £3190,000
PEIT(20144F : 3,235,000 7T) * 2 E LA TT
REBEMNE ([HREEFEX]) 6% FI X
B

RBEPR AEEUBERAHHRXFHH
H(HER) REEZINE Z USRS
BRARBRBENRESITAT

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET THT

0 to 30 days 0Z30X 41,810 19,476
31 to 60 days 31£260K 1,891 1,469
61 to 90 days 61290k 2,023 5,410
Over 90 days A90K 10,183 21,219
55,907 47 574

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable.

EXHENE SHRWERB RN ARE B
REBHOFE (FREDITRTX) A
SEYEREBRARERE RAREE
BEXUESAES BZFLRIDEER
A4
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE
PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

21. B R H R AR (48)

i 8 5 {E 1Y 38 0 B 5 FE W AR =R B9 AR 58

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHET

Over 90 days 90K 10,183 21,219
MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RERIEEE — & 5 B AR

DEBTS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

TFHIT T

Balance at beginning of the year FHERR 13,790 13,901

Impairment losses recognised BERRREEE 6,000 =

Impairment losses reversed VERIEN SE=AEIEC - (111)

Balance at end of the year FR SR 19,790 13,790

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of approximately HKD19,790,000 (2014:
HKD13,790,000) with a carrying amount before provision
of approximately HKD25,188,000 (2014: HKD27,942,000).
The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were slow in settlements and management assessed that
only a portion or none of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

LA £ B 5 FE WBR FOR (B B 5 B IS R B B
AiT BR [ {8 49 /525,188,000 7T (20144
27,942,000 7T) M E R B2 M EE 5 &
U BR X B #519,790,000% JT (20144 :
13,790,000 7z, ) ° &l Bl 2k B & Uk BR 504
REERIENTEF MEBETEHER —
EB17 SR A 4 FE UK BR SR TR HA P] T Uk [l o
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22.
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21. B R H R AR (48)

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL

DEBTS - OTHER RECEIVABLES

KRR B2 — H b FEUIARSK

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

THET FHE T

Balance at beginning and end of the year FUIRFERGEH 4,077 4,077

Included in the above provision for impairment of other

receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of approximately HKD4,077,000 (2014
HKD4,077,000) with a carrying amount before provision
of approximately HKD4,077,000 (2014: HKD4,077,000).
The individually impaired receivables related to debtors that

were slow in settlements and management assessed that

only a portion or none of the receivables is expected to be

recovered.

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN

LA EE fh fE W BR FOR B B E B E R B
1% Al BR T {8 5 4,077,00078 7T (20144 :
4,077,000/ 7T ) # {& Bl 2 5 (B H fth F& U BR
SR ¥ #4,077,0007% 7T (20144 : 4,077,000
7B7) 85I BB ERE W RS &
MW MEBETHES —2BMHK
188 428 i R BR SR TE A ] F U [ o

mERE

22. REFREESMEETRZBR

FINANCING
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET TET
Directors and his associates BEENMEBE AL 2,698 14,266
Other margin clients HEMRESRP 123,352 36,078
Balance at end of the year FRER 126,050 50,344
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23.
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ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN
FINANCING (CONTINUED)

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable
on demand and carry interest ranging from Prime Rate
to Prime Rate plus 3% per annum. Margin clients are
required to pledge securities collateral to the Group in order
to obtain credit facilities for securities trading. The amount
of credit facilities granted to them is determined by the
discounted value of securities accepted by the Group. At 31
December 2015, the total market value of securities pledged
as collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients was
approximately HKD699,241,000 (2014: HKD579,904,000).
The Group is allowed to dispose of the collateral in settlement
of the customers’ obligation to maintain the agreed level of
margin and any other liability of the customers due to the
Group.

No aging analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of
margin financing.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

22 R TFPREESHMEETRZER

(&)

RETRECHEZTP 2 RARERE
B ENTITREEENEREREENERINE
FI3%t B -REBESEFARAASEBEHE
FEARUREESFEEEERE K TE
BEFZEEMESHARNEEMESE
%7 BRIR(EEE T - R20155F 12 A31 R - iR
HTIREEEPZEXMEIFIERER R
M) 78 5 8 T B 40 5699,241,000/% 7T (2014
£ : 579,904,000/ 7T ) o ANEEE A] ) EH A
mUBTTEFHFHERI2KFEZEE
REEBEFHERAEBZ ANEMEE-

ERNRECHEZEBLEE EFTARK
D MAERE HIL I\ RE T RE
TREBEPZBFREERE ST

23.FEU &3k

2015 2014
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
M RE FHT FET
Secured BER / 629,196 104,506
Unsecured MR i = 38,500
629,196 143,006

Notes HKiat

I The loans receivable of HKD629,196,000 (2014: HKD104,506,000)
are secured by charges over the borrowers’ properties and/or financial
assets, interest bearing at 12%-36% per annum (2014: 12%-36% per
annum) and are repayable between one month and one year from the
dates of advance.

. The balance was unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per annum and
repayable within one year from the date of advance. The balance was
fully repaid during the year ended 31 December 2015.

i fEW B 629,196,000/ C (2014 F :
104,506,000 7T ) T3 1 #1 A A A BI 2R3
2 HEEREITELIER - B2 H R - 1ZF
FZ12%-36%5+/8 (20144 : EF)%12%-36% )
Riz—EBAZ—FEZ(te

i FEEEIEIR IR FFIE12%51.8 - B 250 H B
—FRNT AR E R B R2015F12H31H IF
FEEEEE-
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 23. FEUGE R (48)

For loans receivable, the customers are obliged to settle the
amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts.
Interest rates are offered based on the assessment of a
number of factors including the borrowers’ creditworthiness
and repayment ability, collaterals as well as the general
economic trends.

The Directors consider that the fair values of loans receivable
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because the
balances have short maturity periods at inception.

PREBERMS TRPEREBHEBES QM
BGRSER M ERTIRIBEHZHE R ZFF
EmEd ZFRRBEEBERAZERR
BRI m A R BB -

BEERR BRERAFEEH -FAIK
B BEFEHMETEEAEE  REQER
IRFNHA B B B BR A PR AT

TRADING SECURITIES 24. X SR8 HF
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
T Tl
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, RBEB LT ZRAES
at fair value BAFEE 16,420 9,545

The above equity securities are classified as held for trading,
and upon initial recognition, designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT, PLEDGED 25.

BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

(A) RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT
The balance of HKD3,538,000 (2014: HKD3,743,000)
is dominated in RMB and carries a fixed interest at
1.75% (2014: 3.30%) per annum. The use of the bank
deposit requires the consent from one of the occupants
of the Group’s outlet mall in the PRC.

The balance of HKD8,374,000 (2014: Nil) is
dominated in RMB and carried a fixed interest at
4.75% (2014: Nil) per annum. The use of the bank
deposit requires the consent from the supplier of the
Group's retail segment in the PRC.

ERBRAEFSDBRFEEER  RREKX
ERESEE/SEAFEEIAREZZ SR

ZRREIERITHER  CIIFRIT
RURRITERRIRE

(A ZRRHEIRITER
% % #2:3,538,000% 7T (20144 :
3,743,000 70 ) A A R B EHE - A E
TEEFIE1.75% (20144 :3.30% ) &F
B -BARITEREASEFHATE
E¥BHHERRESIEE-

% K5 #28,374,000/8 Tt (20144 : &)
IAARBESHE B EFFIRL75%
(2014%F : #&) 5T B - B A RITIF KA
REBARFREEEERYTOEFR
—ZEBEARERAIEE -
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25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (CONTINUED)

150

(A)

(B)

€

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT (CONTINUED)
The remaining balance of HKD1,515,000 (2014:
HKD1,573,000) is denominated in New Taiwan Dollar
(“NTD”) and carries a fixed interest at 1.345% (2014
1.345%) per annum. The use of the bank deposit
requires the consent from the landlord and suppliers.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH - HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising
from its normal course of business. The Group has
classified the clients’ monies as bank and cash balance
held on behalf of customers under the current assets
section of the consolidated statement of financial
position and recognised the balances of the trust
accounts (Note 26) as amounts due to respective
clients on the grounds that the Group is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The cash
held on behalf of customers is restricted and governed
by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest
on the clients’ monies, but is not allowed to use the
clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

[t included the time deposits of approximately
HKD106,906,000 (2014: HKD419,401,000) which
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.10% to
4.07% (2014: 0.30% to 3.08%) per annum. The
remaining balance represents bank balances which
carried interest at prevailing market rates which ranged
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2014: 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum during the year.

As at 31 December 2015, cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposit and restricted
bank deposit) denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HKD101,981,000 (2014:
HKD274,496,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

NH

(B)

(8]

R
A R £R

il $R

=\ =

TS  ERPR{ITHE
TR RIS (B8)

ZRESRITER (8)

88 T 45 #21,515,0005 7T (20144 :
1,573,000 7T ) A T & B HE - LA
T =1.345% (20144 : 1.345% )
TR BRI A E RHER
=%

RITERRRE-KEFRHR

AREBE R R A #ERRB L EER
B UEFER—REBBETELZ
BEFRE - AKRERLEREFHIAD
BRGEMBMARTRBEERT
REPHAEZBITRRESHER LR
BAEBEART P IR Z EREKRK
BRAEEEEZER BRETHRP
ZEREE (if5E26) REENHEEE PR
F-HKEFPRAZREXBHFRAE
PR T ESME (BEPHE) R
AIFTIRBI MR E - AR BB ERFRE
REPFEZ G NA AR BF
REFEREFRAEELRE-

RITHEBRRIRE

BTGB ERESCEBRENEESR
A ZEO.10%ZE4.07% (20144 :
0.30%%23.08% )5t BB E B 17 &
49106,906,0007% 7T (20144 : %Y
419,401,000/ 7T ) ° 82 T & &R 46 F
W1 IR 1T 35 F F %0.01%£0.35%
(20144 : 0.01%=0.35% ) 7T B Ky iR
1THES -

MN2015F12H318 - A A R¥ &t
EMNReREBTEHL (BREXR
FIEITERREEFRITFER) E
#49101,981,000/% 7t (20144 : 4
274,496,000/ 70 ) ° A R ¥ 5 B R
BEE R R A INEE AR IR R B (HNE
EIRIEH) K (KEE SERNES
BEE)  AEEEFRBEREL
EONEXBHIRIT SARE L BRE
HNEE o
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. 8 5 R H 1t FEFTER X
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FETT
Trade and bills payables B RENEE 32,761 23,932
Accounts payable from financial FE1T & B AR 7% 2 BRAR 5K
services segment 16,426 25,291
Other payables, temporary receipts and H b EMABRR - Bl &
accruals JEETRR K 216,424 246,465
Total trade and other payables B NEMEMNR B 265,611 295,688

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables

presented based on the invoice date or transaction date

REBEPR AEEUNBERAHHXFHH
H(WER) REEZIINE S RENEE

(where applicable) at the end of the reporting period: HERER DITAT
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHTT
0 to 30 days 0&30Kk 16,572 21,080
31 to 60 days 31E60K 11,358 1,891
61 to 90 days 61290k 2,761 134
Over 90 days #90K 2,070 827
32,761 23,932

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

days. The Group has financial risk management policies in

place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

BENFHEERRIOKR REBDHE
A 75 R\ B 32 BUR DA RE AR P B B BRK
REEHRRAGEE -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES

26. B 5 R H e IR (48)

R B &Rl AR ¥ 55 8B FE 1 BR R

SEGMENT
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHT T
Accounts payable arising from ordinary course  FE5RX 5 HE EFEL K
of business of dealing in securities (Note): BRI (57
Cash clients BeRP 7,336 9,996
Margin clients REEEF 8,995 14,629
Clearing house EE AT - 556
16,331 25,181
Accounts payable arising from ordinary course AN &IE 2 H & %%
of business of provision of: EA R ERRK
Insurance brokerage R g4 95 110
16,426 25,291

The settlement term of accounts payable attributable to

dealing in securities are two days after the trade date. Fﬁflx

as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging analysis is not BEER

meaningful in view of the business nature of securities

dealing and margin financing.

Note: The balances represent accounts payable to clients and other Hiat -
institutions in respect of trust and segregated bank balances received
and held for clients and other institutions in the course of the conduct

of regulated activities.
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SEBERNERcAEHRRZBMR

ZH -

No aging analysis is disclosed for payables to margin clients ﬁﬁ’\f”‘ BEERRFCHENFEBIES -

E7N 'E‘J’JET‘H% /f%}i
$ﬁ§£ﬁ%%§ CE P IR R ARER DA o

IEEE“?/E

FEBERIERN TP REMBBIRT  F R
IRAERPBEFRETL REMEEKI R

BB ZERERELRITES
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The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

27. BIEBIIE

£ LA BT 7530 55 R 0 MR SE BUOE & 8
T

TN

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’'000

TH#IT T T

Deferred tax assets REFIEE BE (22,486) (45,699)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEEFE 85,930 88,776
63,444 43,077

The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon

during the current and prior years:

AEEERBNEIBELEHEBEE (&
E)REENAFEBEFENEBER
R :

Revaluation of Fair
freehold and Undistributed value
leasehold Revaluation Accelerated eamings of adjustment
landand  of investment tax PRC on intangible
buildings properties depreciation subsidiaries Tax losses assets Total
KAEHER
HETHER RENE MERE  FEKELT BREEZ
BTFEMHE Eff ik K REFH HEGR ATEESEE k]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET TEx TAT TET TEx TAL TET
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1 818 61,528 6,807 10,139 73 (23,207) 7,366 62,706
Exchange realignment fE 5 25 - (62) - - - - (62)
Acquisition of a subsidiary through BREBARKE
business combination —HKBAF - - (18) - - - (18)
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted for as AR — KB A AMEER
acquisition of assets and liabilties AEEERE = = = = (17,004) - (17,004)
Charge/(credt) to profit or loss R/ GEA)B% - 37 112 - (5,488) - (4.999)
Charge to other comprehensive income MAERZERA 2454 - - - - - 2,454
At 31 December 2014 120145124318 63,982 1,122 10,233 73 (45,699 7,366 43077
Exchange realignment i % 3 - (128) - - - - (1)
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss g,/ (GEA) 8% - (577) 573 - 10,551 - 10,547
Charge to ather comprehensive income MAERZERA 9,953 - = - = = 9,953
At 31 December 2015 120155124318 73935 6,417 10,806 73 (35,148) 7,366 63,449
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HKD556,204,000 (2014: HKD586,205,000)
available to offset against future profits. Tax losses to
the extent of approximately HKD213,018,000 (2014:
HKD276,964,000) in respect of which a deferred tax asset
has been recognised. The Group had utilised deferred tax
assets of HKD2,325,000 (2014: credited HKD5,488,000)
and written off HKD8,226,000 (2014: nil) during the year.
Management has prepared a robust business plan based
on a sound business model and is confident that the Group
will be able to generate taxable profits from the companies
in which these tax losses arose. As a result, management
believes that these losses will be utilised in the foreseeable
future. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of approximately
HKD343,186,000 (2014: HKD309,241,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All the tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely except for those arising from

the PRC which may be carried forward for five years.

27. BEHIE (&)

R2015F12A31B8 AEBERBHARM
TH [5 18 47556,204,00078 JT (20144 ¢
586,205,000/ 7T ) AT f # $8 K 21 0% A
A8 49213,018,000 7T (20144 -
276,964,000/ L) 2 R IB B EE E#ER
BECHBEE-FAN ALEFAEE
Fi 18 & 2,325,000/ 7t (20144 : B 51 A
5,488,000 7T ) & E fifi 88,226,000 7T
(20145 E)EEEBECRIEREE ZEKIE
ANFERE—DEBRZEFTERBELAEE
BREELEZEREBEZEEANAF
MELRRH M Elt EEEREZ
EEEBEENA RAKRRNESE - BRD
AITEHAR R AT B ML ERER T R
&) FA B 78 §518343,186,00078 7T (20144F
309,241,000/ L) EREEF HE E - Fr
BREEEERPLES HZSEREF
B Al 4588 A AR B E IR AR AN o

28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. ERIVITER
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHEIT T T
Current e
Carrying amount of variable interest-rate AR —FRNEMNEBFER
bank loans repayable within one year IRITEFNEEAE
— unsecured — K 155,002 310,224
— secured —HEA 18,000 =
Carrying amount of variable interest-rate BAR—FRNEMZEF =X
bank loans that are not repayable after W R A R ESREBIERE
one year which contain a repayable IRITERERE(E — A
on demand clause-secured - 155,112
173,002 465,336
Non-current FEiFRED
Carrying amount of secured variable interest-rate #7818 % 8 F| = 1)
bank loans that are not repayable: BEFRITERNREE:
— more than one year, but not exceeding —ZR1FEKRBB2F
two years 18,000 -
— more than two years, but not exceeding —ZR2FH KRB BSF
five years 236,245 -
— After five years —bF 1% 310,004 =
564,249 -
737,251 465,336
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group has variable interest-rate bank loans which carry
interest ranging from 1.84% to 2.47% (2014: 1.31% to
2.96%). The weighted average effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans is 2.16% (2014: 1.81%).

No undrawn borrowing facilities were available for future
operating activities and to settle capital commitments in both
years.

The Group had pledged leasehold land and buildings
and completed investment properties, as set out in
Notes 13 and 14 respectively, with carrying values of
approximately HKD210,000,000 and HKD722,308,000
(2014: HKD147,282,000 and HKD252,718,000),
respectively, to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group of which approximately HKD582,249,000 (2014:
HKD155,112,000) had been utilised at end of the reporting
period.

28. EFRBITER (8)

AEBMRITERNEZBEX  FIBT
NFR1.84%E2.47% (20144 : 1.31% =
2.96% ) - AR BERITTERZ B BIMEF
M=E52.16% (20144 : 1.81% ) °

R AEF R A - B E R R A B R E
AHBRARREERD MIFEEANEE-

BIDBAMFEIIRI4FTE AEED
RFEAELHREFURERTIREY
¥ (BRMEE 5 5% 5210,000,0007% 7T &
722,308,000 7T (20144 : 147,282,000
77T 252,718,000/ 7T ) ) - A HERE
FAEEN —RBITEERE HFP LY
582,249,000/% 7T (20144 : 155,112,000/5
T RMEREEEA -
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. Ig &
Number of Nominal
shares value
At 4= miE
(‘000) HKD’000
(FB%) T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each (2014: /R B BO. 108 T 1 Z B IR
HKDO.10 each) (20147 : &R EE
0.10;&7T)
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R2014F1A18 &
and 31 December 2015 2014%12A31H &
2015412831 H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each R EBO. 108 T 1 Z B AR
(2014: HKDO.10 each) (20147 - R E B
0.10/%&7T)
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 2,103,684 210,369
Exercise of share options (Note) TERAE (A7) 44,570 4,457
Issue of shares as considerations for TERIIBHIE A AR (E
acquisition of subsidiaries mETHARD
(Notes 44(a)&(c)) (H1:i£44(a)&(c)) 521,260 52,126
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F12A31H 2,669,514 266,952
Exercise of share options (Note) T{ERERRAE (KT aE) 28,230 2,823
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 2,697,744 269,775
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note: During the year, share options were exercised to subscribe for

28,230,000 (2014: 44,570,000) ordinary shares of the Company
at a cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HKD11,433,000 (2014: HKD18,070,000), of which HKD2,823,000
(2014: HKD4,457,000) was credited to share capital and the balance
of approximately HKD8,610,000 (2014: HKD13,613,000) was
credited to the share premium account. An amount of approximately
HKD3,357,000 (2014: HKD5,290,000) was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of the
share options.

All shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company have
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company. The Scheme aims to encourage participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. All Directors, full-time employees and any other
persons who, at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group are eligible to
participate in the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. The Company may renew
this 10% limit with shareholders” approval provided that each
such renewal may not exceed 10% of shares in the Company
in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

29.

30.

Bz (48)

et G A 178 B8 AR 4 LA 3R B828,230,000 (2014
& :44,570,000) RAEAR A EBR - RERE
(F0B% B2 AT) A& #911,433,0007% 7T (20144 :
18,070,000 7t ) + £ 12,823,000/ st (2014
F 4,457,000 ) et ABRA R T4
8,610,000/ 7T (20144 : 13,613,000/ 7T ) Jh &t
AR H (B ER - A 20#93,357,000/8 7T (20144
5,290,0007% 7T ) EW?&E%WE R B B AR A R
EEREEROEER

PIBBARRERTHROERE T B HE
ERFENRERNEARFMA -

KRz st 2

201146 A108 » A2 B BR & B3R AR
BRcERE ([ZAT8))  EEREEHE T
BERSEENSARRINEREDS I
B2RENRARBRERROBEEBNGER
KBRS ARARERNEEE- FF
BARRES zHRESREFTENER
RELSHEHAREEEHHEBAEAE
B ALHFARERZEZLTE

*ETJ%EAE%%J BT R A Bl A E AR
NEIE AN B IAERT B MER KW PTA
BRERAERTHERN aXTAIBA
ARRRRERMA A R B HITBRIDAI10% -
1|Jﬂ% SRCRHLAE - NR A AIE UL 10% R
HESEBEEHN T BBEARARBER
7(@ B HHL AR B BT A910% °
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. BERHERTE (48)
The total number of shares of the Company which may be H1TEPTH Z BT 8 sk AR HE AR &
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and MR BB IR RE ST B T I T HE B ST E R A R
yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any other share 1T BB AR AE T Al BEER TN N B I 4R 25
option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed DA BB R R TR 2 EHITIR (D AI30% °

30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total BRIFEEAR DR R - RN QB HAITER
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued ZIBRT B SRR E A AN B ER A A B AR
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant FEImE FE2HEENERE (BEET
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under 8 R ARITIE A B AR RE ) B B 39T I T 3%
the Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by 1T IR 1D AR SR {AT 124 A HAfE A A]
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of EARBEBEITRMHAL% -

the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will B NETENSEMEBR AR RERR
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period FrigE o LLHARR MBI B AR 2 B A8
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of TERI0F AE T o IR N AR HERS - A
the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company AR ] AR IR A 1T R LB R B M
may specify a minimum period for which an option must R HARR - B H B AR ER X T - 2
be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of EORBEEEAREEZN RGNS ER
share options may be accepted within 14 days from the date R IARANESZER M ERNE
on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that % 48 BF JE 1< 5K 3B 1.0078 T ©

participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to ARABRITEERERS TFEITHRMDR
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less BEBNMER (WEREEA%E) ()RR B
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the SO RERFTTI M EHRERNERR
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by AR UL TI(E ¢ (i) BB B BARTRY5(E
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average SEAHYNERATENSHRERN
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the RAFIRD FHKTE : KA A 7 RH5
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the REFELEHANAE - REEHRESSR
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; ERRLERETLEEE BiE-

and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant. The subscription price will be approved by the
Board of Directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date RERMNZIART 8| B HARRET10A F 1% - B &
of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme. BRI AR IR R B AT I o
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 4 December 2015, a total of 11,000,000 share options

were granted to eligible persons.

Details of the movements of the share options granted under
the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015 are

30. MRzt &l (48)

M20155F12H4R - RRARIETEEBAL
T #£11,000,00017 i A #

MBI ZE2015F12A31H IEFER - RIEZ
AEIREMEREEEFEWT

as follows:
Number of share options
ERESE
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2015 the year the year the year 2015
120155 120155
BRTHE 1A18 124318
28\t gl 8 (#&7) i R AT RERRHE REMTTHE RERKRH e K 171
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) = =
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 10,800,000 - (3,900,000) (6,900,000) =
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 - - - - -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
4/12/2015 471212015 - 3/12/2016 0.760 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 - - - - -
EE 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 2,320,000 = (2,320,000) - -
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - (7,800,000) (4,200,000) =
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 540,000 - (540,000) = =
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - (4,120,000) - 350,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 4,470,000 - (2,550,000) (960,000) 960,000
41212015 1/7/2016 - 31/12/2016 0.760 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000

Weighted average exercise price

MEFTER

47,600,000 11,000,000 (28,230,000) (12,060,000) 18,310,000

0423 0.760 0.405 0406 0.666
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the movements of the share options granted under
the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014 are
as follows:

30. MRzt &l (48)

REZE2014F12R31B ILFE R RIEZ
AR BB FEWT

Number of share options
fERENE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2014 the year the year the year 2014
120145 120145
BRTHEE 1A18 12318
ZEAT =L fHEH (#&7) i R AT 1 RERRHE RERTTHE RERKH i R AT
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 11,200,000 - (11,200,000) - -
% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 - (3,800,000) (1,500,000) 7,000,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 - - (1,500,000) 10,800,000
97102013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) =
171612014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 13,600,000 - (13,600,000) - -
€8 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - (9,680,000) - 2,320,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
97102013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 5,410,000 - (4,290,000) (580,000) 540,000
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000

Weighted average exercise price

MEFSRE

The number and weighted average exercise price of share
options exercisable at the end of reporting period are
8,310,000 shares and HKDO0.552 (2014: 20,330,000 shares
and HKDO.448), respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share
options outstanding at the end of the reporting period is 1.13
years (2014: 1.80 years). The weighted average share price
at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year
was HKDO.83 (2014: HKDO.63).

92,750,000 6,000,000 (44,570,000) (6,580,000) 47,600,000

0.405 0.550 0.405 0.404 0423

RBEEHR AITEBRENEE R
8,310,000 i {7 - i pn#E F 1T EE &
0.5527# 7T ° (20144 : 20,330,0008% f& 15 K.
IR 1TEE R0.4488TT) °

TA R 5 HA R 1) AR 77 (62 i A A 1) pn e P19 &
G A F HIR1.139F (20144 : 1.80%F ) °
RERBEITERBBIEITE B BE ¥
fi% B /0.8374# 7T (20144 : 0.6387T) °
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares available for issue under
the share option scheme as at 31 December 2015 was
809,323,074 shares (including options for 18,310,000
shares that have been granted but not yet lapsed or
exercised) (2014: 749,704,074 shares (including options for
47,600,000 shares that have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised)) which represented 29.3% (2014: 28.1%) of
the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December
2015.

The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible
persons on 9 September 2013 was HKDO.1184 per option.
The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model
with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were
as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO.406
Expected volatility 43.526%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.693%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible
persons on 9 October 2013 was HKDO0.1204 per option. The
fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with
Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.402
Expected volatility 44.015%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.545%
Expected dividend yield 0%

30. MRzt &l (48)

2015612 A31 A 18 1 08 AR A &1 &1 AT 4
AT H) 35 5 8 #5809,323,0748% B& 15
(PREERLAMARBAKETED
18,310,0008% B% 17 K & Bk 4 ) (20144 -
749,704,074 %0 (BIEEEXR LB E R
2 R S FE AT HV4A7,600,0008% % 15 7Y BE A%
) - (hARRQEIN2015512 A31 B B 21T
ANEN29.3% (20144E : 28.1% ) °

MR2013F9 AR E MAE B A LR T ER
EHNEFT AT EEASHERE.1184%
T o AN EBETMER = XEhERE s — &F
RETEAHE - ZEXOEABEET

R B BRI AR (E 0.4007%8 7T
1TfEE 0.4067 7T
T8 HA R 1@ 43.526%
T8 B 4F B 3F
# [ B ) 22 0.693%
TEHARR B & 0%

R2013F10A9REMA B/ A TR HER
B AR FEERS D BREC.1204E
T AHEETER ZXBENE N T —§F
ARG H - A EA B ABIRL T -

R B BB 0.4007 7T
TE(E 0.402 7T
T8 HAR 1@ 44.015%
T8 B 4F 51 3F
4 [ B 1) 2= 0.545%
TEEARR B & 0%
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30.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible
persons on 17 June 2014 was HKDO0.1921 per option. The
fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with
Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO0.550
Exercise price HKDO.550
Expected volatility 51.087%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.771%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair value of the options granted to eligible
persons on 4 December 2015 were HKDO.1699 and
HKDO.1707 per option. The fair values were calculated using
the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.760
Exercise price HKDO.760
Expected volatility 56.772%/54.938%

Expected life 1/1.08 years
Risk-free rate 0.09%/0.1077 %
Expected dividend yield 0%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical
analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.

The share options granted on 9 September 2013 are subject
to the following vesting schedule:

30. MRz gt &l (48)

R201456 A17HE MEERA LR EER

%E’J1Eu+2${ﬁ@2%tf‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂgo 19217
RFBETIER-XEHENHB 7 —F

ARG E R EANBWABIRLT :

RiZ T B R IRE 0.55078 7©
TE(E 0.5507% 7T
8 AR 0@ 51.087%
iﬁﬂ'i/ﬁﬂ 3%

[ B ) 2= 0.771%
TEHHH“ B X 0%

MR2015F 124 B MAERA TR T E
BRENBTRTFEES AT HBERE
0.1699/8 7T }20.17078 7T - A FBE T fE
ZXEEERE N T - ST REATE R ETE - %8
A BAZSZNT

R A BRI AR (E 0.760/%5 70
1TfEE 0.7607% 7T
T8 HA R 1@ 56.772%/54.938%
TE T4 Bf 1/1.084
42 [ By ) 22 0.09%/0.1077%
TEHARR B & 0%

?ﬁﬁﬁﬂxfﬁ@#ﬁmif—r &F IH+EE’]/&mEEI{EX
FRIORBRE=ZFFHRENSTEES
ratESE -

R2013F9 AR R BRIEBX AT
BRERRR:

i]

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
RSO {T{E
Vesting schedule HEREER R ERE
From 9 September 2013 to 8 September 2014 20139 H9H £2014F9 A8H 40%
From 9 September 2014 to 8 September 2015 2014F9 H9H £2015F9 A8H 70%
From 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2016 2015F9 H9H £2016F9 A8H 100%




FEEBEARAR 2015FERSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO TS IRFTMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The share options granted on 9 October 2013 are subject to
the following vesting schedule:

30. MRz tEst &l (48)

7201310 9B KB E AR IA T &
BRERRR :

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
RSO {T{E
Vesting schedule 5B EIR R E
From 9 October 2013 to 8 October 2014 201310 H9H £2014%F10H8H 40%
From 9 October 2014 to 8 October 2015 2014 10H9H £2015F10A8H 70%
From 9 October 2015 to 8 October 2016 2015F 10 H9H £2016F10A8H 100%

The share options granted to employees on 4 December
2015 are subject to the following vesting schedule:

R2015F 12 4B & T B BB B2 DA
TERBRRBRAER:

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
REZT{TE
Vesting schedule 5 BRFER BRERE
From 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016 20167 H1H £20165F12H31H 100%

No vesting conditions are set for the share options granted to
Directors on 17 June 2014 and 4 December 2015.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in share
options reserve within equity over the relevant vesting
periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately
HKD1,666,000 (2014: HKD5,483,000) for the year ended
31 December 2015 in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

M201456 H1780 R2015F 12 HARK T &

ENRB AR A R E RE R ERE -
ERLBRENRTFEEDERREEX

7K T B AR R S A ) A 2 R A B AR MR
fR I AR B AN

§%§2015¢12ﬂ31 BIEFE REERA
A BV H A B IS FE SR B 2 1,666,00078 7T
(20144 : 5,483,000/ 7T) °
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31.

le4

RESERVES 31. &
Share
Share Contributed options Retained
Company XAT premium surplus reserve profits Total
i (E BERS RRERE BERH @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TEL THL FEL AT THL
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 578,665 586,774 5421 376,295 1,547,155
Share-based payment PARR S {5 - = 5,483 = 5,483
Exercise of share options (Note 30)  7T{E BERRHE (417#30) 18,903 - (5,290) = 13,613
Share issue expenses BRIDBITR Y (455) - - - (455)
Lapse of share options BRERY - - (644) 644 =
Issue of shares as considerations 1EBURBEHT B 2 A&
for acquisition of subsidiaries REMmMETHRR

(Note 29) (#7:#29) 327,885 - - - 327,885
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (119,343) (119,343)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12831H 924,998 586,774 4,970 257,596 1,774,338
Share-based payment PARR 3 £ - - 1,666 - 1,666
Exercise of share options (Note 30)  1T{E BB %4E (#772£30) 11,967 - (3,357) - 8610
Lapse of share options BREXY - - (1,430) 1,430 =
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (14,104) (14,104)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31H 936,965 586,774 1,849 244,922 1,770,510
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31. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each

reserve within owners’ equity of the Group:

Reserve Description and purpose
Contributed Contributed surplus of approximately
surplus HKD63,561,000 represents the

Share premium

Properties
revaluation
reserve

Investments
revaluation
reserve

Share options
reserve

excess of the fair value of the shares

of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation on 9
February 1995. The remaining balance
of approximately HKD523,213,000
represents the implementation of capital
reduction in 2012 pursuant to which
the par value of each existing share if
HKDO.50 each in the issued capital of
the Company were reduced by HKDO.40
each.

Amount subscribed for share capital in
excess of nominal value.

Gains/losses arising on the revaluation

of properties (other than investment
properties). The balance of this reserve is
wholly undistributable.

Gains/losses arising on the revaluation
of available-for-sale investments.

The balance of this reserve is wholly
undistributable.

Cumulative expenses recognised on
the granting of share options to the
employee over the vesting period.

31. f# s (48)

TXHAREEESEE SRS HE

FYMEE N B R
e SR EHE
EsBs B &R 463,561,000/

A i (B

MEE R

REERER

BREER

TLTh e E BB 2 B
Bedn BB H 701995
F2RAOREEEMA KR
W T 1T EV AR B AL D
RREE Y Z 5 - FIgRss ik

523,213,000/ 7T T3 R

20129 B e A AN BIRL - 15
It - AR B2 BT
FREE050E T - BlER
A B0 EESAA]RO0.40
BT

RERASEEL A E
R

mE (REMERIN) Eff
EEWEEE - ANMERE
EHEHE B TA DK

AHEEREBMHELN
Yt EiE - AEE R
B BT A DK

REBHRETREREZE
PR 2 RETFIST -
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31. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 31.
Reserve Description and purpose
Translation Gains/losses arising on retranslating
reserve the net assets of foreign operations into

presentation currency.

Statutory reserve  Appropriation of profits of a Taiwan
subsidiary to non-distributable reserve
fund account as required by the relevant
Taiwan statue.

Retained profits Cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group'’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include the bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amounts due to joint ventures, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves.

166

it (48)

fiti SR EE

BE 3 i fm BEBINEBEEFRER
2IEBELNKE B
B

EE R RIBERESEESRE
1 & &M B 2 7 80 m 83
BRETANEREBESRK
Eo

REBF RiBas AR B Rt et
K ERFEE

EXEpEE

AEBEREEAUREAEBMHEREM
NREEE WELABRRESN TSI
REMFZBBRERR NEEMBBER
B EFIEEE

AEENEAZEEERER IR HFE
RRTTEF BB REMENRR  BHE
BREFRR R RReFEMFRARK
REIHEBAREEZ BREEHTRAR
BIRER -
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. EXEIEER (48)
(CONTINUED)
The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of EETHEMASEEANE#E -EAEHN
this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the M—2r EFCERARANBBANE X
risks associated the share capital. The Group will balance its AR T B B o 7 B [ S 5 3 B 1T R AR % B
overall capital structure through new share issues as well as THEKRERR ARG FEEEE;
the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts. AL o
The net debts-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2015 and R2015%2014F12A31 8 L FEEH#ER
2014 were as follows: FEBRAIATER:
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FH#IT FHET
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b JE T BR 3R 265,611 295,688
Amounts due to joint ventures B E S ERIE = 26,427
Bank borrowings RITER 737,251 465,336
Loan from non-controlling interests KA IR E K 153,254 153,254
1,156,116 940,705
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITESR NI (470,025) (562,362)
Restricted bank deposit SRR AIERITER (13,427) (5,316)
Net debts BEFE 672,664 373,027
Equity 1% 2,319,135 2188,227
Net debts to equity ratio BEERFE 29% 17%
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

168

33. &MTH

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) ZRETHEER
2015 2014
Carrying amount Fair value | Carrying amount Fair value
FREE AFEE EEAE ATER
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT FHET THL THL
Financial assets SHEE
Fair value through profit or loss FTABRNATER
(held for trading) (FEEE)
- Trading securities -BEES 16,420 16,420 9,545 9,545
Loans and receivables BN FE I AR R
- Bank balances and cash —ROEHEES 494,519 (note) 584,535 (note)
— Restricted bank deposits —ZBHIRITER 13,427 (note) 5316 (note)
— Trade and other receivables -EB5 R EtRIER 94,068 (note) 104,433 (note)
— Advanced to customers in margin =~ —REEFRECHE
financing BP2BH 126,050 (note) 50,344 (note)
— Loan receivables —-EWER 629,196 (note) 143,006 (note)
Available-for-sale investments AHEHEERE - = 44,888 44,888
Financial liabilities measured at SREERBENAGTE
amortised cost
— Trade and other payables - B S REMERNERR 108,874 (note) 139,722 (note)
- Bank borrowings —$RITER 737,251 (note) 465,336 (note)
— Loans from non-controlling interests  — 78 B JFHIZARER E 153,254 (note) 153,254 (note)
— Amount due to joint venture ~-ERAELEER - (note) 26,427 (note)

Note: The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these
categories approximate to their fair value on the grounds that
either their maturities are short or their effective interest rates
are approximate to the discount rates as at the end of the

reporting period.

Hiit: BERR RBEHR ZSHH 2 RE
ERARXTFEEEE RESERER
AR s E BRI R ST AR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

33. 2R TR (48)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £REMMEZEBEFERBIR
AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include AEBNETESR T ABERI
amounts due from/to joint ventures, available-for- JERN & FERIE AJHIEERE -
sale investments, trading securities, trade and RPEH BHREMEKERET 1B
other receivables, advances to customers in margin HYIRBEMERE 2R ERE
financing, loans receivable, bank balances and cash, FORTEBEES B REME
trade and other payables, bank borrowings and loan BRI RITER K B IEE =
from non-controlling interests. Details of these financial B EemT ANFBIHNER
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. MiEe Bt E @ T EEHN RS
The risks associated with these financial instruments FEERRE - MERER - EERRE %
include currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, )& F bR & AR A E A E B o RS it
liquidity risk and equity price risk. The policies on how ZRBHBEREEIIN T X - EEE
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management FMEIE NEF I ERR R KR
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure BF G R BB & e i o
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
(i)  Currency risk (i) BEELE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign AR RIHE T M B A R BN
currency sales and purchases, which expose the HERBESAEBAZING
Group to foreign currency risk. [2\Bgz
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying RS R AEBARBEEE
amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and ERMNMEERAINGER (B
monetary liabilities that were denominated in a BL)EANAREEERER
currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional ERAENREENT
currency of the relevant group entities were as
follows:
Liabilities Assets
Bff =13
2015 2014 2015 2014
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FHT THT FHT FHET
HKD BT 478,587 38,648 1,064,758 407,947
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

170

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
in USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the foreign
currency risk is not significant as HKD is pegged
to USD.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and
loans receivable. The Directors consider the
Group'’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk is
not significant as interest bearing bank deposits
and loans receivable are within short maturity
periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits,
advances from customers in margin financing
and bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its deposits at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s
USD denominated bank deposits and HKD and
USD denominated bank loans.

33. 2R TR (48)

(B) &REIREZEBFERBIK (&)

(i)

(i)

EEmE (&)

HREE T
AEETEARET BLE
TRE R - AT - AFETTR
ST H 8 - #R SN B R B 3 S R
.,

FllZ & fz
REEREBRITEARER
F—EEEMAEATEE
FERER -EERE ARETE
IRITIF B HME - HURE B
R QT EEF =R R T8
=,

7N 6% 8 IR R AT 2 K K IR 1F 5K
HIRTTEXMEHRSREN
KRR - REBEHBERIIHETF
IR A F BRI R LUK R B
BRI EE -

AEENRSRMNERABRER
SHETBRITAERBNRK
B EXBASEAETAHER
RITERME TR ETER
RITER
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank deposits and advances
to customers in margin financing had been 50
basis points (2014: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 would increase/decrease by
HKD2,269,000 (2014: profit increase/decrease
by HKD1,020,000) attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank deposits and advances to customers in
margin financing. In addition, if interest rates
on bank borrowings had been 50 basis points
(2014 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
decrease/increase by HKD3,078,000 (2014:
profit decrease/increase by HKD1,943,000)
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank loans.

33. &R TH (&)
(B) £BEMEERERKE (&)

(i) FIEmEE (&)

BRI

ATBRE DT EEERER
EHARIENTE T AR F R
AEMERE - RBEHR A5
MIHREZERALANEEMT
AERNEFHERABMESR - K
SEANAEIZEEABER
) % [ B & BRANGOEBS £ 7T I
TERAEE WM KEEEY
MR E & 32 AT g B B Y ST

W ER1TTF SR F K R ARt T IR F
CRMERFPZBREHA TR
50E B (20144 : 50 2h) - &
FTEEMASRBERTE.
Bl 7N &= @ & 2015512 A31H
I FEREF S M m >
2,269,000/ 7t (20144F : ji F)
#90,/%41,020,000 7T ) - It
YRR AEBREFEF SR
TERRRHETFRESHER
2 B RFTE AT RRABRFTE
BESh - fHERITERFIR EH R
BR50E B (20144F 1 50X B) -
i FfT 75 EL At P 22 PR S A R T2 -
Bl A& E#& £2015412831
H 1EF = /% T 4§ 248 0
3,078,000 7T (20144 : 3 7|
ED /1 h01,943,00058 7T ) * Th
HRAEENZBFEETE
XTI 1 A9 FI) R BB AT ER o
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

172

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Credit risk

The credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, advances to customers in
margin financing and loans receivable. In order
to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Segments other than financial services segment
The Group had a concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables of these segments
as 22% (2014: 33%) and 44% (2014: 59%) of
these segments’ total trade receivables were due
from their largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. These receivables were
mainly within the branding, retailing and sourcing
segments.

33. £ TH(4E)
(B) £REMEERERBKE (&)

(i) 1SEmEEE
FERBREIEANES REM
FEUSRS  RETRIESHER
F 2B R EWRE TR - B
EERBRERE NEENE
EECHK—BFABREERE
EERE FEHENEMEE
R2Fr - AREREREURAETTEN AU
EIBEE R - BN AEE TR
RSP RRTZTREHER
BRI Bl & 78 - ARERE BLEDE
Yo m ) & AR R S HD BB &S
Bepltms EFR/AKH
H{E SRR T KR o

B % BAR T 53 BB 5P 7 &
REBNAZZENBZES
BUREROEFEERR  E
REDEZBAREROARF
HWEZERBERDBMEZES
2B 5B TER22%
(20144 :33% ) 44% (2014
F:B9%) ZERKEREE
ETREEE SEREBSE
A e
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Financial services segment

This segment has put in place a well-established
credit policy governing the granting of credit limit
to customers. Customers are generally required
to deposit their securities, properties or other
appropriate assets with the Group as collateral to
their borrowings. The credit risks of customers
are regularly monitored with reference to the
realisable values of the collateral.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to trade receivables, advances to
customers in margin financing and loans
receivable of this segment as 21% (2014: 20%)
and 57% (2014: 66%) of this segment's total
receivables were due from their largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise bank balances, bank
balances held on behalf of customers, available-
for-sale financial assets, trading securities,
arises from default of the counterparties, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the operations of the
Group and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. For the Group's financial services
segment, there is a constant need of funding
for the settlement of securities transactions and
for the provision of financing and loans to the
customers.

33. &R TH(4)
(B) £BEMEERERKE (&)

(i) 1SEEEE (4)
= BIRE S H
ZNHEBETREZEERK
EERTEPZEERE -BP
—RARNAKEFEEES Y
XREMEENEEFREE
Rz B EHEREFZEE
e —ReEBFm A 2H
BfE-

REBNAZZ I BZESE
KER RETFTRESHER
FRZRRKEREZFHERE
ERB BAZoB2HEAER
REKX & F &) FEWER K 5 Bk
Z 5 Bh 2 FEWR S AR BERI21%
(20144 : 20% ) &57% (2014
F:66%) °

AEEEMEREE (BIERTT
‘R REPHBZRITHR

AHHESREE XHEF)
ZEER B BN ST R A
EL HEAERERZEFTA
ZFREE

(v) FHELEE
REBRBDESEBRTE A%
BERRERERERBREH
AREEQLRMES RAE
BeRKDYENRSRAS
SEYIKT - AEESBIRT
SEBHE  FEEEXSEER
REBARERTEF2AS
7 SRR -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

33. 2R TR (48)

(B) &REIREZEBFERBIK (&)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEELEE(E)
The following table details the Group's TRFMAREERIBEGEHE
remaining contractual maturity for its non- HEHNETESBmEENS
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed EHFEH ZRDENRESREE
repayment terms. The table has been drawn WAMBERERERIEANEH
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of ExPEMNB M - A2
financial liabilities according to the earliest date Ran - BB B8 R KA ERTT
on which the Group can be required to pay. ENgyARFEREREN T
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on IRITIRIFI TR HEF AR - &
demand clause are included in the earliest time MIEPTE SR A G A TR
band regardless of the probability of the banks B ERER B - AR BT
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity FERERSRER -
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
Liquidity and interest risk tables B E 2 R FEE fg X
On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 1-3 312 More than  undiscounted at
2015 20155 interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cash flows  31.12.2015
20155
flEmE REOfFE KEH 123182
HE  DRIEAR 1-3f8A 3-12f8R SR-% HeResE IREfE
%  HKDOOO  HKD'OOD  HKD'OO  HKD'OOO  HKD'000  HKD'000
FET THT FET THT FET THET
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 £MER
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNTE - 108,874 - - - 108,874 108,874
Bank borrowings - variable interest-rate 35178 3 — 2 &)F| % 2.16 156,311 2,086 9,476 628,147 796,020 737,251
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEREZNER - - - = 153,254 153,254 153,254
265,185 2,086 9476 781401 1058148 999,379
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. £RIT A (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B) RIEMEEEERBK (&)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEELEE(E)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) TMBES R EE K (&)
On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 13 312 More than  undiscounted at
2014 20145 interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cashflows  31.122014
20145
MEmE  REAMASR KEE 1283182
THE  SRUEA 1-3f8A 31288 SN—F  BREREE RAE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
ThET TAL ThT TEL T TEL

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELHMER

Trade and other payables BHREMEMNTE - 139,722 - - - 139,722 139,722
Amounts due to joint ventures ENAZLEE - 26,427 = - = 26,427 26,427
Bank borrowings - variable interest-rate  $17 & 3 — 2 & F|= 181 465336 - - - 465,336 465336
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEREZNER - - - - 153,254 153,254 153,254
£31,485 - o 134 784739 784739

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
loans amounted to HKD155,112,000. Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors did not believe that it was probable
that the banks would exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
Directors believe that such bank loans would
be repaid three to five years after end of
the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows would amount to
HKD167,240,000.

BEEREREBIERNRTE
REBEESELAFEHA DN
[REANMEADRIEA] D
B o R2014412H318 %%
RITERORBEBERNSBER
155,112,000/ 7T » =& E | A &
BMB BRI EELTRAR
TR EITEE BRI EKAD
FEEEHRER - ZEFEE"
ZERITERBRBER B #
FEMmETERBE RRE
HARB=ZZRFEE T
REBERMNBRESRLEH
167,240,0005% 7T
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

33. 2R TR (48)

(B) £REMEZEBBFERER (&)

Equity price risk (v) BREEHERE
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of A% (B 15 [ B A2 35 AR AN+ K
equity securities decrease as a result of changes EREREAEEEHMENR
in the levels of equity indices and the value of R AR B H N EE TR R
individual securities. The Group was exposed to B o 20154 K 2014512 A31
equity price risk arising from individual equity B AEEFEEHRAERR
investments classified as financial assets at fair MEE DI ASRBERIZEAF
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale BEENSREE KA HH
financial assets as at 31 December 2015 and EeMEEMNERIRAKE -
2014.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TRINREKEB ZIRAKZEZ
every 5% change in the fair values of the Group’s NEBEEFIRE D) 2 HRAE
equity investments, with all other variables held (T E b ERITRE KT
constant and before any impact on tax, based on FAFITES L) iR R
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting T4EH 2 BREEE - LRSI
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the ms A HEHERAKRE 2%
available-for-sale equity investments, the impact BWEIEHIREEGREEZY
is deemed to be on the investments revaluation 2 WK HEMREZE flune]
reserve and no account is given for factors such G EARER  ERE
as impairment which might impact profit or loss (=B 7 ORE ©
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit before (decrease)
in fair value tax in equity
ALEEEZ KRiimaflz #ESzEn/
(L) %/ (GEL) (iB)
% HKD'000 HKD'000
% FHET FHT
2015 20155
Investments listed in Hong Kong REEEMZKE
— At fair value through profit or loss  —3#& A FEEH AEBR 5% 821 -
2014 2014F
Investments listed in Hong Kong RES Tz &%E
— Available-for-sale — Al HE 5% = 2,244
— At fair value through profit or loss  —&Z A F{BEFIABZ 5% 477 —




FEEBEARAR 2015FERSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
RO WS IR =T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

The following tables present details of

the Group's financial instruments subject

to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

33. 2R TR (48)

(B) RIEMEEEERBK (&)

(vi) HHEHEERESHMER

TREVNAKER THREZE
BT A - ISR FI 1T < AT RS
BREMELUDRZE B

Financial assets subject to offsetting

AFHHZEMEE

Related amounts not offset in the
statement of financial position

BERMBRRREHEZ
HEE#
Gross Net
amount of amount of
recognised financial
financial assets
Gross liabilities presented Financial
amount of  offset in the inthe instruments
recognised statement  statement of other Cash
financial of financial financial than cash collateral
assets position position collateral received  Net amount
REBRAR REBRAR HRekds
EEd  RECHED 232 Wiz EHe
SHEAELE SHAREE SNBEESE SHIR R )
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Ti#n THx THL FHT FHAL TR
At 31 December 2015 1420155128318
Type of financial assets SREEES
Trade receivable from HKSCC REBBEEZ
B SRNER 35,402 (13,087) 22,315 - - 22,315
At 31 December 2014 12014F12831H
Type of financial assets CREERS
Trade receivable from HKSCC RERBEEZ
B SRNER 19,872 (19872) - - - -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

32. 2t TR (48)

(B) &REIREZEBFERBIK (&)

i) HHEHEERSHMER

(%)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

TFEHEZ AR

Related amounts not offset
in the statement of
financial position

BERMBRRZRHZ
HHEE
Gross
amount of
recognised  Net amount
financial of financial
Gross assets liabilities Financial
amount of offsetin  presented in  instruments
recognised  the statement  the statement other Cash
financial of financial of financial than cash collateral Net
liabilities position position collateral received amount
REMBRRERZ RUEBERRZ HeHfR
ERd  WECHED 232 Uiz EkRE
SHEREE SHAELE CSHERTE SHIR g )
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR THL TiEx TR THET TiET
At 31 December 2015 420154128318
Type of financial liabilities ERERERER
Trade payable from HKSCC RERBEEZ
B SREMAER 13,087 13,087 - = = =
At 31 December 2014 M2014512A31R
Type of financial liabilties SRERER
Trade payable from HKSCC REEFLEE
EVTGETA 20428 (19872) 556 - - 556
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. £RIT A (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B) RIEMEEEERBK (&)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial i) BHEEHEERSHERE
liabilities (Continued) (%)
The tables below reconcile the amounts of TERAERGRAVBEARIKME
trade and other receivables and trade and TIAEEZE S K& HMEKER
other payables of the Group as presented in the KEE S R AEMENRRESRE
consolidated statement of financial position: ZEER
Trade and other receivables B2 R A MBS
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FH#IT TET
Net amount of trade receivables RKEBBEE
from HKSCC E S EWRRFEE 22,315 -
Trade and other receivables not TEEERERE
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 N H At e I BR X 93,527 116,579
Trade and other receivables A MEARARMIEE 2
as disclosed in the consolidated Z 5 & H e Y BR 5k
statement of financial position 115,842 116,579
Trade and other payables B 5 REMETHRS
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET TET
Net amount of trade payables REBBEEZ
from HKSCC B o EMNERFEE - 556
Trade and other payables not NERIEHEREE 2
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 N E b FE T BR X 265,611 295,132
Trade and other payables RE MR KTHE 2
as disclosed in the consolidated B SR H M EMERK
statement of financial position 265,611 295,688
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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€

FAIR VALUE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities, the fair
value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices (level 1).

° Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices
included with in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

° Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

33. 2R TR (48)

C) AFEE
TREELREBABENAFEEBIZ
TIRKRERE

s ERI-RERXIHBRMEHET
ABREELBBNHRE (RE
) - A —RIGTR MR
REBRBTHIZNERE
ENRFEEDZEN SR
MEABLREHE(BRLM
B

s ER-ERIFBHEZIBEN
S AILEERBEER (AE
) REE (R EREE)S
REHZBABIER-

s ER3-UIREBABEEMEH
BEEHZEEXABE ARE
(BLBERBABR) -

EEZRR REAMBHmRIZEHENX
AAENECREENSRE ERE
BEEAZNATFEERS-



33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C) FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, all grouped into Level 1, based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurements. Level 1 fair

33. &R TH

FEEBEARAR 2015FERSE

=p/=N
wn /o

(%)

C) 2AFEFEE(SH)
BRI BRI T 9 22 F (B (BT

=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I ¥ R R By 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

TRATBMTAEAXARNFEERE
RzEmMtE (MEHREAFEE

FEEFEHABEMHRESERL
DT - BRIRFEEBETDRE
A HREER PO BT ST RE

value measurements are those derived from quoted (RS -
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets.
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET THT
Level 1
Available-for-sale financial assets — listed AtHESREE LW = 44,888
Fair value through profit or BAFEBEIABZZ
loss financial assets — listed SREE— L™ 16,420 9,545
16,420 54,433

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of potential tax liabilities in connection with the
disagreement with the IRD and potential penalty arising from
the late filing of PRC tax returns in 2014, if any, are detailed

in Note 8.

34. HAREE

SLEBRE RN FRERNEENBEER
ER B AP BRRMRAELEZEERE
(InH) 2 FERK S
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35. OPERATING LEASES

THE GROUP AS LESSEE
The Group made the following minimum lease payments
during the year as follows:

FREABREA
REERFRERATRERERE

2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET TFHTT

Operating lease rentals in respect of: ATEENKEEHERS

Minimum lease payments: SEMEFIE

— office S NE 1,741 2,690
— retail shops —ZTEE 3,677 1,965
Contingent rentals S AEE 5,202 5,490
10,620 10,145
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEHAR AEEREINHEEAT
commitments for future minimum lease payments for plants TH)Z%]H’]%“%?H B E R EEE AR

and retail shops under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

FIE HBHBEMONMT

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

F#ET TET

Within one year —FR 4,968 1,018
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEFERF

(BEEEMSE) 1,864 59

6,832 1,077

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain of its retail shops. Leases are negotiated for
lease terms of one to three years.
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36.
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OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

THE GROUP AS LESSEE (CONTINUED)

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only
and do not include contingent rents payable in respect of
certain retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these
contingent rents are calculated with reference to the relevant
retail shops’ turnover using pre-determined formulae. It is
not possible to estimate in advance the amount of such
contingent rent payable.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR
Property rental income earned during the year was
HKD34,042,000 (2014: HKD15,567,000). Investment
properties held for rental purposes have committed tenants
for the next two to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

:g\g'f %*ﬂ ( Ini=1 )

FEEARBEA (&)
LRAEAEEEEAES  BETEEAE
BHENSETETERHNENXRAEE -
—BmE - EZ%iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ?ﬂ%%
BN SR REAELEENENS
%%%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁz%%ﬁiﬂ’ﬂi%ﬁﬁzTT

7o

FREALEA

FA - YR DK AL R34,042,0008
7T (20144F : 15,567,000/ 7T ) © A K 2
E-F RFHERENREMEC AR
P -

%i&iﬂsﬁﬂi CAEBEAFF N AR RKIE
HEFBEBEHWT

payments:
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FABT
Within one year —F R 32,587 33,836
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEFERF
(BREEEMT) 36,603 35,808
69,190 69,644
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. X EIE
2015 2014
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
Contracted for but not provided BHACTIL A4 REEE
— Capital expenditure in respect of — BRI EELEZ
the establishment of a joint venture EARFAL 32,437 -
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37.

38.

184

UNDERWRITING AND SUB-
UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS

The Group guarantees to purchase the securities in
underwriting amounted to HKD14,998,000 (2014:
HKD40,320,000) being offered by sales of securities, at
an agreed-upon price between the Group and issuer of
securities, regardless of whether or not the securities can be
sold to investors in the future. In the opinion of the directors
of the Group, the fair values of the underwriting and sub-
underwriting arrangements are insignificant to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% or HKD1,500 in maximum of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period to which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities in other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement schemes up to
the time of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding
those employees who resigned before their retirements, at a
percentage that is specified by the local governments.

37.

38.

BIHR D BHKE

AEBERBEAREEFSHETABEN
SHERBEHERSFMIEZNEHER
#$14,998,0007% 7T (20144 : 40,320,000/
TLMES MARESFETRRKHEET
BREE - AKEEFERS BHEEDBHET
B2 A FEEHAKEMEALTEK.

BAREREE

AEBRMBERBEENAEREENT—
HRHIME AT E ([RERFE]) -8
BN EERARENEENHEE

YHEFXFAZHNESHB - AKEEH
1 B8 B T & B AN #95% 3k B = 1,500 7T 1
REEe M MERTMARMEE
PR o

ARBRAFPEONE QB BT EBFLE
MBI R E B RIREA T EIAK B R RET
BHARIRERAMNBARRENTENS
TEOWAE YRE BRI EHE
DA EAR ARG EIHFET AR A 2E K

A
ik

AEET2EAREQEEBHEMEDR
FRE [ Y AR A 1t 77 ER S B0 P B SR E (RBOR IR
B ARBETAEBRSIENRTENE
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SEAREMBRRAENAEO L RAZE
B EFELHER B EBREERK
Bl TEEREARAMBENEHES -



FEEBEARAR 2015FERSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO SRR SE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ 20156 12A31H It F &

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Director:

39. BEAN TS

FREANLRS
FAAEERAEE HBEELEE
ETATR S

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

Nature HE THET T

Commission income AW A 216 423

Interest income FEUA 219 186

Commission rebate < = - (300)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE ¥ HE k& 2,896 =
Total amount of margin financing RERARTRECHE

facilities granted as at the year ended date ~ ZHEZ B & %8 10,000 13,000

Maximum amount of margin financing RECHER= LR 11,633 11,749

Advances to Director in margin financing are repayable
on demand, carry interest at Prime Rate plus 3%
per annum, and are pledged by securities collateral
for both years. Since the acquisition of Jin Dragon
Holdings Limited was completed on 30 April 2014
(Note 44(a)), the balance of advances to Directors
in margin financing as at 1 January 2014 was not
applicable to disclose.

These transactions also constitute connected
transactions as defined under the Listing Rules, and
those that are not exempted from disclosures in
accordance with the Listing Rules are set out in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
in the Corporate Governance Report.

RREFERN HRESBRERES
EH 2 BRERERKEE  RRE
B RS FMN3%aTE - WA BHIK
HoERER AREEETEREAR
Nz WHE D N2014F4 A30H K
(Ki7E44(a)) - RMR2014F1 A1 8 5t
RESHMEMNEZFELE 2 BRALTE
BRIFE -

%ERX ZIMEK LR RITE TR E
ZEER S MRE LR ER#
RIFLBBEZ R FHANEEE RS
(HEEER S| —f-
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39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(CONTINUED)

39. BAEAN T (&)

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT

PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Directors and other members

of key management during the year was as follows:

(B) XEEIEASFHM

FR - EZRHMEIZEEABNH

2015 2014

HKD’000 HKD’000

TFH#T T

Short-term benefits 55 BRtE 7 14,645 17 464
Post-employment benefits LIHEREEF 555 584
15,200 18,048

The remuneration of the Directors and key executives

is determined by the Board of Directors having regard

to the performance of the individuals and market

trends.
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40. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 40. R AT IEIRIER

FINANCIAL POSITION

2015 2014
Notes HKD'000 HKD’000
iz TFHETT FAETL
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HERKB LA 988 988
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 2,287,359 2,263,500
2,288,347 2,264,488
Current assets MEBEE
Other receivables H bW RIA 636 2284
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 233,820 331,197
234,456 333,481
Current liabilities mEEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries [T B A 16,702 90,633
Other payables H Al pE HEETA 810 710
Bank borrowings BITEE 155,002 465,336
172,514 556,679
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(B8E)FE 61,942 (223,198)
Non-current liabilities EMEEE
Bank borrowings RITER 310,004 =
Net assets BESME 2,040,285 2,041,290
Equity i
Share capital N 29 269,775 266,952
Reserves 1 31 1,770,510 1,774,338
2,040,285 2,041,290
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41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

41.

1A B B 2 B Y HE 2

20154 K2014412H31H - R ARIH £
EMBARFBNT:

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, KARBHERT/
MEBAT B REEDE EME#1T/ BikE BilRAHRER TEED
2015 2014
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
EE ik B filt
Cosmo Group Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD10,000 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands k10,000 T REER
RBRAES
Misto Worldwide Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands L@R1IET REER
EERAHS
Power Plus Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Islands LmRIET BEER
ERELHS
Premier Ever Group Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD63,068,127 - 62.5% - 62.5%  Investment holding
Islands 863,068,127 T REER
EBRAES
Rivergold International Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD78,364,080 - 70% - 70%  Investment holding
Islands L iR78,364,080% 1T REER
EERAHS
BRI R AR The PRC (Wholly Registered capital - 70% - 70%  Property investment
BERAR owned foreign USD70,766,000 MERE
enterprise) it 7870,766,000% 7T
hE (SEEE
&%)
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41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 41. RBA TSI (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, KARBHERT/
HEAT B REEHE EHE BT/ BLRE BiRAFHER TEEH
2015 2014
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# el B il

REEFMAEEERAA The PRC (Wholly Registered capital = 58% - 51.04% Investment holding
owned foreign USD42,500,000 REZR
enterprise) 1 & A42,500,000% 7T

hE (SEEE
%)

BEREEEER AT The PRC (Wholly Registered capital = 58% = 58%  Investment holding
owned foreign USD18,300,000 REER
enterprise) & 7818,300,000% 7T

hE (SEEE
%)

BEEEEEERATF The PRC (Wholly Registered capital - 62.5% - 625%  Operation and
owned foreign USD9,800,000 management of
enterprise) 14 7%9,800,000% 7 Outlet malls

hE (SEEE RERITEERERE
%)

China Rise Finance Group Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited A% T AA%10,000% 7T REER

EECRERARAA

China Rise Securities Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HKD100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Dealing and advising
Management Company B I 38A% 100,000,000/ T in securities
Limited REEFZHK

FEERSEAEERERAA B R 7%

China Rise Capital Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD5,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of

EZERERAA Bk 1 15,000,000/ 75 insurance,

brokerage services
and portfolio
management
RERE CLRSE
MEEasER
AR5
China Rise Finance Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of money
EBHMBERAT e ERA%10,000% 7T lending
REEERS
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41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

41. R BATIBY#EZ (8)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
EE AL, KARBHERT/
MEBAST B REEDE EHE #T/ BLRE BiRAFRER EEED
2015 2014
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# Gk BE i
Trillion Earning Limited The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Island EE REER
EBRAHE
Worldwide Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
EBBEEXARAT B E3#AR10,000% 7T MERE
SERARERNDBRAT  Taiwan Ordinary NTD50,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and
= L@ A% 7 & #50,000,000 management of
Duty-Free Shops
BT BB e H AR
Smart Shine Industries Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD2 - 100% - N/A~ Investment holding
Island TRBET TEE  REEKR
EBRAHS
SYM Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
B LRR2ET MERE
Kwan Tai Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10 - 100% - 100%  Property investment
ERBREBR AT ) LRRI0BT MERE
JFT Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD316,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of IT,
FHEREREBR AT Bk £ #/72316,000,0007% 7 corporate services
and portfolio
management
REESEM - 0%
RBAREES
B R
FRY (L8 BEES PRC (Wholly owned  Ordinary USD3,000,000 - 100% = N/A  Investment holding
BRAF foreign enterprise) 3 i f%3,000,000% 7T TER REER
HE (SNEBEE
%)
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 41. Rt BASER (4&)
(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, RATREEET/
HEAT B REEDE EHE#T/BRRE BiRAFHER TEED
2015 2014
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# CiEE B i
HERERGARA A PRC (Wholly owned ~ Ordinary USD14,080,000 - 100% = 100%  Trading, retailing
foreign enterprise) & #214,080,0003 1T and distribution of
RE(SNEBELE) swimming apparel
and accessories
85 TERHH
K PR o R B 6
AEEREREBRAR PRC (Wholly owned  Ordinary RMB190,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
foreign enterprise) & iM% A K #190,000,000 REZR
RE (SMEEERE)
Pony International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of
A% EREET trademark rights,
trading and
retailing
BIHREE
Super Jumbo Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Development and
Island ERERIET management of
EBRAHES “PONY” brand
ERRER [PONY ]
g

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results

or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

PR AN G 2R 3 2R 4R JE AR AR By 0 - B 48 B
BB BITEREBEBRD -

E %;mi% ERAIINOARRIMERRS

EEE/ 488
SEE T E

R MR E M E D

BHMBAREMESBRITR.

AEBEELEENNR EF
AMFHAENEE
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Premier Ever Group Limited (“Premier Ever”), a 62.5%
owned subsidiary of the Company (2014: 62.5%) has
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). Due to the
acquisition of equity interest in Shenyang Keenson Aliance
Properties Limited (“Shenyang Keenson”) during the year
ended 31 December 2015, the relevant NCI becomes
immaterial. The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not
100% owned by the group are considered to be immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Premier Ever and Shenyang Keenson before intra-group
eliminations, is presented below:

42. FEf=RHERR

KX 7% A M1 B A "lPremier Ever Group
Limited ([Premier Ever|) 62.5%%# 2§
(20144 : 62.5% ) * W#EH B A IEZERLHE
= ([FEER R ) - AR EIZE20155F 12 A
IR EFERKBBEGENBHAEEER
NAE (DRG] ks - B A ERE
HEKEER-MUIEAEEEERT
ZFTEEAMMB AR 2 TR IERTIR A
WIEERX-

A B8 Premier Ever &2 B 15 @ 5 2 FEIERR 25
ZHBERBE (RIEEBRARMIKE)
TR T X 25 :

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL MBI R RIBE
POSITION
Premier Ever Shenyang Keenson
EHBEH
As at 31 December As at 31 December
®12A31H ®12A31H
2015 2014 2015 2014
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FERT THBL TET BT
Current e
Assets BE 22,077 42 551 N/A &R 428
Liabilities afE (56,439) (33,435) N/A E R (64,393)
(34,362) 9,116 N/A 7 (63,965)
Non-current ¥R
Assets BE 615,753 652,243 N/A i R 320,015
Liabilities BfE (42,700) (42,700) N/A T F -
573,053 609,543 N/A i R 320,015
Net assets BEFE 538,691 618,659 N/A &R 256,050
Accumulated non-controlling SR ES
interests 153,307 182,599 N/A g 31,235
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42. FEiERxtEnm (48)

(CONTINUED)
SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE Z2EERRBE
INCOME
Premier Ever Shenyang Keenson
ERRH
As at 31 December As at 31 December
®12A318 ®12A31H
2015 2014 2015 2014
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET TEL FHT THL
Revenue HEE 29,322 23,198 N/A 7 B -
Loss before income tax BRETER AT E R (53,702) (61,746) N/A g (1,877)
Income tax expense FIis MY - = N/A &R -
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B17),/ B (53,702) (61,746) N/A 7 R (1,877)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 A (26,266) (9,149) N/A i R (6,854)
Total comprehensive income FEZANALE
for the year (79,968) (70,895) N/A &R (8,731)
(Loss)/profit allocated to DR TIEERES
non-controlling interests 2 (B8) /%7 (19,443) (22,033) N/A R R (229)
The information above shows amounts before inter-company L ERBERAREEEARRIBEKIE S
eliminations. EHo
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

194

(CONTINUED)

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

42. iR tEm (4R)

HeERERME

Premier Ever

Shenyang Keenson

ERRH
As at 31 December As at 31 December
®12A31H8 ®12A31H
2015 2014 2015 2014
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT AL THT AL
Cash generated from/(used in) operations K8,/ (FBR) &%
g 0p 6,143 (43,573) N/A &R 368
Income tax paid BRFEH - = N/A &R -
Net cash from/(used in) KA/ (AR)E&
operating activities EEME TR 6,143 (43,573) N/A &R 368
Cash flow from REREEHZ
investing activities BeRE
Net cash (used in)/from (AR)/REKE
investing activities EEMRSFE (23,836) (21,460) N/A &R 1
Cash flow from financing REREEHY
activities ReRE
Net cash (used in)/from financing (BR)/kamg
activities BB ST (307) - N/A FEH -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash Be LR EEY
and cash equivalents ORd)/EnFE (18,000) (65,033) N/A FEH 369
Cash and cash equivalents FNHRe K
at beginning of year ReZEEY 34,208 99,196 N/A &R 42
Effect of exchange rate changes EXETHHS K
on cash and cash equivalents ReSEYFE (2,498) 45 N/A &R 16
Cash and cash equivalents at FRAL K
end of year BEEEY 13,710 34,208 N/A 7 E 427

Save as aforesaid, there is a loan from non-controlling
interest of HKD153,254,000 (2014: HKD153,254,000)
being unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment. The non-controlling interest has agreed not to
demand repayment of the loan from the Group within the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the Directors believe that the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the loan for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting period and
classified the loan as a non-current liability.

K B IF ¥ B 21 00 & 70153,254,0008 7T
(20144F : 153,254,000 7T ) & W HER - T
BB K B E BRI B S HIR
EART—EAR FEREZRAETE
KEEZER - EER/ ~AKEE
ERHENECZERLBZ BN ER
FRBEME-
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. HEM B AT
(@) As referred to in Note 8, on 18 September 2015, the (@) FHAOFT FESAT A - 7A2015F9 A 181 ¢
Group disposed of its subsidiary Grand Golden, to AEEIR S RE20E TRV E
an independent third party for a cash consideration =7 H & EH B FGrand Golden °
of HKD20. The net liabilities of Grand Golden and its Grand Golden X E KB A& HE B
subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows: HizaEFENT:
HKD’000
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEBFEFE:
Tax recoverable A] Uy [2] 7 18 52,314
Prepayments and other receivables TE A BR R % At B UK BR 5K 8
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRIR S 1,653
Other payables b fE < BR 3K (1,817)
Tax payable FEAS R IR (52,313)
Shareholders’ loan R E R (97,626)
(97,781)
HKD'000
T T
Consideration RE =
Less: Shareholders’ loan assigned to the buyer JB R T E SRR EE R (97,626)
Net liabilities disposed of HEBEFHE 97,781
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE W B A R U zE 155
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) (Continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of Grand Golden

43. HEMBAE] (45)

(@ (#&)

A % Grand Golden f2 H & A 7
2R RREFEEYREFES TN

and its subsidiaries was as follows: T
HKD’000
FAET
Cash consideration ReRE =
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERITEHRLIRS (1,653)
(1,653)

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
disposed/deemed to have disposed of some other
subsidiaries for cash considerations of HKD1,125,000.
The net liabilities of these subsidiaries at the date of

(b) MEZE2015%12A831R IFEER &
SELE WRELEE TEMNE
A7 EENEAL,1250008 7T © 5%
EMBARINEE BBz aEFEN

disposal were as follows: e
HKD’000
T T
Net liabilities disposed of: HEBRFE:
Property, plant and equipment VI BB M 2,101
Club debenture SHES 1,124
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H M W BR 5k 10,571
Bank balances and cash R1TEB MR 6,392
Trade and other payables 25 R HMERRK (24,368)
(4,180)
Non-controlling interests e AR A A 861
(3,319)
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. HEMBATE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b)  (Continued) (b) (%)
HKD’000
FET
Consideration RE 1,125
Net liabilities disposed of HEBRFE S31E
Release of translation reserves FRBRIE H (& (129)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE W B QR WS 4,315
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash ERHHEZEHNBEARZES MRS
equivalents in respect of the disposal of these EEYMZFRESTOT

subsidiaries was as follows:

HKD’000

THET

Cash consideration BHeRE 1,125
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERITERNIES (6,392)
(5,267)
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44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

198

(a)

On 30 April 2014, the Group completed an acquisition
of 100% equity interests in Jin Dragon Holdings
Limited (“Jin Dragon”). The total consideration of
approximately HKD167,037,000 included a cash
consideration of approximately HKD20,877,000,
consideration share of 261,000,000 shares of the
Company and the purchase of the shareholder’s loan
owed by Jin Dragon to the vendor of approximately
HKD103,000,000. The acquisition was made as the
Directors believe the growth prospects for financial
services business are bright and can widen the Group's
revenue base. The goodwill arising from the acquisition
of Jin Dragon is mainly attributable to the financial
services expertise and skills of employees of Jin Dragon
that will bring to the Group.

44. W BBt /B 24 5]

(a)

2014454 A308 » 7K & B 52 ik Uk 38
ZEERERAR ([E8E])Z2100%
B #E - BB B %)167,037,0008 7T
BLIE IR € R {8 420,877,000/% 7T »
X & B £7261,000,0008% 48 2 &) A% 19
RBEEBEERANEFZREERLY
103,000,000% 7t - Wi R A AE SR
ReRRBEBERISNEA  7JHA
BEAEERAER  WHEEREEAY
MEXERGAEEHES 2 EREE
TH) % Rb AR 75 55 35 038 R BBk o

HKD'000
FHEIT

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired: FrEEERBEATEE:
Property, plant and equipment Y B R 216
Intangible assets | EE 599
Deferred tax assets BT IAEE 18
Statutory deposits for financial business B E TS HEE 75K 200
Trade and other receivables B 5 NH M EIBRR 14,904
Advances to customers in margin financing RETREBESHERFP Z2EXK 21,254
Loans receivable JE W E K 70,000

Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS

— held on behalf of customers —-REFFSH 13,541
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 26,504
Trade and other payables B REMEMNER (14,249)
Tax payables FERFLIE (1,540)
131,447
Goodwill HE 35,590
167,037
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44, ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 44. WEEMIB A E] (48)

The fair value of the 261,000,000 consideration shares
issued as part of the consideration paid for the vendor
was determined on the basis of the closing market
price of the Group’s ordinary shares on the acquisition
date.

The fair value of loans receivable, advances from
customers in margin financing and trade and other
receivables, equivalent to its gross contractual amount
as shown above, was considered as fully recoverable.

Loss for the year from continuing operations included
a profit of approximately HKD9,197,000 attributable
to the business of Jin Dragon and its subsidiaries
which generated total revenue of approximately
HKD21,936,000 for the period since its acquisition.

(CONTINUED)
(a) (Continued) (@ (&)
HKD’000
FET
Total consideration satisfied by: BREEMHRX:
Cash consideration HeRE 20,877
Fair value of consideration shares REBROOAFEEE 146,160
167,037
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEEZHRERAFE:
Cash consideration ReRE (20,877)
Bank balances and cash acquired P BB iR1T B RIS 26,504
5,627

ERENTERZRE—MAMmET
Z261,000,0001% X 18 A% 17 B9 2 7B
B H2EWE R RASEE BRI
MEEE °

REEF RETRESHERFZ
BREE 5 N H KRR 2 A FHE
B (R EXATEEHSEAE) R
8 A E 2R -

FEREXEB ZFNBRBESS
Ko BB B A R 2 R AG A KD
9,197,000 7T - B BRI UL BB LR
6 EE £ 482 S #R #4921,936,0007/8 7T ©
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44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

200

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014 the Group’s revenues and loss for the year for
continuing operations would have been approximately
HKD280,175,000 and approximately HKD4,887,000,
respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.

On 28 February 2014, the Group completed an
acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interests in a
joint venture, JFT Holdings, for a cash consideration
of HKD25,000,000. The Directors considered this
acquisition as an acquisition of assets and liabilities
because JFT Holdings did not constitute a business at
the acquisition date.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group's
50% interest in the joint venture already held was
treated as being disposed of at fair value amounting
to HKD25,000,000 on the date of acquisition. As a
result, a fair value gain on remeasurement of equity in
a joint venture of approximately HKD10,051,000 had
been recognised and included in other income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

44. WEsM B A E] (4)

(a)

(b)

(%)

& W R2014F1AIRE A A&
SERFEREEB I FREXRR
& 18 1§ 2 Bl 5 %9280,175,00078 7T K
#4,887,000/8 7T ° #8E B FHEH AL
ZA WIEAEBERREBEDRK2014
FIAIBTKMEBERSL 2 EXHE
RGERBEER MERKREREZTE
Al e

201462 A28  REEE &R
{E25,000,000/8 TREE N & & B %
RN BRI Z SR T50% M HE - AR
RS RN IR B BRI A
% AL ESKZRERRKEEE
KAfEe

REBTKE AEERGERED
1B 2 50% R s AR AR R B
B~ F 8 {825,000,00078 7T i & °
b HREHFE-—REEEIBE
Z A FEEKRE4910,051,00078 7T
WRERA EERERT AHMBPA -

HKD’000
T

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W E A 2 RS M FE
Cash consideration HeRE 25,000
Bank balances and cash acquired P B R1T R R IR S (1,486)
23514
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44, ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

On 15 September 2014, the Group completed the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Trillion
Earning Limited (“Trillion Earning”), for considerations
satisfied as to approximately HKD95,938,000 by
cash, as to approximately HKD233,851,000 by the
allotment and issue of 260,260,000 new shares by the
Company and as to approximately HKD159,663,000
by the transfer of 42% of the Group's equity interest in
Giant Eagle and of 42% of all amounts owed by Giant
Eagle and its subsidiaries (“Giant Eagle Loans”). The
Directors considered this acquisition as an acquisition
of assets and liabilities because Trillion Earning did not
constitute a business at the acquisition date.

44. WEsM B A E] (4)

(c)

R2014F9A15H A& B T K i
B Trillion Earning Limited ([Trillion
Earning ] ) 2 2 #B I #E - KB 2 &Y
95,938,000 T AR € & - 4
233,851,000/ 7T 75 8 2N A 7] Bt 2 &
%% 17260,260,0008% 1 A 17 & 1 & 49
159,663,000 TE B A EBE R L
T 103 2 429% AR AR T2 7R JBE 1 3 T HL Bt
BRBIGR 2 2HBEE242% ([RE
PEEF]) & o R Trillion Earning
AU RS B BANE NER S At ES
BZEERANEEERAE-

HKD’000
AT

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W EE v IRE ML F5
Cash consideration HeRE 95,938
Bank balances and cash acquired i BB iR1T e IR & (86,980)
8,958

Furthermore, the vendor has given a guarantee to the
Group that for each of the three calendar years from
the date of completion, the rental revenue less all
taxes and all agency fees (“Net Revenue”) as shown
in the audited or the latest management accounts of
Worldwide Properties Limited (“Worldwide Properties”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Trillion Earning, shall
not be less than HKD25,000,000. If the Net Revenue
falls short of HKD25,000,000 in any of these three
calendar years, the vendor shall on demand pay to the
Group the full amount of the shortfall in cash. If the
Net Revenue exceeds HKD25,000,000, a sum equal to
certain percentage of the excess over HKD25,000,000
shall be paid by the Group to the vendor after the issue
of the audited or the latest management accounts of
Worldwide Properties.

AN B RASBEELRE B
TR BHBRA=EAEFSF  EH
BEXAEMRAR ([FEEEZ]  Trillion
Earningz 2 &M B A al) K EX &
MHZERRBEFMBERZHEE ¥
HBRAMEEBATEERREER (DF
EEE | ) M5 A #25,000,0007 7T
HWRZ = EEF TR FLEE
1K 725,000,000/ 7t - BB S AR E
KAFXEBARSIF2HEE -
EHRBETRCERATOAHRZEE
BR B 1% {4 F & 3 588 125,000,000
78 7T+ BIl— %8 % 72 8 H1 25,000,000
BLZEBE - TR FEZRIE
BRAEBRYNTER -
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44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
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(c)

(d)

(Continued)

Based on the Directors’ best estimation by considering
the probability-weighted average of payouts associated
with each possible outcome in respect of the above
revenue guarantee, the fair value of the revenue
guarantee is not material as at both the completion
date and 31 December 2014. Accordingly, such
revenue guarantee was not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

On 30 September 2014, the Group completed an
acquisition of the entire equity interest in &2 &KX
RIER D AR A A (“Golden Palaris”), for a cash
consideration of NTD117,133,000, equivalent to
approximately HKD29,885,000. The acquisition was
made as the Directors believe the growth prospects for
duty free business in Taiwan are bright and can widen
the Group's revenue base.

44 WEBMIB AT (48)
() (#&)
WRRFBZ AT EEDBBEERLE

(d)

JE Lt W sn £R RE AERE 2 5 (B AT BEAE R
PREE AR 2 R i FHER - P
2 &M WEREZ A FEE
M FERk B Bl k2014612 H31H I+
BER-A ZWERELEREE
B 75 R A FERR -

M2014%9A30R N & B % &
WHESERARIERDERAQ A
(T&ERz2HKE ReRE
£117,133,0008 & % HER 4
29,885,000/ 7T ° 1E i 2 TR U8 T i
REZIRERE 2 2B EBR LKA
SEM REEANER UGS ER -

HKD’000
FHET

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired: FriEEERBEATER:
Property, plant and equipment W% BB & 3,088
Inventories FE 8,014
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b e AR R 616
Restricted bank deposit SRAEITER 1,531
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR S 27,190
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b FE T AR FX (2,243)
Withholding tax payables FE TR (5,102)
33,094
Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition WEEEZZEBE R (3,209)
Cash consideration BENRE 29,885

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEAZRE R F58E:

Cash consideration BeRE 29,885
Bank balances and cash acquired iRt IR & (27,190)
2,695
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44, ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(Continued)

Gain on bargain purchase of approximately
HKD3,209,000 was recognised as other income and
gains in the statement of comprehensive income
upon completion of the acquisition of Golden Palaris,
which was mainly attributable to the discount upon
negotiation with the vendor.

The fair value of trade and other receivables, equivalent
to its gross contractual amount as shown above, was
considered as fully recoverable.

Loss for the year from continuing operations included
a loss of approximately HKD1,356,000 attributable
to the business of Golden Palaris and its subsidiaries
which generated total revenue of approximately
HKD1,609,000 for the period since its acquisition.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014 the Group’s revenues and loss for the year
from continuing operation would have been
HKD270,938,000 and HKD13,766,000 respectively.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.

(d)

44. WEsM B A E] (4)

(%)

RURES © B RSTR 1% - B R ER
B UL %5 493,209,000/ 7T 1A & M W 25
R B AR R - W E
CHERBNS T EEREE SRR
TPEiE T

BH REMBUERNATEERS
REXFIREGOBE WESEH
] Y@

FEREEKZFABEEESE
KR E B B 2 TSGR A
1,356,000/ 7T * A B S 1570 WU i 1
6 EE £ 482 S8R 491,609,000/8 T °

fi &5 B PR 2014F 1 ALE B ek - A&
SERFEREXBIFNERE
X & 18 1 5 Bl /270,938,000 7T &
13,766,00078 7T * & & FHE L 5 B3
ZA - YIEARERREBEER2014
FIAIEERMERFH Z X5
REEREER MERKREEZE

Al o
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44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

On 28 April 2015, the Group completed an acquisition
of the remaining 50% equity interests in a joint
venture, Smart Shine Industrial Limited (“Smart
Shine”), for a cash consideration of HKD22,900,000.
The Directors considered this acquisition as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities because Smart
Shine did not constitute a business at the acquisition
date.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group’s 50%
interest in joint venture already held was treated as
being disposed of at a fair value of HKD22,900,000
on the date of acquisition. As a result, a fair value
loss on remeasurement of equity in a joint venture of
approximately HKD20,000 had been recognised and
included in other expenses in the profit or loss of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

44. WEsM B A E] (4)

2015564 A28H » 78 & B e Ak LA R
% 1R {822,900,0007%8 T W g — & &
1&2%Smart Shine Industries Limited
(I'Smart Shine |) Z 82 F50% A% 1 < &
R Smart Shine A W& B BRI g 3
B EAREEEZWERSBEEE
KB -RKETKE AEERE
EREB LA 250% R AR HIE
WeiE B B 2 P B 1822,900,00078 7T
HE o

REBTXE AEERGEEED
R 2 50%RE s AR AR W B
Z - F{B 122,900,000/ 7T H &
b EREFAE—ALELR 2 IE
Z X FEEREE #920,000/8 7T 0 I 7
FeEmRER TR KE B D
ARBEABULA

HKD’000
T

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEBEAZRSRAFRE:
Cash consideration BeRE 22,900
Bank balances and cash acquired g iRIT SR R € (33,054)
(10,154)

45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
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As disclosed in Note 6, comparatives of certain items of
segment information have been restated for consistent

presentation with the current year's segment information.

45, LB 2 i

AT KT - F T O REMEB 2
RBBED TE AEBAXFEZHHEH
25—
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Revenue E
Profit/(loss) before income B FFEH (),

tax (expense)/credit BranaF,/ (B8)
Income tax (expense)/credit FriSH: () /K%

Profit/(loss) for the year from & B &L L ¥5& 2
continuing operations FERA,/ (BE)

Profit/(loss) for the year from & (& 2 &% 1F 48 &
discontinued operations, ¥ ZEERF]
after tax (E8) KEi%E

Profit/(loss) for the year FEOREF, (BEB)

Profit/(loss) attributable to: ~ FEf& 37,/ (&518)
— Owners of the Company ~ —ARA AR A
— Non-controlling interests ~ — ZE¥ k4 2S

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERE&E

Total assets EERE
Total liabilities BfERE
Equity attributable to RRBER A

owners of the Company FEfG R 2a
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥ER&#EsS

FEEBEARA R 2015FERE

Financial Summary

871 155 318 22
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31H1LEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TERT THET THET THET FHET
(Restated)
(BEY))
351,067 263,831 219,165 149,335 134,061
195,053 (30,531) (187,533) (175,869) (62,978)
(38,975) 2,133 2,079 (2,387) (14,422)
156,078 (28,398) (185,454) (178,256) (77,400)
- 28,604 176,870 (46,090) 113,256
156,078 206 (8,584) (224,346) 35,856
180,822 19,095 15,454 (214,346) 23,811
(24,744) (18,889) (24,038) (10,000) 12,045
156,078 206 (8,584) (224,346) 35,856
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000
TFHERT FHET FHET FHT FHT
3,724,613 3,488,416 2,965,602 3,021,107 2,704,076
(1,254,899) | (1,076,673) (904,060)  (1,209,723) (804,646)
2,469,714 2,411,743 2,061,542 1,811,384 1,899,430
2,319,135 2,188,227 1,788,849 1,491,488 1,695,066
150,579 223516 272,693 319,896 204,364
2,469,714 2,411,743 2,061,542 1,811,384 1,899,430
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ERYPFEER

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT

(A) SEAME  MERRIEHME

Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area  Sitearea Use BE
Hh 25 HEY mE REE g =g
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the BB Medium 13,812 N/A  Commercial 100
10/F of Island Place Tower, It AEEESI05 HHA (saleable) NER EE
No. 510 King's Road, BIEAEIOE (FIEH%E)
North Point, 12 105% 8 hL
Hong Kong
Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050 HEAREME Medium N/A 100,146  Commercial 70
North Puheda Road EEREGT HHA NE [HES
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  RAAZEERE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S AzEdtb
PRC 7% 1t 2008-050%%
Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017 # % A RE£HE Medium N/A 45,166 Industrial 70
North Puheda Road, EEREGT HHA NE I
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  RAAZEERE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S AzEdtb
PRC %1k(G) 2008-0175%
Units 1 and 2 HE A REME Long 8,053.34 N/A  Commercial 100
6/F Jiuge Business Centre EEmE LR K (gross floor) THA A
No. 2301 Yi Shan Lu, 23015% fe=a
Shanghai, NIREBH L
PRC GIZ1E25R BT
(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT (B) EAKREMENME
PROPERTIES
Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Site area  Use BER
Hh 2 HEY mE HREEE g =g
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
FHR FhHK
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the BE Medium 13,812 N/A~ Commercial 100
3/F of Island Place Tower, i A R & (saleable) TNER  AX
No. 510 King's Road, R 275105 (ATSHE)
North Point, BEAE3ME
Hong Kong 121058 fL
Portion B on 5/F, B Medium 4462 N/A  Industrial 100
No. 32 Hung To Road, NEEE R (saleable) TEA I
Kwun Tong, 96 Bl 78325% (ATSHE)
Kowloon SEBE > BAL
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FTE2EMESK
Effective
% held
Location Lease term Area Site area  Use 8
25 HEY mHE hREE g =137
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit C, 2/F, a5 Long 4,345 N/A  Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building, L R H (saleable) NER I
No. 8 On Yip Street, 7 185 (AISHE)
Chai Wan, ERIMAE
Hong Kong HECENL
Site No. 88, hEARKEAME Medium N/A 44237  Commercial/ 58
North Puheda Road, BELELM HHA TiE A Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, B E [EYAEES
Shenbei New District, BRERRE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/ AL
PRC 88857 I 158
Site No. 89 FEE AR EME Medium N/A 55,101  Commercial 58
North Puheda Road, BEREEGT HAA TEH [
Daoyi Development Zone, &L @
Shenbei New District, BEERR
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/ AL
PRC 895 1135k
Site No. 124 i AREME Long N/A 94,450  Commercial/ 58
North Puheda Road, BELEGT = H TiE A Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, B R CEVAEE:
Shenbei New District BEERR
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, & A&t
PRC 12457 1 158
12th, 14th, 16th and i AR A Medium 10,471 N/A Commercial 100
18th Floors, Beijing Junefield bt RERE H R THA  EE

Plaza, 10th Building,

Nos. 6, 8, 10, 12, 16, 18
Xuan Wu Men Outer Street
Xuan Wu District, Beijing,
PRC

ERFINRE6 8
1012 - 165185}
1057 - 121416
K 18E
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SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be despatched to Shareholders together
with a proxy form.

Date: Friday, 10 June 2016
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,

North Point, Hong Kong
ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and notes
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 has been published on both the websites of the Company
(www.symphonyholdings.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkex.com.hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

Name:
Address:

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 29801333

Facsimile: (852) 28108185
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BRAFASERFABERRRZERRTET
BROBRFBAFREBEN -

A 201646 A10A 2 #H

iSISE 1085 IE

3 HBILAREES1098
BARE1I0R

FiR

H}AEH E2015F12A318 It FEH AR 7 B
MREIBHRERITOFER - D BIAHEC KA X
mE BERTEAE T

12 : www.symphonyholdings.com

B 22X BT - www.hkex.com.hk

ot 3% 55 B2

otk : Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

MMERERETETEERE,

ik : B AK 2 ES105 5 E RNE10E
B H : info@symphonyholdings.com

FERGBFRETE

%% : Codan Services Limited
idik : Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

BB R BT R EE DR
£l 2EBRRERAA
ik : BAZERERI8IRE AR L22E

Bh: (852) 29801333
HE: (852) 28108185



&

SYMPHONY

MIX
Paper from
ces

responsible source:
R‘w%cgg FSC™ C004888




	Cover
	Contents
	Chairman’s Statement
	Operation Review
	Board of Directors
	Directors’ Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Particulars of Major Properties
	Information to Stakeholders
	Back Cover

